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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To
The Members,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 6 Annual Report of your Company and the Audited

Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2014.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

Year ended 31* March 2013
®

Year ended 31" March 2014
®

Particulars

50,000,000

Income from Operations -

Other Income

22,440,274

22,128,330

TOTAL INCOME :: A

22,440,274

72,128,330

Work Expenditure

Employee benefits expense

2,448,000

2,390,000

Finance Costs

235,739,096

231,483,973

Depreciation

224,408

224212

Other expenses

7,613,944

9,681,002

TOTAL EXPENDITURE :: B

246,025,448

243,779,187

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX :: A
-B

(223,585,174)

(171,650,857)

Less: Provision for Taxation

- Income Tax

- Deferred Tax

PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAX

(223,585,174)

(171,650,857)

THE YEAR IN RETROSPECT

Another year with a shortage of funds, the Financial Year 2013-14 was a difficult year for your Company, owing to
severe shortfall of funds throughout the year. Hence, apart from the fact that the Company did not participate in
bidding for any new projects, your Company also did not honour Interest commitments on the Term Loan availed
from IL&FS Financial Services Ltd. on a timely basis. The loss for the current year is majorly due to the Interest

cost being borne by your Company on the Term Loan availed from IL&FS Financial Services Ltd.




As mentioned in the last Annual Report, your Company has not bid for any new projects, due to shortage of
funds. Further, there is also no visibility of making sustained profits in BOT projects, unless the policy paralysis at
the Central Government level eases to a large extent. In view of the upcoming elections both at the State and the
Centre, a stable Government at both levels can make informed decisions with regard to easing of inflation, interest

rates and necessary clearances required for making BOT projects profitable.

The members are aware that your Company has advanced an amount of ¥13.67 Crores to Cyberabad Expressways

Ltd. as per the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) dated 5" August 2011, which would bear an Interest rate of

16% p.a. Once the said amount is repaid by Cyberabad Expressways Ltd., your Company would be in a better
position with respect to cash flows. M/s Cyberabad Expressways Ltd. has to receive arrears of Annuity of ¥140.89

Crores, from which the dues payable to your Company will be cleared.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
At the outset, your Directors foresee an urgent and immediate need of funds for the Company, so as to enable
servicing the Interest on Term Loan from IL&FS Financial Services Ltd. on quarterly basis. At present, your

Company does not have funds to meet the regular administrative expenses.

Your Directors are exploring various possible avenues in this regard.

DIRECTORS
During the year under review, Mr. Anoop Seth resigned as Director w.e.f. 21* January 2014. Mr. Sharat Goyal was

appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. the said date.

RE-APPOINTMENTS
Mr. CH. Hari Vittal Rao, Director of the Company is retiring by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointment.

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public in terms of Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
There are no employees in the Company who are drawing prescribed salary under Section 217 (2A) of the

Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended.




CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo as required under Section 217 (1) (e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure of the
Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 is Nil.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
Your Company lays emphasis on competence and commitment of its human capital recognizing its pivotal role for

organizational growth.

During the year, the Company maintained a record of peaceful employee relations. Your Directors wish to place

on record their appreciation for the commitment shown by the employees throughout the year.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad bearing ICAI Regn. No. 001076NN holds the
office of the Statutory Auditor until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible for

reappointment.

The Company has received letter from M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad to

the effect that their reappointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under Section 139 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

During the Financial Year ending on 31* March 2014, your Company had two subsidiaries, namely Gayatri Jhansi
Roadways Ltd. and Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Ltd. and three Jointly Controlled Entities, namely, Hyderabad
Expressways Ltd., Cyberabad Expressways Ltd., Western UP Tollway Ltd.

There has been no material change in the nature of business of the subsidiaries. A statement pursuant to section 212
of the Companies Act, 1956 containing the details of the subsidiaries of the Company, forms part of the Annual

Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In accordance with Accounting Standards AS - 21 and AS - 27 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, your Directors have pleasure in

attaching the Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31* March 2014, which forms part of

the Annual Report and accounts.




DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 217(2AA) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956
Pursuant to the requirement under section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, with respect to the Directors’

Responsibility Statement, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby confirms:

That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the Financial year ended 31 March, 2014, the applicable

accounting standards have been followed;

That the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31" March, 2014 and of the Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company for the period
ended 31% March, 2014;

That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the asscts of the Company

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

(iv) That the Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2014 on a

going concern basis.

AUDITORS REPORT

There are no qualifications in the Auditors Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors express their appreciation to the Company’s Bankers, Statutory Auditors, Customers, Consultants

and Members for their constant help, co-operation and support.

For and on behalf of the Baard

Place: Hyderabad T.V. Sandeep

J. Brij Mohan Reddy
Date: May 27, 2014 Director Director
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[ndependent Auditor’s Report and I'inancial Statements
GAYATRI INFRA VENTURES LIMITED

For the Year Ended 31 March 2014



Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Walker Chandick & Co LLP
(Formerly Walker, Chandiak & Co)
7k Floor, Block lll, White House
Kundar Bagh, Begumpet
Hyderabad 500016

India

T +91 40 6630 8200
F +91 40 6630 8230

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying (inancial statements of Gayatri Infra Ventures
Limited, (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2014, the
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Ilow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. Management is responsible for the preparation of these linancial statements, that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, [inancial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standatds notified under the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”)
read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September 2013 of the Ministry of
Corporate Affaits in respect of section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, "This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the {inancial statements that give a teue
and fair view and are free [rom matertal misstatement, wlether due to {raud or crror,

Chartered Accountants Valker Chandiok & Co LU b5 registaced sath hivnted Laliby

with ildenblication numbar AAC-2080 and iLs regsleind
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by
the Tnstitute of Chartered Accountants of Tndia. Those standards require that we comply
with cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit o obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free {rom material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtam audit evidence about the amounts and
disclesures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditot’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement ol the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or crror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and lair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecttvencess of
Company’s inteenal control, An audit also includes evaluaung the appropeiateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conlormity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India in the case of:

i) the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2014
ity  Statement of Proflit and Toss, of the loss for the year ended on that date; and

iif) the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows {or the vear ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

7. We draw attention to note 3 to the accompanying tinancial statements which describes
the uncertainty involving the ability of the Company to repay the dues o its lender and
other creditors. Based on the mitigating factors considered in the said note, the [inancial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Our opinion is not qualified in
respeet of this matter,

Other Matter

8. The financial statements of the Company as at and [or the year ended 31 March 2013
were audited by the Company’s previous auditor, whose report dated 22 May 2013,
expressed a unqualified opinion on those financial statements. The balances as at 31
March 2013 as per the audited {inancial statements, tegrouped and/or reclassified
wherever necessary, have been considered as opening balances for the purpose of these
financial statements.

Chartered Accoumants



Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Ovder”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-scction (4A) of Section 227 of the Act,
we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the
Order.

10, As required by subscection (3) of Section 227 of the Act, we report that:

a.  we have abtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit,

b, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

c. the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
ACCOUNL,

d. 0 our opinion, the financial statements comply with the Accountng Standatds
notified under the Companies Act, 1956 read with the General Cireular 15/2013
dated 13 Seprember 2013 of the Mmistry of Corporate Affairs in respect of section
133 of the Companics Act, 2013; and

e on the basis of written representations recetved from the directors, as on 31 March
2014 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 1s
disqualificd as on 31 March 2014 from being appointed as a director in terms of
clause (g) of sub-seetion (1) of Section 274 of the Act.

Cordun-Sco UP
I'or Wﬁ Chandiok & Co LLP
(formerly Watker, Chandiok & Co}
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regstration No.: 001076N

per Sanjay Kumar Jain
IPartner

Membership No.: 207660

Place: Tlyderabad
Date: 16 May 2014

Chartered Accountants



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Gayatti
Infra Ventutes Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014
Bascd on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the mformation and explanations
given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we
report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing [ull particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(1) "T'he fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its asscts.

(€} In our opinion, a substantial part of fixed assets has not been disposed-off daring the year.

(ir) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4{1i) of
the Order are not applicable.

(il) (1) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
partics covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act. Accordingly, the
provisions of clauses 4(iif)(b) to 4(iif) {d} of the Order are not applicable.

(¢} The Company has taken unsecured loans from one party covered in the register maintained
under Section 301 of the Act. 'The maximum amount outstanding during the vear and the

year-cnd balance is X 276,659,635.

(fy Tn respect of interest free loans taken, there 1s no repayment schedule, hence, we are wnable
to comment ax to whether the tevms and conditions are prejgudivial to the intevest of the Company.

{gy In respect of interest free loans aken, there is no repayment schedule; hence, we are sirabie
to comment as 1o whether payment of the prencipal amonnt s regiiar.

(iv) Owing to the nature of its business, the Company daoes not maintain any physscal inventories or
sell any goods and services. Accordingly, clause 4(1v) of the Order with respect to purchase of
inventories and sale of goods and services is not applicable. In our opmion, there is an adequate
inteenal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the natare of its
business for the purchase of fixed assets. During the course of our audit, no major weakness has
been noticed i the internal control system 1 respect of this area.

(v) (2} Tn our opinion, the particulars of all contracts or arranpgements that ueed 1o be entered into
the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act have been so entered,

(h) Owing to the unique and specialized nature of the items involved and in the absence of
any comparable prices, we are unable (o comment as (o whether the transactions made in
pursuance of such contracts or arrangements have been made ar the prevailing market
prices at the relevant time.

(vi) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Scctions 58A and 58AA of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
i 1975. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(vi) of the Order are not applicable.
- TS
.€1§<

i
(\n\&\_ The Company did not have an internal andit syitem during the year.
adl

" Chartered Accountanis



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Gayatri
Infra Ventures Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014

(viii)

(ix) ()

T'o the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under clause {d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Act,
mn respect of Company’s activities. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(viii) of the

Qrder are not

applicable,

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor education and protection

fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom
duty, excase duty, cess and other material statatory dues, as applicable, bawve wot beew regularly
deposited with the appropriate anthoritier and there have been significant delayy in a large wimber of
caser. Undisputed amounts payable in respect thereaf, which were omtitanding af the year-end for a period
of more than sixc months from the date they became payabie are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of the Amount Period to which Dare of
Due Date
stalute dues (?) the amount relates Payment
1 » Tax | Tax de g . ,
ncome Tax | Tax deducted 26,989,910 2012-13 Vartous dates | Not yet paid
Act, 1961 at source o
Income ‘Tax | Tax deducted April 2013 to ) )
3,268 , Various dates et patd
Act, 1961 at source 0,883,26 September 2013 wious dates | Not yet Pru(___
The mance . 5 Seplember X
Service tax 5,500, 2012-13 el i
Act, 1994 ervice lax 5,500,178 2012 Not yet p m}

(1) The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom

(x)

{xii)

Chartorad Accountants

duty, excise duty, cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of
the statute

Nature | Amount

ol ducs (f)

Amount Paud
Under Protest (?)

Period to
which the
amount relates

Forum where dispute is
pending

Income
Tax  Act,
1961

Income
tax

437 903

437,903

2008-09

Commissionet of
[ncome-tax (Appeals),
Hyderabad

Tiv our opinten, the Company’s accumulated lTosses ar the end of the financial year are less than
fifty percent of its nee worth. The Company lav incitrred cahy fosses in the cavent year and immediately
preceding financial yeay.

There are no dues payable to banks and debenture holders during the year. The Company bas
defantied in the repayment of interest amonnting to I 300,662,362 to financial institutions during the

year, with the period of delays vanging from 31 to 183 duys. Of these, an amonnt of T 248,016,702 was

repaid before the balance vheet date and the wnpaid overdue installments as at 31 March 2014 are

52,545,660,

The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of scculrily by way of

pledge of shares, debentures and other sceurities. Accordingly, the provisions ol clause
4(x1) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opmion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi/ mutual benefic fund/ sociely.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 4{xiii) of the Order are not applicable.,

In our opinion, the Company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and
other invesiments. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4{x1v} of the Order are nol

applicable.




Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Repott of even date to the members of Gayatti
Infra Ventures Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014

(xv) ‘The Company has not given any puarancees for loans taken by others from banks or
financial institutions. Accordingly, the provisions ol clause 4{xv) of the Order are not
applicable.

(xvi)  In our opinion, the Company has applicd the term loans for the purposc for which these loans
wete obtained,

(xvil) In our opinion, no funds ratsed on short-term basis have been used for long-term
imvestment by the Company.

(xviii) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to partics
and companics covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause A(xviil) of the Order are not applicable,

(x1x)  The Company has neither issued nor had any outstanding, debentures during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xix) of the Order are not applicable.

(xx) The Company has not raised any money by public issucs during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 4(xx) of the Order are not applicable.

(xxi)  No fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our
audit,

‘or Walker Efsmndiok & Co LLP

(formerly Walker. Chandiok & Ca)
Chartered Accountants

l'irm Registration No.: 601076N

per Sanjay Kumar Jain
IPariner
Membership No. 207660

Pace: 1yderabad
Date: 16 May 2014

Chartarad Accountants



Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 Marcch 2014
{All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

As at
Notes 31 March 2014 31 Match 2013
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 4 17,708,330 17,708,330
Resetves and surplus 5 1,558,528,464 1,782,113,638
1,576,236,794 1,799,821,968
Non current liabllities
Long term borrowings 6 - 1,350,000,000
- 1,350,000,000
Current liabilities
Short term botrowings 7 276,659,635 12,724,093
Trade payables 8 1,524,064 1,691,764
Other current liabilities 9 1,512,441,352 181,291,777
1,790,625,051 195,707,634
Total 3,306,861,845 3,345,529,602
Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed asscts
- Tangible assets 10 793,040 1,017,448
Non-cutrent investments 11 859,113,206 859,113,206
Long term loans and advances 12 2.316,9606,293 2,315,421 808
3,176,872,539 3,175,552,462
Current assets
I'rade receivables 13 2,826,100 2,826,100
Cash and cash cquivalents 14 79,979 207,918
Short-term loans and advances 12 187,083,227 166,943,122
189,989,306 169,977,140
Total 3,366,861,845 3,345,529,602

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

ifot Walker Chandiok & Co LLP E

{formerly Walker, Chandiok ¢ Co)

Charteted Accountants

per Sanjaf Kumar Jain

Partner

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2014

T'or and on behalf of the Board of Dicectogs of

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 201

4
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2014

(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

Notes 31 Match 2014 31 March 2013
I. Revenue from operations 15 - 50,000,000
II. Other income 16 22,440,274 22,128,330
ITI. Total revenue 22,440,274 72,128,330

V. Expenses

- Employee benefits expenses 17 2,448,000 2,390,000
- Finance costs 18 235,739,096 231,483,973
- Depreciation 10 224,408 224,212
- Other expenses 19 7,613 944 9,681,002
Total expenscs 246,025,448 243,779,187
V. Loss before tax (223,585,174) (171,650,857)
VI. Tax expense
- Current tax - -
VII. Loss for the year (223,585,174 (171,650,857)
VIII. Earnings / {loss) per equity share (EPES)
- Basic (126) e
Weighted average numbet of equity shares considered in
computation of basic EPLS 1,770,833 1,770,833
Nominal value per cquity share 10 10

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integtal patt of these financial staterents.
This is the Statement of Profit and Toss referred to in

out report of even date.

i"or Walker Chandiok & Co LLDP

{formerly Walker, Chandiok % Co)

Chattered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Gayatri Jnfra Ventutes Limited

J.Brij Mohan Reddy
Director

TY.Sandeep

Director

per Sanjay Kumar Jain

Pactner

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2014

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2014



Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Cash Flow Statement fot the year ended 31 March 2014
(All amounts in X unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

Cash flow from operating activities
l.oss before taxation (223,585,174) (171,650,857)
Adjustments for:
Deprectation 224 408 224212
Tnterest income (21,928,558) (21,878,517
Interest on bortowings 228,154,525 223,896,249
Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes (17,134,799 30,591,087
Changes in working capital:
Decrease in trade payables (167,700) {162,100
Increase in other current liabilitics 20,625,068 31,166,285
Iecrease in long term loans and advances 043,367 (4,932,151)
Decrease in shott term loans and advances (449,440 44,019,707
Decrease in other current assets - 197,051
Cash from operating activities before income tax 20,651,295 70,288,792
Less: Income taxes paid (2,187,852) -
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 1,328,644 100,879,879
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest income received 2,237,893 2,187,852
TPurchase of fixed assets - (33,842)
Net cash from investing activities (B) 2,237,893 2,154,010
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest charges paid (267,630,018} (124,663,393
Receipt of shott-term borrowings 203,935,542 12,724,003
Net cash used in financing activities ©) (3,694,476) (111,939,300)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (127,93%) (8,905,411)
Cash and cash equivalents at the begimning of the year 207,918 9,113,329
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 79,979 207,918
Cash and cash equlvalents comprises of:
Cash on hand 3,595 4,563
Balances with banks in current accounts 76,384 203,355

79,979 207,918

‘I'he accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral pact of these financial statements.
Thus Cash I'low Statement referred to tn our report of even date

|70r Walket Chandick & Co LLLP

(formerty Walker, Chandiok > Ca)

Chartered Accountants

pet Sanjay Kumar Jain
Partner

Director

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2014

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2014

IFor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

umar Reddy J.Brij Mohan Reddy
Dirtector



Gayatti Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

{All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

1.

Company overview

Gayatti Infta Ventures Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated durting the year 2008 in accordance with
the provisions of the Compantes Act, 1956 (“the Act”). The Company, on its own and through investments
in subsidiaries and joint ventures, is in the business of construction in the transpost infrastructure and
investments in companics engaged in the construction, operations and maintenance of roads, highways,
vehicle bridges and tunnels and toll roads.

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepated and presented under the historical cost convention on the
accrual basis of accounting in accordanee with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
(“Indian GAAP”Y and in compliance with the mandatory accounting standards (“AS8”) as prescribed
under the Compantes (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 as amended (“the Rules”) and the relevant
provisions of the Act. Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies applicd by the Company are
consistent with those used in the previous year.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as curtent or non-current as per the Company's normal
opetating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule VI to the Act. Based on the nature of work and
the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
cquivalents, the Coinpany has ascertained its opetating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose of
current and non-current classification of asscts and labilitics.

Use of estimates

The prepatation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requites management (o
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
rclating to contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and repotted amounts
of income and expenses during the year, Fxamples of such estimates include useful lives of fixed assets,
diminution other than temporary in the carrying value of long term investments and deferred taxes.
Although these cstimates ate based on management’s best knowledge of curtent events and actions,
actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively in the current and future periods.

Fixed assets

Tangible arsets

‘Tangible assets ate cartied at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment tosses, if
any. The cost comprises the purchase price, freight, duties, taxes and any directly attributable cost of
bringing the assct to its working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed asscts is provided on steagght-line method over their estimated useful lives at the
tates which, cither coincides or is higher than the tates presctibed under Schedule XIV to the Act.

Tndividual asscts costing 35,000 or less arc entirely depreciated in the yeat of acquisition,
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(ANl amounts in X unless otherwisc stated)

‘T'he estimated uscful lives of fixed assets as determined by management are as follows:

Category of asset Estimated useful life
Office equipment 21.05 years
Computer and software 6.17 years
Mobile phone (included in office equipment) 3 years

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

(c

S’

®

()

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership are classified as operating leases. Tease rents in respect of cancellable operating leases are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the tenure of the lease.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the ecconomic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured,

Contract revenise

- Revenue from consttuction conttacts s tecognised using percentage of completion method as
prescribed under AS 7 “Construction Contracts” and with reference to stage of completion of the
contract activity at the reporting date. Depending on the nature and terms of individual contract, stage
of completion is determined on the basis of the proportion of costs incurred for the wotk petformed
till date to the total estimated contract costs.

- Ptice escalation and other claims and / or variation in the contract work are included in contract
revenue when:

¢ Negotiations have reached at an advanced stage such that it is probable that customer will accept
the claim; and

®  The amount that is probable will be accepted by the customer can be measuted rcliably.

- Revenue from services rendered on a time and material basis is recognised as per the terms of
contracts with customers and as and when the related services are performed. Revenue from fixed
price arrangements is recognised using the completed contract method and accordingly, wortk
completed and not billed, if any, is recognised as unbilled revenue as at the Balance Sheet date.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time propottion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.

Dividend inconr

Dividend income is acconnted for when the right to recetve is established.

Taxes on income

Current tax:

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Income-tax Act, 1961 cnacted in India,
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(h)

()

(k

S’

M

Deferred tax

Deferred tax chatges or eredits reflect the tax effect of timing differences between accounting income and
taxable income for the petiod. The deferred tax charges o credits and the corresponding deferred tax
liabilities or asscts are recognized nsing the tax tates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is teasonable certainty
that the asscts can be realized in the future periods; however, where there is unabsotbed depreciation ot
catricd forward loss under taxation laws, deferted tax assets ate recognized only if there is a virtual
certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
written down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/vittually cettain {as the casc may be)
to be realized.

Investments

Investments that arce teadily realizable and intended to be held for not mote than a year are classified as
cutrent investments. All other investments arc classified as long-term  investments. Long-term
investments are catried at cost. [Towever, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a
decling, other than temporacy, in the value of the investments. Current investments ate carrted at lower of
cost and fair value determined on individual investment basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that ate attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying asscts are
capitalised as patt of cost of such asscts (ill such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A\ qualifying
asset is one that requires substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing
costs are chatged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Scgment reporting

Segments are identified in line with AS-17 “Segment Reporting”, taking into considerations the internal
organization and management structure as well as the different risk and returns of the segment.

Earnings / (loss) pet equity share

Basic catnings per equity share are caleulated by dividing the net profit (oss) for the year attributable to
cquity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average numbets of equity shares outstanding during all the petiods presented in the financial
statements are adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing sharcholders;
share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted carnings per equity share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shates outstanding during the
year arc adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and when it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be requited to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and ate determined
based on management’s best estimate requured to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

A disclosure of a contingent liability is made when there s a possible ot a prescat obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
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3. Going concern

As at 31 Aarch 2014, the Company has outstanding dues towards financial nstturions and othes creditors to the tine
of T1,790,625051 which falls due for repayment within the immediaiely succeeding (welve months perind, therehy
leading, 1o a0 uncertainity on the ability of the Company to repay these dues. The Company’s ability to continue as a
poing concern is predominantly dependent on the profitable operations ol all the subsidiarics, joint ventures and other
investees, which have already commenced operaions and 1he continued support from the holding Company, Gayatri
Projects Limited. ‘Fhe management is also actively considering dilution of 1t stake in joint venture entities and hence
ased on the forepoing developments and overall assessment of other factors, the accompanying financial starements

have been prepared on a poing concemn basis.
}'J &}

4. Share capital

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorized
lLiquity shares of 10 each 2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000 000 20,000,000
2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000
Tssued, subscribed and paid-up
Liquity shaces of T10 each Tally patd up 1,770,833 17,708,330 1,770,833 (7,708,330
1,770,833 17,708,330 1,770,833 17,708,330
(#) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Number Amount Number Amount
At the beginning and end of year 1,770,833 17,708,330 [,770,833 17,708,330

(b) Terms, rights and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares laving apar value of T10 per share. Tiach holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. 'The rphrs and preferences of each sharcholder are i accordance with the sharcholders’
agreement dated 4 August 2008, The Company declates and pays dividends in [ndian rupees. The dividend proposed

I the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the aoproval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general mecting.
\ ) Y, S & £
In the event ol iquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recetve remadniag, assets of
the company, atter distribution of all preferemial amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of

equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Out el the paid-up equity shace capital of the Company, 1,200,000 cquity shares have been pledged in (avour of 1. &
FS Finaneil Services Lic, against term loan availed by the Company.

(¢) Details of equity shares held by holding company

31 March 2014 31 Macch 2013
Number Amount Number Amount
Cayaird Projeets Limited 1,247,000 12,470,000 1,247 00X 12,470,000
(d) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company :
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Number % holding Number " holding
Gavalnl Projects Limired 1,247,000 T0.42% 1,247,000 TOA2%
AMD Capiral Finance Mauritius Eamited 520,833 201" 520,633 294 1%

(e) Aggregate number and class of equity shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contract without payment
being reccived in cash:

31 March 2014 31 Marcch 2013
(igl'\';llri Projecrs Limited 1,200,000 1,200,001

a N

Sty
[V "~
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5. Reserve and surplus

As at
31 Match 2014 31 March 2013

Sccutities premium account

Balance at the beginning and end of the penod 2,199,619,577 2,199,619,577

Delficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance at the beginning of the year (417,505,939 (245,855,082

Add: Loss for the year (223,585,174 (171,650,857)

Balance at the end of the year (641,091,113) (417,505,939)
1,558,528,464 1,782,113,638

6. Long term borrowings

As at
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Term loans
Unsecured
From others 1,350,000,000 1,350,000,000
Less: Current matutitics of long-term borrowings 1,350,000,000 -
- 1,350,000,000
a) Details of security
Term loans aggregating to ¥1,350,000,000 (31 March 2013: 31,350,000,000) is sought by way of
(@) pledge of 1,200,000 Iquity shares held by the holding company, M/s Gayatti Projects Lid,
(b) corporate Guarantee of Gayatrd Projects Timited,
These facilities carry interest at the rate as at 31 March 2014 of 16% (31 Matrch 2013: 15.50%)
b) Terms of repayment
Up to 1 year 1,350,000,000 -
2 to 5 years - 1,350,000,000
1,350,000,000 1,350,000,000

¢) Details of overdue installments of interest
The interest amount overdue for repayment as at 31 March 2014 is £52,545,659 (31 March 2013: %961 97,963)

7. Shott term borrowings

As at

31 March 2014 31 Match 2013

(Unsccured loans)

From related party* 276,659,635 12,724,093

276,659,635 12,724,093

*Represents the unsecured, interest free dues to the related party payable on demand.
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8.

10.

Trade payables

Based on information available with the Company, as at 31 March 2014 (31 March 2013: Nil), there are no
suppliers who ate tegistered as micro and small enterprises under the provisions of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Other current liabilities

As at

31 Match 2014 31 March 2013
Cutrent maturities of long term borrowings 1,350,000,000 -
Interest accrued and due on barrowings ‘ 52,545,659 96,197 963
Interest accrued but not due on botrowings 51,985,472 47 808,061
Statutory liabilities 56,572,856 30,167,600
Other lablities 1,337,365 7,117,553

1,512,441,352 181,291,777
Tangible assets
Particulars O,fﬁcc Computets Total
equipment

Gtoss block
As at 1 April 2012 161,999 1,252,817 1,414,816
Addidons - 33,842 33,842
Disposals - - -
As at 1 April 2013 161,999 1,286,659 1,448,658
Additons - - -
Disposals - - -
As at 31 March 2014 161,999 1,286,659 1,448,658
Accumulated depreciation
Up to 1 April 2012 22,824 184,174 206,998
Charge for the yeat 15,840 208,372 224,212
Adjustment - - -
Up to 31 March 2013 38,664 392,546 431,210
Charge for the yeat 15,840 208,568 224,408
Adjustiment - - -
Up to 31 Match 2014 54,504 601,114 655,618
Net block
As at 31 March 2014 107,495 685,545 793,040
As at 31 Marcch 2013 123,335 894,113 1,017,448

Vhis space has been intentionally foft blank
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|
11. Non-current investments

A 31 Match 2014 31 March 2013
holding Number Amount Number Amount
Unquoted trade investments of ¥ 10 each fully paid:
- in subsidiarics
Gayatri Jhanst Roadways Timited* 51.00%  21,619994 216,199,940 21,619,994 216,199,940
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited* 51.00% 16218000 162,180,000 16,218,000 162,180,000
37,837,994 378,379,940 37,837,994 378,379,940
- in joint ventures
[Tyderabad Tixpressways Lunited 50.00% 990,000 9,900,000 990,000 9,900,000
Cyberabad Fxpressways Limited 50.00% 990,000 9,900,000 990,000 9,900,000
Western UP Tollway Limited* 49.00% 4936,850 460,609,996 4,936,850 460,609,996
6,916,850 480,409,996 6,916,850 480,409,996
-fellow subsidiaries
Indore Dewas Tollways Limited 31.29% 16,680 166,800 16,680 166,800
16,680 166,300 16,680 166,800
-others
HKR Roadways Limited 11.72% 15,647 156,470 15,647 156,470
15,647 156,470 15,647 156,470
Agpregate amount of unquoted investments 44,787,171 859,113,206 44,787,171 859,113,206

*liquity shares to the tune of 16,267,900 (31 Match 2013: 16,267,900) of Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited, equity sharcs to
the tune of 12,199,900 (31 March 2012: 12,199,900) of Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited and equity shares to the tune of
4,936,850 (31 March 2013: 4,936,850) of Western UTP Tollway Limited have been pledged in favour of Infrastructure

Development Fnance Company Limited for the term loan availed by the tespective campanics,

() The legal ownership of following shates vests with the holding company, M/s Gayatti Projects Timited, in accordance
with the contractual provisions of the agreement. Necessary regulatory filings have however been made to reflect the

company as the beneficiary,

Name of the Company

Number of equity shates

M March 2014 31 March 2013
Gayatti Jhansi Roadways Timited 100 100
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited 100 100
yderabad Tixpressways Limited 262,548 262,548
Cyberabad Hxpressways Limited 262,548 202,548
525,296 525,296

Thiv space bas been intentionally fefl blank
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12. Loans and advances

As at

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

(Unsccured, considered good)

a) Long-term
Advances to related partics
- in subsidiarics 335,620,060 335,620,060
- in jount ventures 923,640,004 923,640,004
- in fellow subsidiaries 363,000,000 363,000,000
- in othets (84,087,309 (84,087 309
Advance tax 10,618,920 9,074,435
2,316,966,293 2,315,421,808
b} Short-term
Loans to related parties
“T'o joint ventures 180,514,113 160,374,008
-To fellow subsidiaries 6,256,850 6,256,850
-To others 312,264 312,264
187,083,227 166,943,122
13. Trade reccivables
As at
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
{Unsccured, considered good)
Due fot a period exceeding six months
- Recetvable from holding company 2,826,100 2,826,100
2,826,100 2,826,100
14. Cash and cash equivalents
As at
31 Match 2014 31 Match 2013
Cash on hand 3,595 4,563
Balances with banks in current accounts 76,384 203,355
79,979 207,918
15. Revenue from operations
For the year ended
31 Match 2014 31 March 2013
Revenue from service
-financial and consultancy service - 50,000,000
16. Other income

Fot the year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

Interest income from jointly controlled entities 21,878,517 21,878,517
Miscellancous receipts 561,757 249,813
22,440,274 22,128,330
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17.

18.

19,

20.

Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

Salarics and wages

Finance costs

2,448,000

2,390,000

2,448,000

2,390,000

For the year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Interest expense 228,154,525 223,896,249
Other botrowing costs 7,584 571 7587724
235,739,096 231,483,973
Other expenses
For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Rent - 294,945
Rates and taxes 5,975,366 7,270,263
Repairs and maintenance - others 19,443 222,037
Legal and professional charges 269,428 1,180,492
Payments to the auditor as
- audit fees 337,080 224720
- othet matters 955,060 -
T'ravelling and conveyance 21,990 362,170
Dircctor's sitting fees 20,000 20,000
Misccllancous expenses 15,577 106,375
7,613,944 9,681,002
Commitment and contingent liabilities:
As at

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

Contingent Kability

Disputed income tax dues

Cormitmenty

Joint and several liability in respect of associate and other projects

892,926

Not ascertainable

892,926

Not ascertainable
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21.

Related party transactions

a) Names of the related parties and description of relationship

b)

Name of the relatcd party

Natute of relationship

Gayatri Projects Timited
Gayatn Jhansi Roadways Limited

Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited N
Indote Dewas “Tollways Limited
Iydetabad Lxpressways Limited
Cyberabad ixpressways Limited

Western UP Tollway Limited

buép Cotporation I’rl\mtc Limited
HEKR Roadways Limited
Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited

[olding Company

Subsidiary Companics

Fellow Subsidiary

Jointly Controlled Lntitics

significant influence

Iinterptises in which KMI? and/ot theit relatives have

Transactions with related partics

Fot the year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Transactions with Gayairti Projects Limited
Payments made on bebalf of the company fowardr
-Taterest on loans 248,116,702 55,000,000
-Salaries 2167100 -
-Loan management fees 13,651,740 -
-Reimbursement of expeases - 2,500,000
Amounts paid by the compuany towards
-Deputation cost paid - 833,000
Transactions with Hyderabad Expressways Limited
Retmbursement of expenses 224,720 -
Transactions with Cyberabad Expressways Limited
Interest on advances 21,878,517 21,878,517
Reimbutsement of expenscs 224,720 -
Transactions with Deep Corporation Limited
Rent - 294,945
Ttansactions with HKR Roadways Limited
Reimbursement of expenses - 50,000,000
Balances reccivable / (payablc)

As at

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Gayatri Projects Limited (275,357,599) (11,422,657
Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited 191,800,060 191,800,060
Gayatd Lalitpur Roadways Limited 143,820,000 143,820,000
Indotre Dewas Tollways Limited 368,937,686 368,937,686
Flyderabad xpressways Limited 331,324,720 331,100,000
Cyberabad Iixpressways Timited 394,039,393 374,124,008
Western UP Tollway Limited 378,790,004 378,790,004
HKR Roadways Limited 684,399 573 684,399,573
Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited 319,164 319,164
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22. Deferred tax

In the ahsence of virtual cettainty of future taxable profits supported by convincing evidence, the Company has not
created deferred tax assets on unabsorhed business losses and other timing differences. The Company would be able to
use unabsorbed tax depreciation and business losses to set off agrainst future taxable income for a specified petiod.

23. Segment reporting
Based on the Company's business model and considering the inteenal financial reporting o the management, the
investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures which are engaged in the business of construction in the transport
infrastructure has been considered as the only reportable segment. Further all the setvices are rendered only in India.
Ience there are no additional disclosures required to be provided in terms of Accounting Standard 17 on "Segment
Reporting™.

24, Comparatives
‘The financial statements for the previous period have been regrouped / rearranged to conform to the current year
presentation wherever required,

This is the summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information referred to in our report of

cven dale.

Jodrel Yardin Rgo e , |
‘or Walker Chandiok & Co LLP TFar and on behalf of the Board of Ditectors of
(farmerly Walker, Chandiok &> Co) Gayatri Infra Ves ited

Chartered Accountants

T.‘\.Sandccp Kumar Reddy  ].Btij Mohan Reddy

Pattner Ditector Director

Place: Hyderabad o Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16 May 2014 Date: 16 May 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of Gayatti Infra Ventures Limited

1. We have andited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
Gayatei Infra Ventures Limited, {(“the Company™) and its substdiaries and joint ventures (hereinafter
collectively referted o as the “Group™), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2014, and the consolidated Statement of Profic and Loss and consolidated Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of sgpnificant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that
give a true and [aie view of the consolidated financial posttion, consolidated financtal
performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Tndia. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and faie view and are {ree from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or crror.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audil, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing sssued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards require that we comply with cthical
requicements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Chartored Accountants Warker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered vath hrited atylty

with identification number AAC-208% and ils registercd
Qlhwes in Bengaluen, Chandgarh, Chennai, Gurgaon, Hyderabad, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhs, Noida and Pune affice al [-41 Connaught Cuicus, Mew Delbi, 130001, tid-a



Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidenee about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 'The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated finanetal statements, whether due to fraud o error. ITn making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and
presentation of the consolidated finaneial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are approprate i the circumstances, but not tor the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencess of the
accounting cstimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our qualificd audit opinion,

Basis for Qualificd Opinion

6.

Vhe independent anditors of Gayatri Vhansi Roadways Limited and Cayatre Lalipur Roadways 1inmited, the
subsidiaries of the Company, bave qualified their anditor's report on the financial statements for the year cnded
3 March 2004 and 31 March 2013 in connection with the folfowing malters:

(i) Loan and advances of Gayatri Jhansi Roadwayy Lamited and Gayatri Valitpur Raadways imited include
receivables of S272,960,257 and T283,594.725, respectively, given to Gayatri Projects Limited and is
donbtint of recovery. The Uow'ble igh Conrt of Andbra Pradesh bas appointed an arbitvator in respect of
this matter and the related proceedings are nnder progress.

(1) D'or non-compliances with the provesions of Acconnting Standard — 29, where in Cayairi Jhansi Roadmays
Limated and Gayatri Laliipir Roadways Limited bave nol disclosed contingent liabilities to the extent of
1202718645 and 996,673,320, respectively, on accotint of exealation elaims raised by the 1iPC
captractor and not ackuowledged as debis by the Company.

Qualified Opinion

7.

In our opition and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on the financial statements of
the subsidiaries and joint ventares as noted below, excep/ far the effects of the matler deveribed in the
Betsis for Cnalefied Opinion paragraph, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepred n India:

i) in the case of the consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of afiairs of the Group as at
31 March 2014,

i) n the case of the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended
on that date; and

fif) in the case of the consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on
thar datc.

Emphasis of Matter

8.
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We draw atrention to note 6 to the accompanying financial statements which describes the
uncertainty involving the ability of the Company to repay the dues to its lender and other
creditors. Based on the mitigating factors considered in the said note, the financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basts. Our opinion is not qualified in respeet of this
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Other Matters

9.

1)

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiaties and joint venures included n the
consolidated financial statements, whose financial statements reflect total assets (after climinating
intra-group transactions, il any) of T13,165,401,183 as ar 31 March 2014 total revenues (alter
climinating intra-group transactions, il any} of 22,303,58%,723 and net cash flows agpregating to
121,147,118 for the year then ended. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose audit repotts have been lurnished to us by the management, and our audit opinton on the
consolidated {inancial statements of the Group for the year then ended, 1o the extent they relate to
the financial statements not audited by us as stated in this paragraph is hased solely on the audit
reports of the other auditors. Our opinion is not gualified in respect of this matter.

The consolidated financial statements of the group as at and for the year cended 31 March 2013
were audited by the Company’s erstwhile auditors, whose report dated 22 May 2013, expressed a
unqualificd opinion on those financial statements. The balances as at 31 March 2013 as per the
audited financial statements, regrouped and/or reclassified wherever necessary, have been
considered as opening balances for the purpose of these consolidated financial statements.

~

lior Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
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Chartered Accountants
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2014

(All amount in T vnless otherwise stated)

As at
Notes 31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 7 17,708,330 17,708,330
Reserves and sugplus b 907,828,029 1,565,617,633
925,536,359 1,583,325,963
Minority Interest 189,635,455 193,132,224
Non-current llablities
Long-term borrowings 9 9,543,386,044 11,545,365,300
Other long-teem labilities 10 26,549,030 -
Long-term provisions 11 195,901,003 475,286,100
9,765,836,077 12,020,651,412
Current liabllitles
Short-tetin hotrowings 12 354,781,801 330,488,894
Trade payables 13 55,662,484 147,767,658
Other current liabilities 14 2452,531,243 1,084,229,742
Short-term provisions i1 488,862,896 13,631,981
3,351,838,484 1,576,118,275
14,232,846,375 15,373,227,874
Assets
Non-current assets
Iixed assets
- Tangible asscts 15 5,197.924 5,227,634
- Intangible asscts 16 11,192,724,025 11,426,064,314
- Intangible assets uneler development 23,252,069 692,394,177
Non cutrent investments 17 323,270 323270
Long tetm loans and advances 18 1,150,070,818 1,174 953,430
12,371,568,106 13,298,962,825
Current assets
Trade receivables 19 598,453,088 598,460,732
Cash and cash equivalents 20 273,924,428 152,905,249
Current investments 17 13,301,813 -
Shott-term loans and advances 18 753,824,363 1,103,210,329
Orther current assets 21 221,774.577 219,688,739
1,861,278,269 2,074,265,049
14,232,846,375 15,373,227 B4

The accompanying notes 1 to 31 form an intepral part of these consolidated financial statements.

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet refetred o in our

report of even date.
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2014

(All amount in T unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

Notes 31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Revenue
Revenue from operations 22 2.271,307,778 2,217,286,899
Other income 23 32,842,702 56,187,289
2,304,150,480 2,273,474,188
Expenses
Lmployee benefits expense 24 28,103,444 19,876,540
Tinance costs 25 1,462,716,099 1,533,621,342
Depreciation and amottisation 15 and 16 811,055,242 804,313,591
Other expenses 26 383,456,157 381,755,198
Priot period items, net {1,508,124) 462,136
2,683,822,818 2,740,028,807
Loss before tax (379,672,338) (466,554,619)
Tax expense
-Curtent tax 5,352,035 -
-Deferred tax benefit - (13,753)
Loss for the year (385,024,373) {(466,540,866)
Share of loss to minority (3,496,769 (30,656,483)
(381,527,604) (435,884,383)
Earnings/ (loss) per equity share (FI'ES)
-Basic and diluted (215) {246)
Weighted average number of equity shares considered 1n
computaton of basic and diluted EPES 1,770,833 1,770,833
Nominal value per cquity share 10 10

The accompanying notes 1 to 31 form an intepral patt of these consolidated financial seatements.

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

referred to in our report of even date,
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2014

(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

<5 andlin
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31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss befote taxation (379,672,338) (466,554,619)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 811,055,242 804,313,591
Loss on assets disposed - 438,815
Interest income (908,901) (36,678,952)
Income from mutual funds (26,207,320 (17,925,428)
Interest on borrowings 1,446 570,048 1,520,956,87
Operaiing profit/ before working capital changes 1,850,836,731 1,804,550,244
Changes In working capital:
Decrease in trade payables 92,105,174) {30,548,847)
Increase/ (decrease) in other current habilities 62,427,015 (141,305,138)
Increase in short-term provisions 475,230,915 10,918,964
Increase/{decrease) in long-term provisions (279,385,103) 176,908,901
Decrease in other long-term liabiltes - (32,381,294
Decrease in trade receivabes 7,644 5,207,410
Dectease in shoet-term loans and advances 349,385,966 37,853,598
Increase in othet current assets (2,085,838} (156,577,020}
Cash from/(used In) operating actlvitles before Income tax 513,475,425 (129,923,426)
Less: Income taxes paid {17,480,408) {1,783,316)
Net cash generated from operating activities A) 2,346,831,748 1,672,843,502
Cash flow from Investing actlvities
Interest income received 908,901 36,678,952
Income from mutual funds 26,207 320 17,925,428
Purchase of fixed assets (1,141,086) (50,502)
Expenditure on intangible assets (146,650,124) (120,988,104)
(Investment im)/proceeds from in mutual funds (net) (13,301,813} 21,205,330
Sceurity deposits made (2,940) -
Net cash used In investing activitles (B) (133,979,742) (45,228,896)
Cash flow from financing activities
Tnterest chatges paid (1,545,581,502) (1,421,187477)
Repayment of long-term borrowings (570,544,292) {236,728,845)
Proceeds from short-teem horeowings, net 24,292 967 86,789,798
Net cash used In financing activities () (2,091,832,827) (1,571,126,524)
Net Increase In cash and cash equlvalents (A+B+C) 121,019,179 56,488,082
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 152,905,249 96,417,167
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 273,924,428 152,905,249




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2014

(All amounts 1n T unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:
Cash on hand 1,259,405 2,635,772
Balances with banks 272,665,023 150,269,477
273,924,428 152,905,249

The accompanying notes 1 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
This Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to
in our repatt of even date,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLI For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

{fornmerly Walker, Chandiok & Cof ited
Chartered Accountants =

per Sanjay Kumar Jain V.Sandcep Kumar Reddy  J.Brij Mohau Reddy

Partner Director Director
Place: Hyderabad Place: yderabad
Date: 27 May 2014 Date: 27 May 2014



Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information

(All amonnts in T unless otherwise stated)

1. Group Overview

Gayatri Tnfra Ventures Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated on 22 January 2008 under the
provisions of the Companics Act, 1956 (“the Act”). The Company, on its own and through investments
in subsidiarics, joint ventures and associates (collectively referred as the ‘Group’ ot the ‘consolidating
entities’), is in the business of construction of transport infrastructuse assets and does investments in
companics engaged in the consteuction, operations and maintenance of roads, highways, vchicle bridges
and tunnels and toll roads.

2. Basis of preparation of linancial statements

The consolidated financial statcments have heen prepared and presented under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India (“Indian GAAP”) and in compliance with the mandatory accounting standards (“AS”)
as prescribed undee the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 as amended (“the Rules”) and the
relevant provisions of the Act. Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies applicd by the Group are
consistent with those used in the previous year.

Al assets and liabilitics have been classificd as current or non-current as per the group's normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule VI to the Act, Bascd on the nature of work and the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the
group has ascertained its operating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose of current and
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

3. Basis of consolidation
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The consolidated financial statements relate to Gayatsi Infra Ventures Limited (the Company) and its
subsidiary companics and jointly controlled entities. ‘These Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared on the following basis:

i, The financial statements of the company and its subsidiacy companies and jointly controlled cntitics
have heen combined on a line-hy-line basis by adding together the book values of like stems iike assets,
liabilitics, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions
resulting in unrealized profits and losses as per Accounting Standard 21 — “Consolidated Financial
Statements” notificd under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

ii. Minority Interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiarices is identified and presented in the
consolidated balance shect scparately from liabilities and the equity of the company’s shareholders.
Minority Interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of:

* 'I'he amount of equity attributable to minorities at the date on which investment in a subsidiary is made
and

* The minorities’ share of movements, if any, in cquity since the date the parent-subsidiary relationship
came into cxistence.

iii. Minority interest’s share of net profir/loss of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and
adjusted against the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to sharchotders
of the Company.

iv. The financial statements of jointly controlled entities have been consolidated using the “proportionate
consolidation method” as per Accounting Standard 27 on “Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint
Ventures” on line by line basis by adding together the book values of assets, liabilitics, income and
expenses after climinating unrealized profits/losses on intra group transactions.

SN




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(Albamounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

3. Basis of consolidation {(continued)

v. As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies
for like transactions and other eveats in similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as
the Company’s separate financial statements.

4. List of subsidiarics and jointly controlled entitics consolidated:

The following eatities, incorporated in India, have been considered for the purpose of preparation of
consolidated financial statements. ‘
| o % Interest ‘
. 31 March 2014 31 March 2013 |

Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited ‘ S A099% 0 50.99%
! Gayatd Lalitpur Roadways Limited _ 3 51.00% - 51.00%
’ Indore Dewas Tollways Limited* o ‘ C 60.64% . 66.64%
Jointly Controlled Entities _ o o
: Cyberabad Txpressways Limited ‘ 50.00% . 50.00%
i Hyderabad Expressways Limited ‘ 50.00% . 50.00%
! Western UP Tallways Limited _ | 49.00% - 49.00%

* Includes 33.32% (31 March 2013; 33.32%) held by Gayatet Projects Limited, TTolding Company, which
is also considering the cntity as a substdiaty for the purpose of consolidation as per Accounting Standard
— 21, “Consolidated Financial Statements”.

5. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Use of cstimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAT requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liahilities and
disclosures relating to contingent hiabilitics as at the reporting date of the financial statements and
amounts of income and expenses. Examples of such estimates include the provision for doubtful
receivables, determination of recoverable amounts of {ixed assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefits
and uscful lives of fixed assets.

Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
actual results could matenally differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.

(b) Revenue Recognition
Contract revenne

- Revenue from construction contracts is recognised using percentage of completion method as
prescribed under AS 7 “Construction Contracts” and with reference to stage of completion of the
contract activity at the reporting date. Depending on the nature and teems of individual contract,
stage of completion is determined on the basis of the proportion of costs incuered for the work
performed till date to the total estimated contract costs,

- Price escalation and other claims and / or variation in the conteact work are included in contract
revenue when:
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

5. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Revenue Recognition (continued)

(©
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¢ Negotiations have reached at an advanced stage such that it is probable that customer will accept
the claim; and

o The amount that is probable will be accepted by the customer can be measured reliably.

- Revenue from services rendered on a time and material basis is recognised as per the teans of
contracts with customers and as and when the related services are performed. Revenue from fixed
price arrangements is recognised using the completed contract method and accordingly, work
completed and not billed, if any, is recognised as unbilled revenue as at the Balance Sheet date.

Development of bighways

In case of companies involved in construction and maintenance of roads, toll revenue from operations is
recognised on accrual basts which coincides with the collection of toll. Tn annuity based projects, revenuce
recognition 1s based on anouity accrued on time basis in accordance with the provisions of the
concessionaire agreement entered inta with NITAT or with respective state governments. Claims raised on
NIIAI or with respective state governments under concessionaire agreement are accounted for in rhe year
of acceptance.

Interest Incorie

Interest income s recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive is established.
Fixed Assects

Tangible assets

‘Tangible assets arc stated at cost of acquisition, less accumulated depreciation thercon ‘The cost of an
item ol fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import dutics and other non-refundable taxes
or levies and any directly attriburable cost of bringing the assct to its working condition for its intended
use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price,

Intanpible assets

Carriageways represents commercial rights to collect toll fee in relation to roads projects and to receive
annuity in the case of annuity based projects which has been accounted at the cost incurred on the project
activity towards reconstruction, strengthening, widening, rchabilitation of the roads on build, operate and
transfer basis. Tt includes all dircct material, labour and subconteacting costs, inward frcight, duties, raxes,
obligation towards negative grant payable to concessionaires, if any, and any directty ateributable
expenditure on making the commercial rght ready for its intended use,




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(Al amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

5. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation

Depreciztion of tangible assets is provided on the basis of straight line method in accordance with
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. Tndividual assets costing less than or up to ¥ 5,000 are
depreciated [ully in the year of purchase.

Amertisalion

Carriageways relared to anouity based projects arc amortised over the period of the respective
Concessionaire Agreements on a straight line hasis,

Carriageways relared to tolt based road projects are amortised based on proportion of actual revenuc
received during the accounting year to the total projected revenue till the end of the concession period in
terms of notification dated 17 Apsil 2012 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of
India.

The total projected revenue for the entite uscful life is reviewed at the end of each financial year for
expected changes in traffic and adjusted to reflect any changes i the estimate which will lead to actual
collection at the end of useful life.

Intangible asscts tepresenting carriageways are amortised over the concession period, ranging from 10 to
20 years, which is beyond the maximum period of 10 years as specified in AS 26 on Intangible Assets, as
the economic benefits from the underlying assets would be available to the Group over such period as
per the respective concessionaire agreements.

{d) Impaimment

The cacrying amounts of assets are reviewed at cach balance sheet date if chere is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying
amount of an assct exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s
net selling price and value in usc. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value at the weighted average cost of capital.

{e) Grants

Grants or subsidies from the government or any segulatory authority are recopnised when there is
reasonable assurance that the grant/subsidy will be received and all conditions attached to the
grant/subsidy will be complied with.

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it s recognised as income on 4 systematic basis in the
Statement of Profit and Loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they
are Intended to compensate.

Where the grant or subsidy relates to an asset, the grant or subsidy amount {net of direct amount incurred
to carn aforesaid grant or subsidy) is deducted from the gross value of the asset concerned 1n arriving at
the carrying amount of the related asset.




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information

(Al amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

5. Summary of significant accounting policies (continucd)

0

Employee benefits

Geratuity

In accordance with the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 the company provides for gratuity covering cligible
employcees (a defined benefit plan). Liability on account of gratuity 1s provided on the basis of valuation
of the liability by an independent actuary as at year cod.

Compensated absencos

Liability for compensated absence is treated as a long term liability and is provided on the basis of
waluation by an independent actuary as at year end.

Provident fund

Contributions to Provident Fund (a defined contribution plan) made to Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner are recognized as expense,

(g) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing Costs that are attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying assets arc
capitalized as part of cost of such assets till such time the assct is ready €or its intended use. A qualifying
asset is one that requires substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Any income on the
temporaty investments of borrowings is deducted from the borrowing cost.

(h) Investments

@)

)

Investments arc classified as current and non-current investments. Investments that are readily realizable
and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All other
investments are classificd as long-term investments. Non-current investments are carried at cost less
provision for permanent diminution, if any, in the value of such investments. Current investments are
carried at lower of cost and fair value.

Earnings/(loss) per Share

Basic carnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
cquity sharcholders by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the period

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to cquity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outsranding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, if any.

Taxes on Income

Crirrent Tax

Tax on income for the currenr year is determined on the basis of raxable income and rax credits
computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

{Allan

1unts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

5. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Taxes on Income (continued)

Deferred Tax

Deferred 1'ax 15 recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income
for the year, and qualified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance
Sheet date.

At each reporting date, the entitics in the group re-assess unrecognised deferred tax asscts, It recopnises
unrecognised deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferced tax
assets can be realised.

"The cartying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date. The entities in the group
writes-down the cacrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain
or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient fulure taxable income will be available against which
deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down s reversed to the extent that it becomes
reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future raxable income will be
available.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to sct-off
current tax asscts against current tax liabilities and the defereed tax assets and deferred taxes relate (o the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(I} Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise of cash at bank and on hand and include
short term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilitics

Provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligarion as a result of a past event and when it
is probable that an outflow of resources wilt be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
rehable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are deteomined
based on management’s best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are
reviewed at cach balance sheet date and adjusted ro reflect the current management estimates. A
disclosure of a contingent liability is made when there is a possible or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, requirc an outtlow of resources.

(n) Segment reporting

S ran .

Scgments are identified in line with Accounting Standacd (AS) -17, “Segment Reporting”, taking into
considerations the internal orpanization and manapgement structure as well as the different risk and
returns of the sepment.
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(Al amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

6. Going concen

As at 31 March 2014, the Company has outstanding dues towards financial institutions and other
creditors to the tune of X1,790,625,051 which falls due for repayment within the immediately succeeding
twelve months pertod, thereby leadiag to an uncertainity on the ability of the Company 10 repay these
dues. The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is predominantly dependeat on the
profitable operations of all the subsidiaries, joint ventures and other investees, which have already
commenced opergtions and the continued support from the holding Company, Gayatr Projects Limited.
The management is also actively consulering dilunion of its stake in joint venture entities and hence based
on the foregoing developments and overall assessmene of other factors, the accompanying financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,

This ipace has beerr intentionally bt blart:




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information

(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

7. Share capital

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorized:
Equity shares of 10 each 2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000

2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
Tiquity shares of 10 each 1,770,833 17,708,330 1,770,833 17,708,330

1,770,833 17,708,330 1,770,833 17,708,330

{a) Reconciliation of the numbes of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Number Amount Number Amount
At the hepginning and end of year 1,770,833 17,708,330 1,770,833 17,708,330

(b) Terms, rights and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a pat value of 10 per shave. Bach holder of equity
shates is entitled to one vote per shate. The tights and preferences of each sharcholder are in accordance with
the shareholders” apreement dated 4 Augast 2008. The Company deelares and pays dividends in Indian rupecs.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the
ensuing annual general mecting,

In the event of liquidation of the campany, the holders of cquity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distetbution will be in proportion to the

number of equity shates held by the shaseholders.

{c)} Details of cquity shares held by holding compuny

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Number Amount Number Amount
Gayatet Projects Limited 1,247,000 12,470,000 1,247,000 12,470,000
(d} Details of shareholdess holding more than 5% shares in the company :
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Number % holding Number % holding
Gayatet Projects Limited 1,247,000 70.42% 1,247,000 10.42%
AMP Capital Finance Mauritiug Limited 520,833 29.41% 520,833 29.41%

(c) Aggregate number and class of equity shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contract without
payment being received in cash:

31 March 2014 31 Marcch 2013
Gayatri Projects Limited 1,200,000 1,200,000
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(Allamounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

8. Reserves and surplus

As at

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Securities premium account
Balance at the beginning and end of the period 2,199,619 577 2,199,619577
Capltal reserve
Balance at the beginning of the period 276,262,000 276,262,000
Adjustments* {276,262,000) -
Balance at the end of the penod - 276,262,000
Deficlt in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (910,203,944) (474,379,561)
Add: Loss for the year (381,527,604) (435,884,383
Balance at the end of the year (1,291,791,548) (910,263,944)

907,828,029 1,565,617,633

* Represents group's share of project grant recevived by Western UP Tollway Limited duly adjusted against the
cost of carriageway.

9. Long-term borrowings

As at
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Secured
~from banks 5,927 558 73 6,357,758,378
-from others 3,768,030,077 3,908,374,564
9,695,588,650 10,266,132,942
Unsecured
-from others 1,350,000,000 1,350,000,000
-from related parties 569,174,603 569,174,603
11,614,763,253 12,185,3077,545
Less: Current maturities of long term botrowings 2,071,377,209 639,942,239

9,543,386,044 11,545,365,306

(2) Detalls of loans
(1) Unsecured term loany aggregating to T1,350,000,000 (31 March 2013 $1,350,000,000) obtained by Gayatri Infra
Ventures Limited is sort by way of:
(a) pledge of 1,200,000 Equity shares held by the holding company, M/s Gayatti Projects Ltd,
(b) corporate guarantee of Gayatri Projects Limited.
"The facility carry interest ar the rate as at 31 March 2014 of 16.00% (31 March 2013 15.50%)

(ii) Secured terms loans aggeepating to 32,108,107,542 (31 March 2013:32,204,497,542) obtained by Gayatri Jhansi
Roadways Tamted is sccured by way of:
(a) Furst mortgage and chatge of all the borrower’s immovable properties, present and future.
(b} Lirst charge by way of hypothecation of;
- all the movables, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spates, tools and accessories, furniture
fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, peesent and future,




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(Alk amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

9. Long-term borrowings {continued)
- operating cash flows, hoole debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever
arising, present and future.
- all intangables, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and futuee.
- Assignment or creation of security interest in i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the relevant
counter-patties to such project documents. i) all the rights, tile, interest, benelits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borcower in the cleatances, i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demaneds
whatsoever of the borrower in any letter of credit, guarantees, performance bond provided by any party to the
Project Docurments and iv) all Insurance Contracts/ Insurance proceeds.
- Bscrow Account, Debt Service Reserve, other reserves and any other bank accounts of the borrower
wherever maintained.
- Pledge of all the shares (equity and preference) held by the sponsors representing 51% of the patd up share
capital.
The facilities carty an interest rate of 11.20% (31 March 2013 11.75%)
(itf) Secured terms loans aggregating to $1,734,505,627 (31 March 2013:%1,813,096,627) obitained by Gayatri
Lalitpur Roadways Limited is secured by way of:
(a) Ficse mottgage and charge of all the borrower™s immavable propertics, present and future,
(b} Tirst chatge by way of hypothecation of:
- all the movables, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, toals and accessories, furmture,
fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future.
- operating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever
atising, present and future,
- all intangibles, including but not linuted to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future.
- Assipnment of creation of secutity interest in i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsocever of the borrower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the relevant
counter-partics to such project documents. ii) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsocver of the borrower in the clearances. i) all the righe, ttle, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in any letter of credit, guatantees, performance bond provided by any party to the
Project Documents and v) all Tnsurance Contracts /Insurance proceeds.
- Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve, other reserves and any other bank accounts of the borrower
wherever mainfained.
- Pledge of all the shares (equity and preference) held by the sponsors representing 51% of the paid up share
capital.
The facilities carry an mterest rate of 11.25% (31 March 2013: 11.75%)
(iv) Secured terms loans aggregating to T722,642 800 (31 March 2013: ¥754,075,800) obtained by Gayarri Jhansi
Roadways Limted is sceured by way of:
(@) Second mortgage and chatge of all the borrower’s immaovable properties, present and future.
(b) Second charge by way of hypothecation of:
- all the movables, inchuding mavable plant anel machinery, machinety spares, tools and accessories, furniture,
fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future.
- Operating cash flows, book debts and recervables and any othet revenucs of wharsoever natare and
wherever arising, present and future,
- All intangibles, including but not limited to poedwill, uncalled capital, present and futare.
- Assignment or creation of seeurity interest in i) all the righe, title, interest, beacfits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the relevant
counter-patties to such project documents. it) all the dghes, dile, interest, benefies, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in the clearances. i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in any letter of credit, guarantees, peeformance bond provided by any party to the
Project Documents and iv) all Insurance Contracts/ Insurance proceeds.
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information

{All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

9. Long-term borrowings (continued)
- Bscrow Account, Debt Service Reserve, other reserves and any other bank accounts of the botrower
wherever maintaned.
- Pledge of all the shares {equity and preference) held by the sponsors eepresenting 51% of the paid up share
capital
The facilities carry an interest rate tanging from 10.95% to 12.80% (31 March 2013: 11.75% 0 13.30%)
(v) Secured terms loans aggrepating to 452,894,160 (31 March 2013: %472,298,030) obtained by Gayatri Lalitpur
Roadways Limited, is secured by way of:
(a) Second mortgage and charge of all the horrower’s immovable properties, present and future.
(1) Second charge by way of hypothecation of:
- all the movabiles, including movable plant and machinety, machinery spares, tools and accessoties, furniture,

fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future,

- Opetating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever nature and
wherever atising, present and future,
- All intangibles, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future.

- Assipnment or ceeation of sceurity interest in 1) all the dight, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borcower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the relevant
counter-parties to such project documents, it} all the righrs, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrowet in the clearances. iii) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in any letter of credit, guarantees, performance bond provided by any party to the
Project Documents and iv) all Insurance Couteacts/ Insurance proceeds.
- Bscrow Account, Debt Service Reserve, other reserves and any other bank accounts of the bottower
wherever maintained.
- Pledpe of all the shares (cquity and preference) held by the sponsors representing 51% of the paid up share
capital

The facilitics catry an interest rate ranging from 10.95% to 12.80% (31 March 2043: 11.75% 1o 13.30%)

(1v) Unsecuted term loans to the tune of $323,350,250 (31 March 2013: T569,174,603) borrowed by Gayatri Jhansi
Roadways Limited and Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited from its shatcholder's represents zero interest
subordinate sharcholder's contribution repayable aftet the repaymient of secuted loans from banks and financial
institutions.

(v) Secured term loans aggrepating to $1,502,926,961 (31 March 2013: ¥1,646,396,210) obrained by Cyberalad
Tixpressways Limited is sccured by way of fisst pari passu charge in favour of the lenders/security agent to the
project by way of hypothecation of:

1) All monies including annuity reccivable from the customer to the credit of the escrow account.

b) All rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands of the company under project agreements subject to
the provisions of the concession agrecment.

¢) Assignment of rights, ttle and interest 1o or in favor of the lenders pursuant to and in accordance with the
substitution agreement as per the provisions of the financing documents of the project,

The facilitics carry an interest rate of 11,50% (31 March 2013: 11.50%)

(vi) Secured teem loans aggrepating to ¥1,104,362,660 (31 March 2013: ¥1,221,949,666) obtained by Hyderabad
Expressways Limited is secured by way of first pari passu charge in favour of the lendees/security agent to the
project by way of hypathecation of:

4} All monies including annuity receivable from the customer to the credit of the escrow account.

b) Al rights, title, interest, benefits, daims and demands of the company under project agreements subject to
the provisions of the concession agreement.

¢) Assignment of tights, title and interest to or in favor of the lenders pursuant to and in accordance with the
substitution agreement as per the provisions of the financing documents of the project.

‘The facilities carry an intetest rate of 11.50% (31 March 2013 11.50%)




Gayatri Infea Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information

(All amounts tn ¥ unless otherwise stated)

9. Long-term borrowings (continued)

(vii) Sccured term loans aggregaung to 32,070,148,900 (31 March 2013; %2,153,819,067) obtained by Western UD
‘Tollways Limited are sccured by way of:
(a) first mortgage and charge in a form satisfactory to all company’s immovable propertics, present and futare
expect project asscts.
(b) first charge by way of hypotheeation of all the company’s movables, including movable plant and machinery,
present and [uture except the project assets, machinery sparcs, rools and accessories, furniture, hxtares, vehicles
and all other movable assets.
(¢) A first charge on operating cash fows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsocver
nature and wherever atising preseat or futare.
(d) subject to provisions of provisions on concession agreement, first charge on the escrow account, debt
service reserve, MMR and other reserves.
(¢) A first pledge of 100% of paid up capital tll three years of commencement of commercial operations and
thereafter minimum 51% of total paidup capital of the company held by the promoters during the tenure of the
loan.
The facilities carry an intecest rate ranging from 11.50% to 14.00% (31 March 2013: 9.95% to 14.00%)

(vifi) Unsecuted rerm loans to the tune of 245,824,353 (31 March 2043: Nil) is obtained by Western UP Tollways
Limited from related parties carrying interest at the rate of 12% (31 March 2013: Nil)

(c) Terms of repayment for secured loans from banks and others and the unsecured loans from others

As at
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Upto 1 year 1,950,794,651 519,359,679
2 to 5 years 3 556,813,920 4,535,527 447
Above 5 years 6,107,154,682 7,130,420,419
11,614,763,253 12,185,307,545

Detalls of averdue installments of princlpal and interest on secured and unsecured loans from banks
{d) and others

As at
3 March 2014 31 March 2013
Princlpal
0-30 days 70,624,953 80,696,435
nterest
0-30 days 44,424 542 96,861,682
30-90 days 75,165,659 110,126,828
90-180 days 1,296,930 12,464,132
above 180 days 1,609,820 -
122,496,950 219,452,642
10. Other long-term liabllitles
As at
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Interest accured but not due 26,549,030 -
26,549,030 -




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summaty of significant accoumting policies and other explanatory information

{All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

11. Provislons

As at

31 Marcch 2014 31 March 2013

a) Long-term

Provision for periodic maintenance

As at heginning of the year 475,131,266 298,233,635
Add: Charge for the year 191,726,198 176,897,631
Less: Transferred during the year {471,051,520) -
As at end of the year 195,805,943 475,131,266
Provision for pratity and compensated absences 95,060 154,840
195,901,003 475,286,106
b) Short-term
Provision for periodic maintenance 488,862,896 13,631 981
488,862,896 13,631,981

12. Short-term borrowings

As at
31 March 2014 3t March 2013
Unsecured
-from related parties 354,781,861 330,488,894

354,781,861 330,488,804
Represents unsecured loans from related pactics repayable on demand along with interest at the rate of 16% per

annum (31 March 2013: 16%).

13. Trade payahles
Based on information available with the Company, as at 31 March 2014 (31 March 2013: Nil), there are no
suppliets who ate repistered as micro and snall enterprises under the pravisions of the Micro, Small and
Medinum Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

14. Other current liabilltles

As at
31 Macch 2014 31 March 2013
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note %) 2,071,377,209 639,942,239
Interest accrued and due on horrowings* 144,052,761 274,135,219
Tnterest accrued but not due on borrowings 64,327 015 59,805,041
Statutory liabilities 59,122,644 35,841,314
Dues to related party 82,506,809 24,117,917
Others 31,144 805 50,388,012
2,452,531,243 1,084,229,742

¥ Includes interest accured and due on short-term hotrowings from related partes to the tune of 321,555,811
(31 March 2013: T54,682,577)




Gayatsi Infra Ventures Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(Al amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

15. Tanglble Assets

Pla!“ and F“n.limre Vehicles Qfﬁce Computers Total
equipment  and fixtures cquipments

Gross block

Asat 1 April 2012 412712 1050262 6128920 2,177,595 1,989,021 11,758,519
Additions during the yeat - 16,660 33,842 50,502
Disposals 49,980 127,884 - 780,067 - 957,931
As at 31 Match 2013 362,732 922,378 6,128,929 1,414,188 2,022,863 10,851,090
Additions during the year - - 1,127,086 - 14,000 1,141,086
Disposals - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2014 362,732 922,378 7,256,015 1,414,188 2,036,863 11,992,176
Depreciation

Asat 1 April 2012 193,650 485992 2,551,405 938,763 837,034 5,006,904
Chatge for the year 006,443 70,963 582,247 163,563 252,452 1,135,668
Deletions / adjustments 13,563 97,192 - 408,361 - 519,116
Asat 31 March 2013 246,530 459,763 3,133,712 693,965 1,089,486 5,623,456
Charge for the year 66,441 68,401 637,080 152,759 246,109 1,170,796
Deletions - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2014 312,971 528,164 3,770,798 846,724 1,335,595 6,794,252
Net block

As at 31 March 2014 49,761 394,214 3,485,217 567,464 701,268 5,197,924

As at 31 March 2013 116,202 462,615 2995217 720,223 933,377 5,227,634




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Summary of sighificant accounting policics and other explanatory information

(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

16.

17.

Intangible assets

As at
Carrlage way 31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Gross block
At the beginning of the year 13,153,100,469 10,816,977,135
Additions during the year 852,806,157 2,336,123,334
Adjustments (refer note 8) 276,262,000 -
At the end of the year 13,729,644,626 13,153,100,469
Accumulated amortisation
At the beginning of the yeat 1,727,036,155 923,858,232
Chatge for the year 809,884,446 803,177,923
At the end of the year 2,536,920,601 1,727,036,155
Net block 11,192,724,025 11,426,064,314
Investinents
As at
31 March 2014 31 March 2013

a) Non-current
Unguoted trade investments of T10 each fully paid:
-fellow subsidiaries
16,680 cquity shares (31 March 2013: 16,680), representing 31.29%
(31 Match 2013: 31.29%) in Indore Dewas Tollways Limited 166,800 166,800

166,800 166,800
-othets
15,647 cquity shares (31 March 2013: 15,647), representing 11.72%
(31 March 2013: 11.72%) in HKR Roadways Limited 156,470 156,470

156,470 156,470
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 323,270 323,270
b) Current
Other than trade and unquoted - valued at lowet cost or fait
value
Investment 1n mutual funds
HDIEFC liquid fund - Dividend - Daily Reinvest
[1,304,330.5 (31 March 2013: Nil) units of T10 cach fully paid up}* 13,301,813 -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 13,301,813 -

*Represents group's share of 50%, out of the total units of 2,608,659 (31 March 2013: Nil)




Gayatti Infra Ventures Limited

Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(All amounts in % unless otherwise stated)

18.

b)

19.

20.

Loans and advances
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As at
31 Macch 2014 31 Macch 2013
(Unsccured, considered good)
Long-tetm
Adwances to related partics
- holding company - 37,013,924
- fellow subsidiaries 363,000,000 363,000,000
- others 684,087,309 684,087,309
Security depasits 1,713,622 1,710,682
Advance tax (net of provision) 101,269,887 89,141,515
1,150,070,818 1,174,953,430
Shott-term
Advances to related pattics
- holding company 708,679,403 718,859,997
- fellow subsidiaries 6,256,850 6,256,850
- others 38,888,110 378,093,482
753,824,363 1,103,210,329
Trade receivables
As at
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
(Unsecured, considered good)
Due fot a period exceeding six months 43,577,608 2,500,000
Other receivables 554,875,480 595,960,732
598,453,088 598,460,732
Cash and cash equivalents
As at
31 March 2014 31 Macch 2013
Cash on hand 1,259,405 2,635,772
Balances with banks
- iy current aceouits 272,665,023 149,567,567
- in deposit accounts - 701,910
273,924,428 152,905,249
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limired
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

21. Other current assets

As at
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
(unsecured, considered good)
Accrued annuity 209,444 879 209 444, 868
Prepaid expenses 293 211 630,121
Othets 12,036,487 9,613,750
221,774,577 219,688,739

. Aevenue from operations

For the year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

Annuity income 1,777,893,707 1,773,281,601
Toll collections 430,177,247 318,109,494
Operations and maintenance support 62,132,000 66,047,167
Income from change of work scope 1,104,824 9,848,637
Financial and consultancy service - 50,000,000
2,271,307,778 2,217,286,899

. Qther income

For the year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

Interest income 908,901 36,678,952
Income from mutaal funds 206,207,320 17,925,428
Miscellaneous teceipts 5,726 481 1,582,909
32,842,702 56,187,289

. Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

Salaries and wages 27,947,589 19,560,414
Staff welfare expenses 58,432 168,101
Contribution to provident and other fund 97,423 148,025
28,103,444 19,876,540

a) Significant assumptions for gratuity and compensated abscnces

For the year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Discount Rate 8% 8%
Expected rate of salary increases % 5%
Expected average future seevice of employees 22 Years 20 Years

. Finance costs

For the year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Interest on borrowings 1,446,570,048 1,520,956,837
Other botrowing costs 16,146,051 12,664,505
1,462,716,099 1,533,621,342
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Gayatri Infra Ventotes Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(Al amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

26. Other expenses

For the year ended

31 March 2014 31 Masch 2013
"T'oll operating expensces 24,371,669 24371139
Repairs and maintenance - cartiage way 317,157,171 288,640,040
Insurance expenses 2,826,455 3,726,822
Consultancy and professional charges 11,909,675 13,939,738
Rent 4,064,469 3,732,014
Payments to the auditors as
- audit fees 337,080 224720
- other matters 955,060 -
Travelling and conveyance 3,029,278 3,071,559
Miscellaneous expenses 18,805,300 44,049 160
383,456,157 381,755,198
27. Commitments and contingent liabllitles:
31 March 2014 31 March 2013
a) Contingent liability

Disputed income tax ducs 91,634,108 1,039,900
Transit fee on forest produce disputed by the subsidiarics 296,244,291 296,244,291
Cess under Building .:md ()Alhcr Construction Wotkers” Welfare Cess Act 12,201,000 12,201,000

1956 and rules 1988 in a jointly controlled entity

b) Commitments

Confracts remaning to be executed on capital accounts (net of advances) 150,394,796 260,057,469

Joint and several liability i respect of investment in associate and other
projects

28, Related party transactions

a) Names of the related partics and description of relationship

Noat ascertainable

Not ascettainable

Name of the related party Nature of relationship

Gayatri Projects Limited (Holding Company

Indore Dewas Tollways Limited
Deep Corporation Private Limited
ITKR Roadways Limited

Balaji Highways II;ldmg Private Limited

licllow Subsidiary )
Enterprises in which KMP and/or their
relatives have significant influence

Sharcholders' having significant influence
in a jointly controlled entity

1L & FS Engineering & Construction C(V)mp:my Limited (T1 & I75)
Terea Projects Limited

7{ndia I:]fra:i[;_rLlcrurc Fund
NCC Limited
NCC Infrastructure oldings Limited
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

b) Transactions with related partics

For the year ended

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Transactions with Gayatri Projects Limited (GPL)
Payments made by GPL. on behalf of the group townrids
- Interest on loans 248,116,702 55,000,000
- Salaties 2,167,100
- Loan management fees 13,651,740 -
- Reimbursement of expenses 32,102,275
- Advance to suhconfractor - 250,000
- Advance to a jointly controlled entity - 10,250,000
Amonntr paid to GPL. towards
- Shared services availed 14,590,000 15,833,000
- Interest on horrowings 23,645,024 5,435,650
- Repairs and matntenance 105,572,358 83,564,827
- Development expenditure of intangible assets 395,708,800 102,036,145
- Major maintenance 22,412,865 22412,865
- Special advance - 3,029,294
- Labour cess recoverable - 2,704,756
- Reimbursement of expenses 248,000 3,083,810
Transactions with Deep Corporation Limited
Rent 1,549,699 1,766,597
Transactions with HKR Roadways Limited
Reimbutsement of expenses - 50,000,000
Income from vehicle hire chaggres 3,072,300 -
Transactions with IL & FS
Interest on loans 16,984,000 17,622,838
Transactions with NCC Limited
Intecest on unsecured term loan 13,852,713 -
Reimbursement of expenses 194,922 -
Transactions with NCC Infrastructure Holdings Limited
Management fees paid 2,642,707 2,642,707
¢) Balances receivable/ (payable)
As at
3 March 2014 31 March 2013
Gayatti Projects Limited 1,834,204 337,443,144
Indore Dewas Tollways Limited 368,937,686 368,937,686
HKR Roadways Limited 687,471,873 684,399,573
Balaji Highways Flolding Privare Limited 319,164 319,164
IL & TS Lingineering & Construction Company Limited (182,026,949) (175,282,521)
‘Terra Projects Limited (147,094,911) (141,611,497
India Infrastructure Fund (322,400,000) (322,400,000)
NCC Limited 130,472,309 118,694,025
NCC Infrastructure Holdings Limited 194,132,902 194,132,902
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Gayatr: Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(Al amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

29. Deferred tax
In the absence of virtual certainty of future taxable profits supporied by convincing evidence, the group has not created
deferred tax assets on unabsorbed business losses and ather timing differences. The group would be able to use
unabsorbed tax depreciation and business losses to set of f against future taxable income for a specified period.

30. Segment reporting
Based on the group's business niodel and considering the mernal financial reporting to the management, subsidiaries
and joint ventures which are engaged in the business of construction in the transport infrastructure has been
considercd as the only repurtable sepment. Further all the services are rendered only in India. Hence there are no
additional disclosures requited to be provided in terms of Accounting Standatd 17 on "Segment Reporting.

31. Comparatlves
The financial statements for the previous period have been regrouped / ceacranged to conform to the current yeat
presentation wherever eequired,

This is the summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information referred to in our report of even

date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Difedtors of
{formerly Walker, Chandiok & Co) Gayatri Infra Venturesg Limited

Chartered Accountants

T .V.éndccp Kuir Redily ].Brij Mohan Red

Director

per Sanjay Kimar Jain

Partner

. Director
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Place: Hyderabad N ) Place: Hyderabad
Date: 27 May 2014 Date: 27 May 2014
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BOARDS’ REPORT
To
The Members,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 7t Annual Report of your Company and the Audited Financial

Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
The following table depicts the financial results of your Company for the year ending 315t March 2015:

Rs.

S. No. Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2015 | For the year ended 31.03.2014
1 Income from Operations - -
2 Other Income 2,31,85,346 2,24,40,274
Total Income 2,31,85,346 2,24,40,274

3 Employee Benefits Expense 19,29,000 24.48,000
4 | Finance Costs 23,97,32,020 23,57,39,096
5 Depreciation 5,96,444 2,24,408
6 Other Expenses 48,03,521 76,13,944
Total Expenditure 24,70,60,985 24,60,25,448

7 Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (22,38,75,639) (22,35,85,174)
8 Less: Provision for Tax - -
9 Profit/(Loss) After Tax (22,38,75,639) (22,35,85,174)

2. THE YEAR IN RETROSPECT

The Financial Year 2014-15 was a difficult year for your Company, owing to severe shortfall of funds throughout the
yeat. Hence, apart from the fact that the Company did not participate in bidding for any new projects, your Company
also did not honour Interest commitments on the Tetm Loan availed from IL&FS Financial Services Ltd. on a timely
basis. The loss for the current year is majotly due to the Intetest cost being borne by your Company on the Term Loan

availed from IL&FS Financial Services Ltd. This Term Loan has been rolled over upto June 2015.

Your Company did not bid for any new projects, due to shortage of funds. In view of a stable government at the

centre, it can be expected that the infrastructure matket may revive to a large extent.

The members are aware that your Company has advanced an amount of Rs.13.67 Crores to Cybetrabad Expressways
Ltd. as per the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) dated 5t August 2011, which would bear an Interest rate of
16% p.a. Once the said amount is repaid by Cyberabad Expressways Ltd., your Company would be in a better position

with respect to cash flows. M/s Cyberabad Expressways Ltd. has to receive arrears of Annuity of Rs.140.89 Crores,



apart from a bonus annuity, alongwith Interest thereon for delayed payments, from which the dues payable to your

Company will be cleared.
FUTURE OUTLOOK

At the outset, your Directors foresee an urgent and immediate need of funds for the Company, so as to enable
setvicing the Interest on Term Loan from IL&FS Financial Services Ltd. on quarterly basis. At present, your Company

does not have funds to meet the regular administrative expenses.

Your Directors are exploring various possible avenues in this regard.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Extracts of Annual Return is prepared in Form MGT-9 as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and the same is enclosed as Annexure-1.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year 5 Board Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the

period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your

Directots make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

a. that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b. that such accounting policies and applied them consistently and judgement and estimates have been made that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2015 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e. that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were
operating effectively.

f.  that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and

operating effectively.




In

10.

11.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. M.V. Narasimha Rao as Additional Director of the Company in the
category of Independent Directors with effect from 3 March, 2015 to 20d March, 2016.

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Ch. Hari Vithal Rao, 2 Non-Executive Directors of the Company as an
Independent Directors with effect from 3« March, 2015 to 2d March, 2019.

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.
DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The independent directors have submitted the declaration of independence, as required pursuant to section 149(7) of

the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the critetia of independence as provided in sub-section(6).
RE-APPOINTMENTS

Mr. T.V. Sandeep Kumar Reddy, Director of the Company is retiring by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for

re-appointment.

POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The Nomination and Remuneration (N&R) Committee has adopted a Charter which, inter alia, deals with the manner

of selection of Board of Directors and CEO & Managing Director and their remuneration.

AUDITORS REPORT

There are no qualifications in the Auditors Report.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,

2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The particulars of contracts or atrangements with the related parties referred to in Section 188 in the Form AOC — 2 is

annexed herewith as Annexure-2.




14. TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO RESERVES

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

"The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the general reserve for the Financial Year ended 315t March,

2015.
DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on the Equity Shares for the financial year ended 31st

March, 2015.
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There has been no material change and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occuttred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of

the report.
There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as

requited under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is Nil.

STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY '

As already mentioned above, your Company has invested in various Build, Operate & Transfer (BOT) Road Assets,
from which there has been no return tll date. Your Company is regulatly monitoring these investments, so as to obtain

returns, if any, in the future, so that the loan commitments ate honoured.

Apart from the above, your Company has ensured that adequate operating procedures are developed and implemented
on a consistent basis, so as to ensure that the financial statements of the Company are free from material

misstatements.

POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING THE YEAR.

The policy developed and implemented by the Company on Cotporate Social Responsibility initiatives taken during the

year is Nil as the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in this regard are not applicable to the Company.




20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of
its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination &

Remuneration Committees.
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the Financial Year ending on 31t March 2015, your Company had two subsidiaries, namely Gayatri Jhansi
Roadways Ltd. and Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Ltd. and three Jointly Controlled Entities, namely, Hyderabad
Expressways Ltd., Cyberabad Expressways Ltd., Western UP Tollway Ltd.

The names of companies which have become or ceased to be Company’s Subsidiaries, joint ventures or

associate companies during the year

During the Financial Year, no company is ceased as Company’s subsidiary, joint venture or associate company.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with Accounting Standards AS — 21 and AS — 27 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014; your Directors have pleasure in attaching the Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year

ended 31t March 2015, which forms part of the Annual Report and accounts.

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF
SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/ JOINT VENTURES

A Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures

i1 the Form AOC -1 is annexed herewith as Annexure-3.
DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and

the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

Thete ate no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going concern

status of the Company and its future operations.




26.

217.

28.

29.

30.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Company’s Auditors, Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad bearing ICAI Regn. No.
001076N/N500013 who retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company is eligible for reappointment.

They have confirmed their eligibility under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder

for reappointment as Auditors of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There are no employees in the Company who ate drawing prescribed salary pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule, 5

of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a vigil mechanism to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The details of the Vigil
Mechanism Policy are available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during

business hours on working days of the Company.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Company has ensured that appropriate policies and procedures are adopted for ensuring orderly and efficient
conduct of the business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, prevention and
detection of fraud and error, the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and the timely preparation of

reliable financial information.
HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Your Company lays emphasis on competence and commitment of its human capital recognizing its pivotal role for

organizational growth.

During the year, the Company maintained a record of peaceful employee relations. Your Directors wish to place on

record their appreciation for the commitment shown by the employees throughout the year.
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ANNEXURE -1

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended 31.03.2015
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U45209TG2008PLCO57269

Registration Date

22/01/2008

Name of the Company

GAYATRI INFRA VENTURES LIMITED

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Company Limited by Shares/ Indian Non
Government Company

Address of the Registered Office and
contact details

1st Floor, 6-3-1090, TSR Towers, Rajbhavan Road,
Somajiguda, Hyderabad - 500082, Telangana.

E Mail: rajkumar@givl.co.in,

Tel: 040-23310330

Whether listed company

Unlisted

Natme, address and contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

AARTHI CONSULTANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: 1-2-285, Domalguda,
Hyderabad - 500029 , Telangana.

E Mail: info(@aarthiconsultants.com ,

Tel: 040-27638111

IL. Principal Business Activities of the Company

All the Business Activities contributing 10% ot mote of the total turnover of the Company shall be

stated:
S1. Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of the
No. products / services service company

1 Holding activities 64200 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

SL Name and address CIN/GLN

No. | of the Company

Applicable
Section

% of shates
held

Holding/
Subsidiaty/
Associate

1 Gayatri Projects
Limited, 1st Floot, 6-3-
1090, TSR Towets,
Rajbhavan Road,
Somajiguda,
Hyderabad - 500082,
Telangana.

1.99999TG1989PLC057289

Holding 70.59% 2(46)

2 Gayatri Jhansi
Roadways Limited, 1st
Floor, 6-3-1090, TSR
Towers, Rajbhavan
Road, Somajiguda,

U50403TG2006PLC0O50569

Subsidiary | 51% 2(87)




Hyderabad - 500082,

Telangana.

3 Gayatri Lalitpur
Roadways Limited, 1st
Floor, 6-3-1090, TSR
Towers, Rajbhavan
Road, Somajiguda,
Hyderabad - 500082,
Telangana.

U45203TG2006PLCO50554 | Subsidiary 51%

2(87)

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

Shatreholders

No. of Shares held at the end of the

year year

%
Chan
ge

durin

the
year

Demat Physical | Total % of | Dema | Physical

total |t
Shar
es

Total % of
total
Shar
es

A. Promotets

(1) Indian

a) Individual / -
HUF

b) Central Govt. -

c) State Govt.(s)

d) Bodies - 12,50,000 | 12,50,000 | 70.59 - 12,50,000

Corporate

12,50,000 | 70.59

e) Banks / FI -

f) Any Other.... -

Sub-Total (A)(1): - 12,50,000 | 12,50,000 | 70.59 - 12,50,000

12,50,000 | 70.59

(2) Foreign -

a) NRIs - -
Individuals

b) Other - -
Individuals

) Bodies -
Corporate

d) Banks / FI -

e) Any Other.... -

Sub-Total (A)(2): -

Total - 12,50,000 | 12,50,000 | 70.59 - 12,50,000

Shareholding of
Promoters (A) =

AM+A)(2)

12,50,000 | 70.59

B. Public
Shareholding

(1) Institutions




-a) Mutual Funds
/ UTI

b) Banks / FI

¢) Central Govt.

d) State Govt.(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) FIIs

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

i)} Others (specify)

Sub-Total (B)(1):

(2) Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corporate

1) Indian

ii) Overseas

5,20,833

5,20,833

29.41

5,20,833

5,20,833

29.41

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 11akh

1) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs 1

lakh

¢) Others
(specify)

Sub-Total (B)(2):

5,20,833

5,20,833

29.41

5,20,833

5,20,833

29.41

Total Public
Shareholding
51)3)=(B) M+B)(

5,20,833

5,20,833

29.41

5,20,833

5,20,833

29.41

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

17,70,833

17,70,833

100

17,70,833

17,70,833

100




ii) Shareholding of Promoters

S.No. | Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of the | Shareholding at the end of the year % change in
Name year shareholding
No. of % of %of Shares | No. of % of total | %of Shares | duting the
Shares total Pledged / Shares Shares of | Pledged / year
Shares of | encumbered the encumbered
the to total company | to total
company | shares shares
1 Gayatri Projects Ltd | 12,47,000 | 70.42 67.76 12,47,000 | 70.42 67.76 -
2 T. Indira Reddy - - -
(Nominee of M/s.
Gayati Projects 1,000 0.06 1,000 0.06
Limited)
3 T.V. Sandeep - - -
Kumar Reddy
(Nominee of M/s. 1,000 0.06 1,000 0.06
Gayatri Projects
Limited)
4 T. Sarita Reddy - - -
(Nominee of M/s. 700 0.04 700 0.04
Gayatri Projects
Limited)
5 Dr. C. Satyanarayana - - -
(Nomipee of M/s. 100 0.01 100 0.01
Gayatri Projects
Limited)
6 P. Maruthi Babu - - -
(Normpee qu/s. 100 0.01 100 0.01
Gayatri Projects
Limited)
7 Ch. Harivithal Rao - - -
(Nominee of M/s. | 44, 0.01 100 0.01
Gayatri Projects
Limited)
Total 12,50,000 | 70.59 12,50,000 | 70.59
iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change)
S. Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
No of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total No. of % of total
shares of the | shares shares of
company the
company
At the beginning of the year 1250000 70.59
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year 1250000 70.59 - -




iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholdets (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs)

Cumulative Shareholding

SL For Each of the Top 10 | Shareholding at the beginning

No.

Shateholders

of the year

during the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

At the beginning of
the year

5,20,833

29.41

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding duting the
year specifying the
teasons for increase /
decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity
etc):

At the End of the year
( or on the date of
separation, if
separated during the
year)

5,20,833

29.41

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SL For Each of the Top 10 | Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
No. Shareholders of the year during the year
No. of shares | % of total No. of shares | % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of - - - -
the year

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding during the
year specifying the
reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

At the End of the year




V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including intetest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at
the beginning of
the financial year
1) Principal Amount | 1,35,00,00,000 51,72,55,218 - 1,86,72,55,218
ii) Interest due but | 6,44,91,779 - - 6,44,91,779
not paid
i) Interest accrued | 4,93,11,602 - - 4,93,11,602
but not
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,46,38,03,381 51,72,55,218 - 1,98,10,58,599
Change in
Indebtedness
during the
financial year
Addition 1,19,46,120 24,05,95,583 - 25,25,41,703
Reduction 26,73,870 - - 26,73,870
Net Change 92,72,250 24,05,95,583 - 24,98,67,833
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial
year
1) Principal Amount | 1,35,00,00,000 27,66,59,635 - 1,62,66,59,635
i) Interest due but | 5,2545,659 - - 5,25,45,659
not paid
iif) Interest accrued | 5,19,85,472 - - 5,19,85,472
but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,45,45,31,131 27,66,59,635 - 1,73,11,90,766




VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Directot, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SL. | Particulars of Remuneration
no.

Name of MD/WTD/
Manager

Total Amount

1. Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in Section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites under
Section 17(2) Income Tax Act,
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salaty under
Section 17(3) Income Tax Act,
1961

L

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

@

as % of profit

others, specify...

5. Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors:
1. Independent Directors

SI. | Particulars of Remuneration
no.

Name of
Directors

Total Amount

Mr. M.V.N. Rao Ch.Harivithal Rao

-Fee for attending
Board/Committee
Meetings

- 15,000/-

-Commission

- Others, please
specify

Total (B)(1)




2. Other Non Executive Directors

Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Total Amount
no. Directors

-Fee for attending - - -
Board/Committee
Meetings

-Commission - - -

- Others, please - - -
specify

Total (B)(2) ; N -

Total (B)= (B)(I)*+ (B)(2)

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD

SI. | Particulars of Key Managerial Petsonnel
no. | Remuneration

CEO Company CFO Total
Sectetary

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions - - - -
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) | - - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under | - - - -
section 17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961

Stock Option - - - _

Sweat Equity - - _ -

Commission - - - -

as % of profit - - _ _

others, specify... - - - -




5. | Others, please - - - -
specify

Total - _ - .

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: -N.A.-

Type Section of Brief Details of | Authority Appeal
the Description Penalty / [RD / NCLT | made,
Companies Punishment/ |/ COURT] if any
Act Compounding (give
fees imposed Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty | - - . - .

Punishment - - . . .

Compounding -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty - - . . B

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - . -

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 20, 2015

J. BRIf MOHAN RED
DIRECTOR
DIN: 00005573 DIN: 00012927




ANNEXURE-2

Form No. AOC-2
(Putsuant to clanse (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions

under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

(2) Name(s) of the related party and nature of telationship

(b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts / atrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts ot arrangements or

transactions including the value, if any

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or -
N

arrangements ot transactions

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to section

188




r:-

2. Details of material contracts or atrangement ot transactions at arm’s length basis

(2) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship During the year, no material contracts ot
arrangements have been entered into by the
Company.
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Not Applicable °
(c) Duration of the contracts / atrangements/transactions Not Applicable
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Not Applicable
transactions including the value, if any:
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: Not Applicable
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Begard

Place: Hyderabad T.VS Déﬁp KU REDDY J. BRIJ

Date: 20 May 2015 DIRECTOR
DIN:00005573

DIRECTOR
DIN:00012927



Form AOC-1

ANNEXURE -3

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014)

Statement containing salient featutes of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate
companies/ joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs)

1. SL. No. 1 2

2. Name of the subsidiary Gayatei Jhansi Gayate Lal.itp.ur
Roadways Limited Roadways Limited

3. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if NA NA.

different from the holding company’s reporting period

4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last

date of the relevant Financial year in the case of Indian Rupees Indian Rupees

foreign subsidiaries.

5. Share capital Rs.42,40,00,000/ - Rs.31,79,80,060

6. Resetves & surplus (Rs.24,79,50,138/-) (Rs.18,75,83,165/-)

7. Total assets Rs.369,35,49,271/- Rs.280,81,43,561

8. Total Liabilities Rs.369,35,49,271/- Rs.280,81,43,561

9. Investments Nil Nil

10. Turnover Rs.59,90,00,000/- Rs.47,90,00,000/-

11. Profit / (Loss) before taxation (Rs.5,78,45,306/-) (Rs.2,26,52,099/-)

12. Provision for taxation

13. Profit / (Loss) after taxation (Rs.5,78,45,306/-) (Rs.2,26,52,099/-)
14. Proposed Dividend - -
15. % of shareholding 51% 51%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which ate yet to commence operations: Nil

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil




Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies

and Joint Ventures
Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Hyderabad Cyberabad Western UP
Expressways Limited Expressways Tollway Limited
Limited
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31 March 2015 31 March 2015 31 March 2015
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures 50% 50% 49%
held by the company on the year end
No. 9,90,000 9,90,000 49,36,850
Amount of Investment in Rs.99,00,000/- Rs.99,00,000/- Rs.46,06,09,996/-
Associates/Joint Venture
Extent of Holding % 50% 50% 49%
3. Description of how there is Voting power above | Voting power above Voting power
significant influence 20% 20% above 20%
4. Reason why the associate/joint N.A. N.A. N.A.
venture is not consolidated
6. Networth attributable to (Rs.5,68,01042/-) (Rs.27,68,56,993/-) | Rs.45,29,28,636/-
Shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet
7. Profit / (Loss) for the year Rs.83,71,192/- (Rs.18,02,17,476/-) | (Rs.11,33,18,233/-)
i. Considered in Consolidation Rs.83,71,192/- (Rs.18,02,17,476/-) | (Rs.11,33,18,233/-)
1. Not Considered in Consolidation - - -

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of associates or joint ventutes which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Hyderabad T.V SANDEEP KUMAR REDDY J. BRI MOHAN REDD
Date: 20 May 2015 DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN:00005573 DIN:00012927
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Independent Auditot’s Report

To the Members of Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Gayatri Infra
Ventures Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015,
the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Boatd of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with tespect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements, that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). This
responsibi]ity also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act; safeguarding the assets of the Company; preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of approptiate accounting policies;

AN making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
nd maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that wete operaﬁng effectively for

Chartered Accountants : . Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered with limited liability
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10.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Out responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based
on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which ate required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the standalone financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are approptiate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting

principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March
2015, and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatoty Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

the standalone financial statements dealt with by this repdrt are in agreement with the
books of account; ‘

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

Chartered Accountants
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e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2015 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act; and

f.  with respect to the other mattets to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i as detailed in Note 18 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has
disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its standalone financial position;

i. the Company did not have any long-tetm contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii.  there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Eor Wﬁer Chandiok & LP U@

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

per Sangdy Kumar Jain
Partner

Place : Hyderabad
Date :20 May 2015

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Repott of even date to the members of Gayatri
Infra Ventures Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the
normal course of audit, we report that:

() (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically vetified by the management during the year and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such vetification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets.

(i) (a) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (i)
of the Order are not applicable.

(i)  The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii) (a) and 3(iii) (b) of the Order are not
applicable.

(tv)  Owing to the nature of its business, the Company does not maintain any physical
inventories or sells any goods. Further, there are no transactions pertaining to purchase of
fixed assets or sales of setvices. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order with respect to
putchase of inventories and fixed assets and sale of goods and services is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi)  Owing to the nature of its operations, the Company does not have any revenue from
sale of products or services during the year. Accordingly, the provisions relating to
maintenance of cost records specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s activities are not applicable.

(vi)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,

' sales-tax, wealth tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
matetial statutory dues are not applicable to the company. Undisputed statutory dues
including income tax and setvice tax, as applicable, have not been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities and there have been significant delays in a large
number of cases. Undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof, which were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of mote than six months from the date they
became payable are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Petiod to which Date of
Due date

statute dues R} the amount relates payment
Income Tax | Tax deducted Financial year ) .
Act, 1961 At SOUrCe 7,730,573 201314 Various dates | Not yet paid
Income Tax | Tax deducted Financial year ) .
Act, 1961 At source 10,294,125 201415 Various dates | Not yet paid
The Finance Financial year 5 September

Setvice tax 5,500,178 Not yet paid

Act, 1994

2012-13 2012

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Gayatri
Infra Ventures Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

(b) The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as

follows:
Name of | Nature | Amount | Amount paid Pegod fo Forum where dispute
the statute | of dues R®) under protest (%) which the is pending
amount relates
Income Income Financial vear Commissioner of
Tax Act, | g 892,926 455023 | 000" og Income-tax
1961 (Appeals), Hyderabad

() There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vii)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

(vii) In our opinion, the Company’s accumulated losses at the end of the financial year are
less than fifty percent of its net worth. The Company has incurred cash losses in the
current and the immediately preceding financial year.

(ix)  There are no dues payable to banks or debenture-holders. The Company has
defaulted in repayment of interest amounting to 267,491,779 to financial institution
during the year, with the period of delay ranging from 30 to 394 days. Of these, an
amount of X203,000,000 was repaid before the balance sheet date and the unpaid
overdue instalments as at 31 March 2015 are X64,491,779.

(x)  The Company has not given any guarantees for loans taken by others from banks or
financial institutions. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x) of the Order are not
applicable.

(xi)  In our opinion, the Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which these
loans were obtained.

(xi)  No fraud on or by the Company has been noticed ot reported during the period covered
by our audit.

< 2
For %alket Chandiok & EO‘LLP Uf

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/ N500013

. per Sany Kumlar Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 207660

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 20 May 2015

Chartered Accountants




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015
(Al amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

As at
Notes 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 17,708,330 17,708,330
Reserves and surplus 4 1,334,502,912 1,558,528,464
1,352,211,242 1,576,236,794
Non current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 - -
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 6 517,255,218 276,659,635
Trade payables 7 1,607,084 1,524,064
Other cusrent liabilities 8 1,509,389,676 1,512,441,352
2,028,251,978 1,790,625,051
Total 3,380,463,220 3,366,861,845
Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
- Tangible assets 9 46,683 793,040
Non-current investments 10 864,063,206 859,113,206
Long-term loans and advances 11 2,304,828,441 2,316,966,293
3,168,938,330 3,176,872,539
Current assets
Trade receivables 12 2,826,100 2,826,100
Cash and cash equivalents 13 7,675,408 79,979
Short-term loans and advances 11 201,023,382 187,083,227
211,524,890 189,989,306
Total 3,380,463,220 3,366,861,845

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet sgferred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP g

Chartered Accougtants

For and on behalf of the Board of Dyfectors of

Director
(DIN : 00012927)

- Director
(DIN : 00005573)

Partner

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 20 May 2015

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 20 May 2015



Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2015

(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
Notes 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
I. Other income 14 23,185,346 22,440,274
II. Total revenue 23,185,346 22,440,274
III. Expenses
- Employee benefits expense 15 1,929,000 2,448,000
- Finance costs 16 239,732,020 235,739,096
- Depreciation 9 596,444 224408
- Other expenses 17 4,803,521 7,613,944
Total expenses 247,060,985 246,025,448
IV. Loss before tax (223,875,639) (223,585,174)
V. Tax expense
- Current tax/deferred tax - -
VI. Loss for the year (223,875,639) (223,585,174)
VII. Earnings / (loss) per equity share (EPES)
- Basic and diluted (126.42) (126.26)
Weighted average number of equity shares considered in
computation of EPES 1,770,833 1,770,833
Nominal value per equity share 10 10

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in

our report of even date.

of g WP
\%abl«c CJ%
or Walker Chandiok & Co LL

Chartered Accoyntants

Partner

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 20 May 2015

Director
(DIN : 00005573)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 20 May 2015

Director
(DIN : 00012927)




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2015
(All amounts in % unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before taxation (223,875,639) (223,585,174)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 596,444 224,408
Interest income (22,084,300) (21,928,558)
Interest on borrowings 235,858,056 228,154,525
Operating loss before working capital changes (9,505,439) (17,134,799)
Changes in working capital:
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 83,020 (167,700)
(Decrease)/increase in other current liabilities (12,323,926) 20,625,068
(Decrease) in long term loans and advances - 643,367
Decrease/ (increase) in short term loans and advances 5,750,510 (449,440)
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities before income tax (6,490,396) 20,651,295
Less: Income taxes refund/(paid) 7,187,852 (2,187,852)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities A (8,807,983) 1,328,644
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest income received 2,187,852 2,237,893
Dividend income 205,783 -
Net cash from investing activities B) 2,393,635 2,237,893
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest charges paid (226,585,806) (267,630,018)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 240,595,583 263,935,542
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities © 14,009,777 (3,694,476)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 7,595,429 (127,939)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 79,979 207,918
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7,675,408 79,979
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:
Cash on hand 268 3,595
Balances with banks in current accounts 7,675,140 76,384

7,675,408 79,979

This Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

Lol Barduata, 220 WP
For Walker Chandiok & Co LL

Chartered Accoungants

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 20 May 2015

J.Brij M
Director
(DIN : 00012927)

.V.\endeep Kumar Reddy
Director
(DIN : 00005573)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 20 May 2015




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(All amounts in X unless otherwise stated)

1.

Company overview

Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated during the year 2008 in accordance with
the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The Company, on its own and through its subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities, is in the business of construction, operations and maintenance of carriageways
on toll and annuity basis pursuant to the development agreements with the National and State Governments
and does investments in companies engaged in the construction, operations and maintenance of roads,
highways, vehicle bridges and tunnels and toll roads. Considering the nature of operations of the Company,
the management is of the view that the Company does not get classified as a Non-banking Finance Company,
in accordance with the guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India.

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on the
accrual basis of accouanting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
(“Indian GAAP”) and in compliance with the mandatory accounting standards (“AS”) as prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (as amended). Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies applied by the Company are
consistent with those used in the previous year.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other critetia set out in the Schedule III to the Act. Based on the nature of wotk and
the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose of
current and non-cutrent classification of assets and liabilities.

(b) Use of estimates

©

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requites management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts
of income and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include useful lives of fixed assets,
diminution other than temporary in the carrying value of long term investments and deferred taxes.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively in the current and future periods.

Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Tangible assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. The cost comptises the purchase price, freight, duties, taxes and any directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
prescribed under Schedule II to the Act.

Where the remaining useful life of an asset is Nil as on 1 April 2014, the catrying amount of such asset as
on that date has been adjusted against opening balance of Resetves and surplus, in accordance with
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(All amounts in X unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

(®)

®

@

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership are classified as operating leases. Lease rents in respect of non-cancellable operating leases are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the tenure of the lease.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Contract revenne

- Revenue from construction contracts is recognised using percentage of completion method as
prescribed under AS 7 “Construction Contracts” and with reference to stage of completion of the
contract activity at the reporting date. Depending on the nature and terms of individual contract, stage
of completion is determined on the basis of the proportion of costs incurred for the work performed
till date to the total estimated contract costs.

- Price escalation and other claims and / or variation in the contract work are included in contract
revenue when:

®  Negotiations have reached at an advanced stage such that it is probable that customer will accept
the claim; and
®  The amount that is probable will be accepted by the customer can be measured reliably.

- Revenue from services rendered on a time and material basis is recognised as per the terms of
contracts with customers and as and when the related services are performed. Revenue from fixed
price arrangements is recognised using the completed contract method and accordingly, work
completed and not billed, if any, is recognised as unbilled revenue as at the Balance Sheet date.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time propottion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.

Dividend income
Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive is established.

Taxes on income

Current tax
Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India.




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in X unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Taxes on income (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax charges or credits reflect the tax effect of timing differences between accounting income and
taxable income for the period. The deferred tax charges or credits and the corresponding deferred tax
liabilities or assets are recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are tecognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty
that the assets can be realized in the future periods; however, where thete is unabsorbed depreciation ot
carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is a virtual
certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and

written down ot written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be)
to be realized.

(h) Investments

@

@

Investments that ate readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as
current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Long-term
investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a
decline, other than temporary, in the value of the investments. Current investments are carried at lower of
cost and fair value determined on individual investment basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of cost of such assets till such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying
asset is one that requires substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing
costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Segment reporting

Segments are identified in line with AS-17 “Segment Reporting”, taking into considerations the internal
otganization and management structtire as well as the different risk and returns of the segment.

(k) Earnings / (loss) per equity share

@

Basic earnings per equity share are calculated by dividing the net profit (loss) for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per equity share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and when it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be requited to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined
based on management’s best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

A disclosure of a contingent liability is made when thete is a possible or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resoutces.




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

3. Share capital

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorized
Equity shares of ¥10 each 2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000
2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares of 210 each fully paid up 1,770,833 17,708,330 1,770,833 17,708,330
1,770,833 17,708,330 1,770,833 17,708,330
(a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Number Amount Number Amount
At the beginning and end of year 1,770,833 17,708,330 1,770,833 17,708,330

(b) Terms, rights and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The rights and preferences of each shareholder are in accordance with the shareholders’
agreement dated 4 August 2008. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed
by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of

the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details of equity shares held by holding company

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Number Amount Number Amount
Gayatri Projects Limited* 1,247,000 12,470,000 1,247,000 12,470,000

* Includes 1,200,000 equity shares pledged in favour of IL & FS Financial Services Ltd. against term loan availed by the
Company.

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company :

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Number % holding Number % holding
Gayatri Projects Limited 1,247,000 70.42% 1,247,000 70.42%

AMP Capital Finance Mauritius Limited 520,833 29.41% 520,833 29.41%




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(Al amounts in % unless otherwise stated)

4. Reserve and surplus

As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014

Securities premium account

Balance at the beginning and end of the period 2,199,619,577 2,199,619,577

Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance at the beginning of the year (641,091,113) (417,505,939)

Add: Adjustments* (149,913) -

Add: Loss for the year (223,875,639) (223,585,174

Balance at the end of the year (865,116,665) (641,091,113)
1,334,502,912 1,558,528,464

* Represents adjustment on account of change in estimated useful life of tangible assets in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013. '

5. Long-term borrowings

As at
31 March 2015 31 Masch 2014
Term loans
Unsecured
From others 1,350,000,000 1,350,000,000
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings 1,350,000,000 1,350,000,000

2) Details of security

Term loans aggregating to 1,350,000,000 (31 March 2014: ¥1,350,000,000) is secured by way of

(2) pledge of 1,200,000 Equity shares of the company held by the holding company, M/s Gayatri Projects Ltd,
(b) corporate guarantee of Gayatsdi Projects Limited.

These facilities carry interest at the rate of 16% as at 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014: 16%)

b) Terms of repayment

Up to 1 year* 1,350,000,000 1,350,000,000

1,350,000,000 1,350,000,000

* The due date for repayment of the above loan being 30 December 2014, has been extended to 30 June 2015
consequent to the rollover arrangement with the lender.

<) Details of overdue amounts of interest

As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
0-30 days 1,353,190 -
30-90 days 51,940,116 50,444,425
90-180 days 3,404,779 2,101,234
above 180 days 7,793,695 -

64,491,779 52,545,659
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

6. Short-term borrowings

As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
(Unsecured loans)
From related party * 517,255,218 276,659,635
517,255,218 276,659,635

* Represents unsecured, interest free loans from the related party repayable on demand.

7. Trade payables

As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Dues to others 83,020 -
Dues to related party* 1,524,064 1,524,064
1,607,084 1,524,064

* Represents interest free retention money payable to related paty.

Based on information available with the Company, as at 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014: Nil), there are no
suppliers who are registered as micro and small enterprises under the provisions of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

8. Other current liabilities

As at

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 5) 1,350,000,000 1,350,000,000
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 64,491,779 52,545,659
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 49,311,602 51,985,472
Statutory liabilities 40,612,181 56,572,856
Other liabilities 4,974,114 1,337,365
1,509,389,676 1,512,441,352

This space has been intentionally keft blank
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

9. Tangible assets

Particulars Qfﬁce Computers Total
equipment

Gross block
As at 1 April 2013 161,999 1,286,659 1,448,658
Additions - - -
As at 1 April 2014 161,999 1,286,659 1,448,658
Additions - - -
Adjustments - 345,120 345,120
As at 31 March 2015 161,999 941,539 1,103,538
Accumulated depreciation
Up to 1 April 2013 38,664 392,546 431,210
Charge for the year 15,840 208,568 224,408
Adjustments - - -
Up to 31 March 2014 54,504 601,114 655,618
Charge for the year 61,605 534,839 596,444
Adjustments - 195,207 195,207
Up to 31 March 2015 116,109 940,746 1,056,855
Net block
As at 31 March 2015 45,890 793 46,683
As at 31 March 2014 107,495 685,545 793,040

This space has been intentionally left blank
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

10. Non-current investments

As at
, % 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
holding Number Amount Number Amount
Unquoted trade investments in equity
instruments of 10 each fully paid:
- in subsidiaries
Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited* 51.00% 21,619,994 216,199,940 21,619,994 216,199,940
Gayata Lalitpur Roadways Limited* 51.00% 16,218,000 162,180,000 16,218,000 162,180,000
37,837,994 378,379,940 37,837,994 378,379,940
- in joint ventures
Hyderabad Expressways Limited 50.00% 990,000 9,900,000 990,000 9,900,000
Cyberabad Expressways Limited 50.00% 990,000 9,900,000 990,000 9,900,000
Western UP Tollway Limited* 49.00% 4,936,850 460,609,996 4,936,850 460,609,996
6,916,850 480,409,996 6,916,850 480,409,996
-fellow subsidiaries
Indore Dewas Tollways Limited 33.36% 16,680 166,800 16,680 166,800
' 16,680 166,800 16,680 166,800
-others
HKR Roadways Limited 11.00% 510,647 5,106,470 15,647 156,470
510,647 5,106,470 15,647 156,470
Aggregate amount of unquoted
investments, at cost 45,282,171 864,063,206 44,787,171 859,113,206

*Equity shares to the tune of 16,267,900 (31 March 2014: 16,267,900) of Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited, equity shares to
the tune of 12,199,900 (31 March 2014: 12,199,900) of Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited and equity shares to the tune of
4,936,850 (31 March 2014: 4,936,850) of Western UP Tollway Limited have been pledged in favour of Infrastructure
Development Finance Company Limited for the tetrm loan availed by the respective companies. Further, equity shares to
the tune of 7,980 (31 March 2014: Nil) of HKR Roadways Limited have been pledged in favour of IL & FS Trust Company
Limited for the term loan availed by HKR Roadways Limited.

() The legal ownership of following shares vests with the holding company, M/s Gayatti Projects Limited, in accordance
with the contractual provisions of the agreement. Necessaty regulatory filings have however been made to reflect the

Company as the beneficiary.

Name of the Company

Number of equity shares

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Gayatni Jhansi Roadways Limited 100 100
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited 100 100
Hyderabad Exptessways Limited 262,548 262,548
Cyberabad Expressways Limited 262,548 262,548
525,296 525,296
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(All amounts in % unless otherwise stated)

11. Loans and advances

As at
31 Match 2015 31 March 2014
(Unsecured, considered good)
a) Long-term
Advances to related parties
- to subsidiaries 335,620,060 335,620,060
- to joint ventures 923,640,004 923,640,004
- to fellow subsidiaries 363,000,000 363,000,000
- to others 679,137,309 684,087,309
Advance tax 3,431,068 10,618,920
2,304,828,441 2,316,966,293
b) Short-term
Loans to related parties
- to joint ventures 200,654,218 180,514,113
- to fellow subsidiaries 369,164 6,256,850
- to others - 312,264
201,023,382 187,083,227
12. Trade receivables
As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
(Unsecured, considered good)
Due for a period exceeding six months
- Receivable from holding company 2,826,100 2,826,100
2,826,100 2,826,100
13. Cash and cash equivalents
As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Cash on hand 268 3,595
Balances with banks in current accounts 7,675,140 76,384
7,675,408 79,979
14. Other income
For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Interest income from jointly controlled entities 21,878,517 21,878,517
Interest on Income tax refund 651,606 561,757
Income from Mutual funds 205,783 -
Other Income 449,440 -
23,185,346 22,440,274
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in % unless otherwise stated)

15. Employee benefits expense
For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Salaries and wages 1,929,000 2,448,000
1,929,000 2,448,000
16. Finance costs
For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Interest expense 235,858,056 228,154,525
Other borrowing costs 3,873,964 7,584,571
239,732,020 235,739,096
17. Other expenses
For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Rates and taxes 3,397,266 5,975,366
Repairs and maintenance - others 16,696 19,443
Legal and professional chatges 23,500 269,428
Payments to the auditor as
- audit fees 337,080 337,080
- other matters 955,060 955,060
Travelling and conveyance 9,960 21,990
Director's sitting fees 15,000 20,000
Miscellaneous expenses 48,959 15,577
4,803,521 7,613,944
18. Contingent liabilities and commitments:
As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Contingent liability
Disputed income tax dues 892,926 892,926
Commitments

Joint and several liability in respect of associate and other projects Not ascertainable ~ Not ascertainable

This space has been intentionally left blank
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

19.

Related party transactions

a) Names of the related parties and description of relationship

b)

c)

Name of the related party

Nature of relationship

Gayatri Projects Limited Holding Company
Gayatr%]ha.nm Roadways Lux?xte?d Subsidiacy Companies
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

Indore Dewas Tollways Limited Fellow Subsidiary

Hyderabad Expressways Limited

Cyberabad Expressways Limited

Jointly Controlled Entities

Western UP Tollway Limited

HKR Roadways Limited

Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited

Enterprises in which KMP and/or their relatives have
significant influence

Transactions with related parties
For the year ended

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Transactions with Gayatri Projects Limited
Payments made on bebalf of the Company
- Interest on loans ’ 203,000,000 248,116,702
- Salaries - 2,167,100
- Loan management fees - 13,651,740
Amonnts received by the Company
- Unsecured loan 37,595,583 -
Transactions with Hyderabad Expressways Limited
Reimbursement of expenses 224720 224,720
Transactions with Cyberabad Expressways Limited
Interest on advances 21,878,517 21,878,517
Reimbursement of expenses 224,720 224,720
Transactions with HKR Roadways Limited
- Salaries paid on behalf of the company 209,600 -
- Allotment of shares against advances made 4,950,000 -
Transactions with Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited
Interest free advance 50,000 -
Balances receivable / (payable)

As at

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Gayatri Projects Limited (515,953,182) (275,357,599)
Gayatr Jhansi Roadways Limited 191,800,060 191,800,060
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited 143,820,000 143,820,000
Indore Dewas Tollways Limited 363,000,000 368,937,686
Hyderabad Expressways Limited 331,549,440 331,324,720
Cyberabad Expressways Limited 413,954,778 394,039,393
Western UP Tollway Limited 378,790,004 378,790,004
HKR Roadways Limited 678,927,709 684,399,573
Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited 369,164 319,164
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
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20.

21.

22.

Deferred tax

In the absence of virtual certainty of future taxable profits supported by convincing evidence, the Company has not
created deferred tax assets on unabsorbed business losses and other timing differences. The Company would be able to
use unabsorbed tax depreciation and business losses to set off against future taxable income for a specified period.

Segment reporting

Based on the Company's business model and considering the internal financial reporting to the management, the business
of construction in the transport infrastructure along with the investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures has been
considered as the only reportable segment. Further all the services are rendered only in India. Hence there are no
additional disclosures required to be provided in terms of Accounting Standard 17, "Segment Reporting”.

Investments in joint ventures
The Company's interest, as a venturer, in jointly controlled entities (incorporated Joint Ventures) is:
Percentage of Percentage of
Name of joint venture . Country ?f . ownership ) ownership
incorporation  interests as at interests as at
31March 2015 31 March 2014
Hyderabad Expressways Limited India 50% 50%
Cyberabad Expressways Limited India 50% 50%
Western UP Tollway Limited India 49% 49%

The Company's interest in these Joint Ventures is reported as Non-current investments (Note 10) and stated at cost.
However, the Company's share of each of the assets, liaibilities, income and expenses, etc. (each without elimination of
the effect of transactions between the Company and the Joint Venture) related to its interests in these Joint Ventures are:

As at

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Assets
Non-cutrent assets
Fixed assets
- Tangible assets 2,289,026 3,893,763
- Intangible assets 5,796,672,623 6,315,225,554
- Intangible assets under development 51,740,601 21,340,763
Long term loans and advances 298,845 1,211,372
Other non-current assets 16,134,951 10,145,309
Curtent assets
Current investments - 13,301,813
Trade receivables 20,528,779 23,028,779
Cash and cash equivalents 140,244,518 45,147,206
Short-term loans and advances 185,794,769 173,778,870

Other current assets 296,710,474 285,290,341
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(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

22. Investments in joint ventures (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

As at

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings

4,625,821,169

5,115,884,740

Other long-term liabilities 308,676,977 277,947941
Long-term provisions 228,219,917 195,901,003
B Cutrent liabilities ,

o Short-term borrowings 344,413,592 319,178,601
B Trade payables 28,360,929 22,499,976
Other current liabilities 752,085,291 674,076,621

Short-term provisions 105,018,625 27,917,187
For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
R Income
Revenue from operations 1,228,493,625 1,193,243,748
- Other income 20,619,122 23,827,415
h Expenses
: Employee benefits expense 10,666,324 10,081,370

- Finance costs 635,108,377 672,204,722

B Depreciation and amortisation 519,850,988 511,772,868

Operation and maintenance expenses 121,631,818 99,802,282

; Other expenses 104,756,835 103,375,375
As at

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

Capital Commitments

Not ascertainable

Not ascertainable

23. Comparatives

The financial statements for the previous period have been regrouped / rearranged to conform to the current year

presentation wherever required.

This is the summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information referred to in our
report of even date.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Gayatri Infra
Ventures Limited, (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaties (the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its jointly controlled
entities, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013 ( “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the
Group and its jointly controlled entities, in accordance with the accounting principles
. generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under

\, Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
} amended). The Holding Company’s Board of Directors, and the respective Board of
/ Ditectors of the subsidiaries included in the Group, and of its jointly controlled entities
" are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control

Chartered Accountants ) Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered with limited liability
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relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. Further, in terms with the provisions of the Act, the respective Board of
‘Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities,
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records; safeguarding the assets;
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit.

4. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in
the auditor’s report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedutes to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of ‘the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud ot error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls
relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on whether the Holding Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s
Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 10(2) of the
Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Chartered Accountants
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

8. The independent auditors of Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited and Gayatri Lalitpur
‘Roadways Limited, the subsidiaries of the Holding Company, have qualified their
auditor’s report on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 in
connection with the following matters:

i For non-compliances with the provisions of Accounting Standard — 29, where in
Gayatti Jhansi Roadways Limited and Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited have
not disclosed contingent liabilities to the extent of ¥1,202,718,645 (31 March
2014: R1,202,718,645) and 996,673,320 ( 31 March 2014: 996,673,320,
respectively, on account of escalation claims raised by the EPC contractor and
not acknowledged as debts.

ii.  Loans and advances of Gayatti Jhansi Roadways Limited and Gayatri Lalitpur
Roadways Limited include receivables of ¥272,960,257 (31 March 2014:
R272,960,257) and I283,594,725 (31 March 2014: T283,594,725), respectively,
given to Gayatri Projects Limited and is doubtful of recovery. The Hon’ble High
Court of Andhra Pradesh has appointed an arbitrator in respect of this matter
and the related proceedings are under progtess.

Qualified Opinion

9. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on
the financial statements of the subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities as noted
below, except for the effects and possible effects of the matters described in sub-
patagraphs 8(i) and 8(ii) respectively of the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Group and its jointly controlled entities as at 31 March 2015, and their
consolidated loss and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

10. (a) We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries and three jointly
controlled entities, included in the consolidated financial statements, whose financial
statements reflect total assets (after eliminating intra-gtoup transactions) of
R12,618,975,567 as at 31 March 2015, total revenues (after eliminating intra-group
transactions) of X2,336,567,791 and net cash flows amounting to 215,783,311 for the
year ended on that date. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the

consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, and our report in
terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, is based solely on the reports of the
other auditors.

(b) Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal
land Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters

Chartered Accountants
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditot’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, and based on
the comments in the auditor’s reports of the subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities,
we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, and based on the auditor’s reports of the
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b)

d)

Chartered Accountants

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessaty for the purpose of out audit of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

Except for the effects of the matters desctibed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law telating to
preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far
as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other
auditors;

The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this Repott are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements;

Except for the effects of the matters desctibed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014(as amended);

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Holding Company as on 31 March, 2015 taken on tecotd by the Boatd of Directors
of the Holding Company and the repotts of the other statutory auditors of its
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, none of the directots of the Group
companies and its jointly controlled entities, incorporated in India is disqualified as
on 31 March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

(i) Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis of Qualified
Opinion Paragraph, the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of
pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its

jointly controlled entities, as detailed in note 26;
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(1) The Group and its jointly controlled entities did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses; and

(i) There were no amounts which were requited to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiaries
and joint controlled entities.

bbdce(” ““Nﬁ’“%\%‘“ up
For Walker Chandiok & CoELP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

P umar Jain
Partner ,
Membership No.: 207660

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 20 May 2015
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Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited, on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015

Based on the audit procedutes performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view
on the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and taking into
consideration the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and
other records examined by us in the normal course of audit and based on the comments in
the auditor’s repotts of the subsidiaties and jointly controlled entities incorporated in India,
we report that:

(1) (a) The Group and its jointly controlled entities incorporated in India have

maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management of the Group

and its jointly controlled entities during the year and no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification
of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the Group and its
jointly controlled entities, and the nature of their assets.

" (i) (a) The Group and its jointly controlled entities do not have any inventory.

(1)

(iv)

Chartered Accountants

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Otder are not applicable.

The Group and its jointly controlled entities have not granted any loan, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses
3(iit)(a) and 3(iii)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

Owing to the nature of its business, the Group and its jointly controlled entities do
not maintain any physical inventoties or sell any goods. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of
the Order with respect to purchase of inventories and sale of goods is not applicable.
In our opinion, there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the
size of the Group and its jointly controlled entities and the nature of their businesses
for the putrchase of fixed assets, development and maintenance of intangible assets
and recognition and collection of annuities. Duting the course of our audit, no major
weakness has been noticed in the internal control system in respect of this area.

The Group and its jointly controlled entities have not accepted any deposits
within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.
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Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of

Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited, on the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2015

(vi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records pursuant to the
Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of setvices of the
Group and its jointly controlled entities have been made and maintained except

- in case of the Holding Company, wherein owing to the nature of the
operations, the Holding Company does not have any revenue from sale of
products or services during the year. Accordingly, the provisions relating to
maintenance of cost records specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of its activities are not
applicable. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost
records with a view to determine whether they atre accurate ot complete.

(vi)(a) The Group and its jointly controlled entities are regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insutrance,
income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities except in case of the Holding company, wherein, the
undisputed statutory dues have not been regulatly deposited with the
appropriate authorities and there have been significant delays in a large number
of cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date
they become payable, except in case of the Holding company, whetein the
details of the dues outstanding at the yeat-end for a period of more than six

months from the date they became payable are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Period to which Date of
Due date

statute dues 69) the amount relates payment
Income Tax | Tax deducted Financial year . .
Act, 1961 At source 7,730,573 201314 Various dates | Not yet paid
Income Tax | Tax deducted Financial year . .
Act, 1961 At source 10,294,125 201415 Various dates | Not yet paid
The Finance . Financial year 5 September )
Act, 1994 Service tax 5,500,178 201213 2012 Not yet paid

- (b) There are no dues in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess that have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, except in
case of the Holding company, wherein the dues outstanding in respect of
income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess on

T account of any dispute ate as follows:

Name of | Nature | Amount Amount paid | Perlod to Forum where dispute
» ' under protest which the . .
the statute | of dues ® is pending
‘ 69 amount relates
Income Incos Fi 2] vear Commissionet of
Tax Act, Tn come 892,926 455,023 1n2a (;1 5 éa Ojgzea Income-tax
1961 ax : ., ) (Appeals), Hyderabad

Charterad Aceontintante




Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of

Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited, on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015

(c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Group and its jointly controlled entities
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of
1956) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(vii)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

(viif) The accumulated losses of two subsidiaries and two jointly controlled entities at

(ix)

(x)

Chartered Accountants

the end of the financial year are more than fifty percent of its net worth. The
accumulated losses of the Holding company and one jointly controlled entity at
the end of the financial year are less than fifty percent of its net worth. The
Group and its jointly controlled entities have not incurred cash losses during
the year as well as in the immediately preceding year except in case of the
Holding company which incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately
preceding financial year.

The Group and its jointly controlled entities have no dues payable to
debenture-holders during the year. The Holding Company has no dues payable
to any bank duting the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable. However, the Holding Company has defaulted in the
repayment of interest amounting to 267,491,779 to financial institutions
during the year, with the petiod of delays ranging from 30 to 394 days. Of
these, an amount of 203,000,000 was paid before the balance sheet date and
the unpaid overdue interest as at 31 March 2015 are R64,491,779. Two
subsidiaries and two jointly controlled entities have not defaulted in repayment
of dues to any bank and there are no dues payable to financial institutions
during the yeat by those subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities. One jointly
controlled entity has defaulted in repayment of dues to the banks and financial
institution during the year and the period and amount of continuing default as
on the Balance sheet date is as follows:

Name of the bank Amount (i) Due date Delay in days
Allahabad Bank 16,187,500 | 31 March 2015 1 day
Central Bank of India 24,500,000 | 31 March 2015 1 day
Dena Bank 17,937,500 | 31 March 2015 1 day
Indian Bank 24,500,000 | 31 March 2015 1 day
ICICI Bank 16,187,500 | 31 March 2015 1 day
United Bank of India 25,073,125 | 31 March 2015 1 day
Vijaya Bank 16,187,500 | 31 March 2015 1 day
IIFCL 24,062,500 | 31 March 2015 1 day

The Group and its jointly controlled entities have not given any guarantees for
loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions. Accordingly, the




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Repott.of even date to the members of
Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited, on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015

(xi)

(xii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group and its jointly
controlled entities have applied the term loans for the purpose for which these loans
were obtained.

No fraud on or by the Group and its jointly controlled entities have been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LELP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Partner
Membership No.: 207660

Place : Hyderabad !
Date : 20 May 2015

Chartered Accountants




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015

(All amount in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

As at
Notes 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 6 17,708,330 17,708,330
Reserves and surplus 503,055,727 907,828,029

Minority interest

Non-current liabilties
Long-term borrowings
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term provisions

Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings
Trade payables

Other current liabilities
Short-term provisions

Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
- Tangible assets
- Intangible assets
- Intangible assets under development
Non-current investments
Long-term loans and advances

Current assets

Current nvestments

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term loans and advances
Other current assets

520,764,057
150,191,726

925,536,359
189,635,455

8 8,857,760,147 9,543,386,044
9 57,278,066 26,549,030
10 228,011,404 195,901,003

9,765,836,077

9,143,049,617

11 621,662,434 354,781,861
12 63,534,203 55,662,484
13 2,535,514,532 2,452,531,243
10 646,018,000 488,862,896
3,866,729,169 3,351,838,484
13,680,734,569 14,232,846,375

14 2,554,999 5,197,924
15 10,405,151,249 11,192,724,025
53,651,907 23,252,069

16 5,273,270 323,270
17 1,208,002,869 1,150,070,818
11,674,634,294 12,371,568,106

16 - 13,301,813
18 574,842,456 598,453,088
19 497,303,168 273,924,428
17 682,942,316 753,824,363
20 251,012,335 221,774,577
2,006,100,275 1,861,278,269
13,680,734,569 14,232,846,375

The accompanying notes 1 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our

report of even date.

on Wa&er Chandiok & Co LLP™ ;

Chartered Accoungants

Partner

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 20 May 2015

Director Director

(DIN : 00005573)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 20 May 2015

(DIN : 00012927)




Gayatri infra Ventures Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2015

(All amount in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
Notes 31March 2015 31 March 2014
I. Revenue from operations 21 2,306,493,625 2,271,307,778
II. Other income 22 30,931,555 32,842,702
III. Total revenue 2,337,425,180 2,304,150,480
IV. Expenses
- Employee benefits expense 23 29,334,709 28,103,444
- Finance costs 24 1,402,853,524 1,462,716,099
- Depreciation and amortisation expense 14 and 15 915,097,433 811,055,242
- Other expenses 25 435,961,636 383,456,157
- Prior period items, net (2,541,325) (1,508,124)
Total expenses 2,780,705,977 2,683,822,818
V. Loss before tax (443,280,797) (379,672,338)
VI. Tax expense :
- Current tax 507,417 5,352,035
VII. Loss for the year (443,788,214) (385,024,373)
Share of loss to minority (39,443,729) (3,496,769)
Share of loss attributable to owners of the parent (404,344,485) (381,527,604)
VIII. Earnings/(loss) per equity share (EPES)
-Basic and diluted (228.34) (215.45)
Weighted average number of equity shares
considered in computation of basic and diluted 1,770,833 1,770,833
EPES
10 10

Nominal value per equity share

The accompanying notes 1 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 20 May 2015

For and on bghalf of the Board of
Gayatri Inffa Ventures Limited

.V.\indeep Kumar Reddy J.
Director

(DIN : 00005573)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 20 May 2015

Director
(DIN : 00012927)

oNan Reddy




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2015

(All amount in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before taxation (443,280,797) (379,672,338)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 915,097,433 811,055,242
Interest income (915,649) (908,901)
Income from mutual funds (27,996,712) (26,207,320)
Interest on borrowings 1,391,678,794 1,446,570,048
Profit on sale of fixed assets (42,301) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,834,540,768 1,850,836,731
Changes in working capital:
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 7,871,719 92,105,174)
(Decrease)/increase in other current liabilities (20,159,366) 62,427,015
Increase in provisions 189,265,505 195,845,812
Decrease in trade receivabes 23,610,632 7,644
Decrease in short-term loans and advances 70,882,047 349,385,966
Increase in other current assets (29,237,758) (2,085,838)
Cash from operating activities before income tax 242,232,779 513,475,425
Less: Income taxes paid (24,066,517) (17,480,408)
Net cash generated from operating activities A) 2,052,707,030 2,346,831,748
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received 915,649 908,901
Income from mutual funds 27,996,712 26,207,320
Purchase of fixed assets (90,453) (1,141,086)
Sale of fixed assets 167,502 -
Expenditure on intangible assets (195,067,086) (146,653,064)
Investment in/proceeds from in mutual funds (net) 13,301,813 (13,301,813)
Net cash used in investing activities B) (152,775,863) (133,979,742)
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (1,387,659,110) (1,545,581,502)
Repayment of long-term borrowings (555,773,890) (570,544,292)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings, net 266,880,573 24,292,967
Net cash used in financing activities ©) (1,676,552,427) (2,091,832,827)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 223,378,740 121,019,179
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 273,924,428 152,905,249
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 497,303,168 273,924,428
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2015
(All amount in -unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:
Cash on hand 950,358 1,259,405
Balances with banks 496,352,810 272,665,023
497,303,168 273,924,428

This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to
in our report of even date.

Eor Walker Chandiok & Co LLP "’ For and on behalf of the Board of Diregcfors of

Chartered Accountants

Director
(DIN : 00005573) (DIN : 00012927)

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 20 May 2015 Date: 20 May 2015




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in X unless otherwise stated)

1. Group Overview

Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on 22 January 2008 under the provisions
of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The Company, on its own and through its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the ‘Group’) and its jointly controlled entities, is in the business of construction, operations and
maintenance of carriageways on toll and annuity basis pursuant to the development agreements with the
National and State Governments and does investments in companies engaged in the construction, operations
and maintenance of roads, highways, vehicle bridges and tunnels and toll roads. Considering the nature of
operations of the Company, the management is of the view that the Company does not get classified as 2
Non-banking Finance Company, in accordance with the guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India. The
Company is a subsidiary of Gayatri Projects Limited, India.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India (“Indian GAAP”) and in compliance with the mandatory accounting standards (“AS”)
as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies applied
by the Group are consistent with those used in the previous year.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as cutrent or non-current as per the group's normal operating
cycle and other ctiteria set out in the Schedule IIT to the Act. Based on the nature of work and the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the
group has ascertained its operating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose of current and
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

3. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited (the Company) and its
subsidiaty companies and jointly controlled entities. These Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared on the following basis:

1. The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a line-
by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items like assets, liabilities, income and expenses,
after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealized profits and
losses as per Accounting Standard 21 — “Consolidated Financial Statements”.

i. Minority Interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the
consolidated balance sheet separately from liabilities and the equity of the company’s shareholders.
Minority Interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of:

¢ The amount of equity attributable to minorities at the date on which investment in a subsidiary is made
and

* The minorities’ share of movements, if any, in equity since the date the parent-subsidiary relationship
came into existence.

iii. Minority interest’s share of net profit/loss of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and
adjusted against the income of the Group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders
of the Company.




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in X unless otherwise stated)

3. Basis of consolidation (continued)

iv. The financial statements of jointly controlled entities have been consolidated using the “proportionate
consolidation method” as per Accounting Standard 27 on “Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint
Ventures” on line by line basis by adding together the book values of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses after eliminating unrealized profits/losses on intra group transactions.

v. s far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies
for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as
the Company’s standalone financial statements.

4. List of subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities consolidated:

The following entities, incorporated in India, have been considered for the purpose of preparation of
consolidated financial statements.

% Interest

i 31March 2015_31 March 2014
Subsidiaries
Gayatri Thansi Roadways Limited 50.99% 50.99%
_Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited 51.00% 51.00%

Hyderabad Expressways Limited 50.00% |  50.00%
{ Western UP Tollways Limited 49.00% | 4900%  :

Note: Indore Dewas Tollways Limited, the company in which Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited holds an
equity interest of 33.32% (31 March 2014: 33.32%) has been considered as a subsidiary of Gayatti
Projects Limited, Holding Company for the putpose of consolidation in accordance with the provisions
of Accounting Standard — 21, “Consolidated Financial Statements”.

5. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and
disclosures relating to contingent labilities as at the reporting date of the financial statements and
amounts of income and expenses. Examples of such estimates include the provision for doubtful
recetvables, determination of recoverable amounts of fixed assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefits ,
total projected revenue from a carriageway related to toll based road projects and useful lives of fixed
assets.

Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of cutrent events and actions,
actual results could materially differ from those estinates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

5. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Revenue Recognition
Contract revenne

- Revenue from construction contracts is recognised using percentage of completion method as
prescribed under AS 7 “Construction Contracts” and with reference to stage of completion of the
contract activity at the reporting date. Depending on the nature and tetms of individual contract,
stage of completion is determined on the basis of the proportion of costs incurred for the work
performed till date to the total estimated contract costs.

- DPrice escalation and other claims and / or variation in the contract work are included in contract
revenue when:

® Negotiations have reached at an advanced stage such that it is probable that customer will accept
the claim; and

¢ The amount that is probable will be accepted by the customer can be measured reliably.

- Revenue from services rendered on a time and material basis is recognised as per the terms of
contracts with customers and as and when the related services are petformed. Revenue from fixed
price arrangements is recognised using the completed contract method and accordingly, work
completed and not billed, if any, is recognised as unbilled revenue as at the Balance Sheet date.

Development of highways

In case of companies involved in construction and maintenance of roads, toll revenue from operations is
recognised on accrual basis which coincides with the collection of toll. In annuity based projects, revenue
recognition is based on annuity accrued on time basis in accordance with the provisions of the
concessionaite agreement entered into with NHAI or with respective state governments. Claims raised on

NHAIT or with respective state governments under concessionaire agreement ate accounted for in the year
of acceptance.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.

Dividend income
Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive is established.
(b) Fixed Assets
Tangible assets
Tangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition, less accumulated depreciation theteon The cost of an
item of fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and othet non-tefundable taxes

or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{(All amounts in X unless otherwise stated)

5. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Fixed Assets (continued)

©

Intangible assets

Carriageways represents commercial rights to collect toll fee in relation to roads projects and to receive
annuity in the case of annuity based projects which has been accounted at the cost incutred on the project
activity towards reconstruction, strengthening, widening, rehabilitation of the roads on build, operate and
transfer basis. It includes all direct matetial, labour and subcontracting costs, inward freight, duties, taxes,
obligation towatds negative grant payable to concessionaites, if any, and any directly attributable
expenditure on making the commercial right ready for its intended use.

Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation

Depreciation of tangible assets is provided on the basis of straight line method in accordance with
Schedule I to the Act.

Amortisation

Catriageways related to annuity based projects ate amortised over the period of the respective Concession
Agreements on a straight line basis.

Carriageways related to toll based road projects are amortised based on proportion of actual revenue
received during the accounting year to the total projected revenue till the end of the concession period in
accordance with notification dated 17 April 2012 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India.

The total projected revenue for the entire useful life is reviewed at the end of each financial year for
expected changes in traffic and adjusted to reflect any changes in the estimate which will lead to actual
collection at the end of useful life. ,

Intangible assets representing carriageways are amortised over the concession period, ranging from 10 to
20 years, which is beyond the maximum period of 10 years as specified in AS 26 on Intangible Assets, as
the economic benefits from the undetlying assets would be available to the Group over such period as
per the respective concessionaire agreements.

(d) Impairment

The cartying amounts of assets ate reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value at the weighted average cost of capital.




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)
5. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Grants
Grants or subsidies from the government or any regulatory authotity are recognised when there is

reasonable assurance that the grant/subsidy will be received and all conditions attached to the
grant/subsidy will be complied with.

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis in the
Statement of Profit and Loss over the petiods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they
are intended to compensate.

Where the grant or subsidy relates to an asset, the grant or subsidy amount (net of direct amount incurred
to’earn aforesaid grant or subsidy) is deducted from the gross value of the asset concerned in atriving at
the carrying amount of the related asset.

(f) Employee benefits
Gratuity
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Group and its jointly controlled entities

provide for gratuity covering eligible employees (a defined benefit plan). Liability on account of gratuity is
provided on the basis of valuation of the liability by an independent actuary as at year end.

Compensated absences

Liability for compensated absence is provided on the basis of valuation by an independent actuaty as at
year end.

Provident fund

Contributions to Provident Fund (a defined contribution plan) made to Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner are recognized as expense in the year in which conttibution is made.

(g) Borrowing Cost

o Borrowing Costs that are attributable to the acquisiion and construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of cost of such assets till such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying
asset is one that requires substantal period of time to get ready for its intended use. Any income on the
temporary investments of borrowings is deducted from the borrowing cost.

(b) Investments

Investments are classified as current and non-cutrent investments. Investments that are readily realizable
and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All other
investments are classified as long-term investments. Non-current investments are carried at cost less
provision for permanent diminution, if any, in the value of such investments. Current investments are
catried at lower of cost and fair value.
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5. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

@

@

&

@

Earnings/(loss) per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for thc effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, if any.

Taxes on Income
Current Tax

Tax on income for the curtent year is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits
computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income
for the year, and computed using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the
Balance Sheet date.

At each reporting date, the entities in the group re-assess unrecognised deferred tax assets. Deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in
future periods. However, whete there is unabsorbed depreciation or catried forward loss under taxation
laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is a virtual certainty of realization of such assets.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The entities in the group
writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably cettain
or virtually certain, as the case tmay be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes
teasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be
available.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off
cutrent tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise of cash at bank and on hand and include
short term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provision is recognized when the Group and its jointly controlled entities has a present obligation as a
result of a past event and when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a relizble estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to theit
ptesent value and are determined based on management’s best estimate required to settle the obligation at
the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
management estimates. A disclosure of a contingent liability is made when there is a possible or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resoutces.
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5. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Segment reporting
Segments are identified in line with Accounting Standard (AS) -17, “Segment Reporting”, taking into
considerations the internal organization and management structure as well as the different risk and
returns of the segment.
(n) Operating leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the

ownership are classified as operating leases. Lease rents in respect of non-cancellable operating leases are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the tenure of the lease.

This space is intentionally left blank
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6. Share capital

31 March 2015 31March 2014
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorized:
Equity shares of 10 each 2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000
2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
Equity shares of 10 each 1,770,833 17,708,330 1,770,833 17,708,330
1,770,833 17,708,330 1,770,833 17,708,330

(a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Number Amount Number Amount
At the beginning and end of the year 1,770,833 17,708,330 1,770,833 17,708,330

(b) Terms, rights and restrictions attached to equity shares
"The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥10 per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The rights and preferences of each shareholder are in accordance with
the sharebolders’ agreement dated 4 August 2008. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing annual general meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(©) Details of equity shares held by holding company

31March 2015 31 March 2014
Number Amount Number Amount
Gayatri Projects Limited* 1,247,000 12,470,000 1,247,000 12,470,000

* Includes 1,200,000 equity shares pledged in favour of IL & FS Financial Services Limited against term loan
availed by the Company.

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company :
ng pany

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Number % holding Number % holding
Gayatei Projects Limited 1,247,000 70.42% 1,247,000 70.42%

AMP Capital Finance Mauritius Limited 520,833 29.41% 520,833 29.41%
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7. Reserves and surplus

As at

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Securities premium account
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 2,199,619,577 2,199,619,577
Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year - 276,262,000
Adjustments* - (276,262,000
Balance at the end of the year - -
Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (1,291,791,548) 910,263,944)
Add: Loss for the year (404,344,485) (381,527,604)
Add: Adjustments** (427,817) -
Balance at the end of the year (1,696,563,850) (1,291,791,548)

503,055,727 907,828,029

¥*

Represents group's share of project grant recevived by Western UP Tollway Limited duly adjusted against the
cost of carriageway.

*:

*

Represents adjustment on account of change in estimated useful life of tangible assets in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule II to Companies Act, 2013.

8. Long-term borrowings

As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Secured

-from banks 5,530,796,403 5,927,558,573
“-from others 3,609,018,357 3,768,030,077
9,139,814,760 9,695,588,650

Unsecured
-from others 1,350,000,000 1,350,000,000
-from related parties 569,174,603 569,174,603
11,058,989,363 11,614,763,253
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings 2,201,229.216 2,071,377,209
8,857,760,147 9,543,386,044

(a) Details of loans

() Unsecured term loans aggregating to 31,350,000,000 (31 March 2014: ¥1,350,000,000) obtained by Gayatri
Infra Ventures Limited is sought by way of:
(2) pledge of 1,200,000 Equity shares held by the holding company, M/s Gayatri Projects Ltd,
(b) corporate guarantee of Gayatri Projects Limited.
The facility carry interest at the rate as at 31 March 2015 of 16.00% per annum (31 March 2014: 16.00% per

annum).
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8. Long-term borrowings (continued)
(i) Secured terms loans aggregating to 2,058,151,180 (31 March 2014:¥2,108,107,542) obtained by Gayatri
Jhansi Roadways Limted is secured by way of:
(a) First mortgage and charge of all the borrower’s immovable properties, present and future.
(b) First charge by way of hypothecation of:
- all the movables, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories,
furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future.

- operating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever nature and
wherever arising, present and future.
- all intangibles, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future.
- Assignment or creation of security interest in i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the relevant
counter-parties to such project documents. ii) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in the clearances. iii) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in any letter of credit, guarantees, performance bond provided by any party to
the Project Documents and iv) all Insurance Contracts/Insurance proceeds.
- Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve, other reserves and any other bank accounts of the borrower
wherever maintained.
- Pledge of all the shares (equity and preference) held by the sponsors representing 51% of the paid up
share capital.

The facilities catry an interest rate of 11.20% per annum (31 March 2014: 11.20% per annum).

(iii) Secured terms loans aggregating to ¥ 731,084,800 (31 March 2014: ¥722,642,800 ) obtained by Gayatri Jhansi

Roadways Limted is secured by way of:

(a) Second mortgage and charge of all the bostower’s immovable properties, present and future.

(b) Second charge by way of hypothecation of:
- all the movwables, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories,
fumniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future.
- Operating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever nature and
wherever arising, present and future.
- All intangibles, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future.
- Assignment or creation of security interest in i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the relevant
counter-parties to such project documents. ii) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in the clearances. iif) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in any letter of credit, guarantees, performance bond provided by any party to
the Project Documents and iv) all Insurance Contracts/Insurance proceeds.

- Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve, other reserves and any other bank accounts of the borrower
wherever maintained.
- Pledge of all the shares (equity and preference) held by the sponsors representing 51% of the paid up
share capital
The facilities carry an interest rate ranging from 11.50% to 12.85% per annum (31 March 2014: 10.95% to
12.80% per annum). '
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8. Long-term borrowings (continued)
(iv) Secured terms loans aggregating to ¥1,646,560,619(31 March 2014: ¥1,734,505,627) obtained by Gayatri
Lalitpur Roadways Limited is secured by way of:
(a) First mortgage and charge of all the borrower’s immovable properties, present and future.
(b) First charge by way of hypothecation of:
- all the movables, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories,
furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future.
- operating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever nature and
wherever arising, present and future.
- all intangibles, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future. .
- Assignment or creation of security interest in i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the relevant
counter-parties to such project documents. if) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in the clearances. iif) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in any letter of credit, guarantees, performance bond provided by any party to
the Project Documents and iv) all Insurance Contracts/Insurance proceeds.

- Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve, other reserves and any other bank accounts of the borrower
wherever maintained.

- Pledge of all the shares (equity and preference) held by the sponsors representing 51% of the paid up
share capital.

The facilities carry an interest rate of 11.25% per annum (31 March 2014: 11.25% per annum).

(v) Secured terms loans aggregating to ¥430,938,940 (31 March 2014:3452,894,160) obtained by Gayatri Lalitpur
Roadways Limited, is secured by way of:
(a) Second mortgage and charge of all the borrower’s immovable properties, present and future.
(b) Second charge by way of hypothecation of:

- all the movables, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories,
furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future.

- Operating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever nature and
wherever arising, present and future.
- All intangibles, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future.
- Assignment or creation of security interest in i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borcower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the relevant
counter-parties to such project documents. ii) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in the clearances. iif) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in any letter of credit, guarantees, performance bond provided by any party to
the Project Documents and iv) all Insurance Contracts/Insurance proceeds.
- Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve, other reserves and any other bank accounts of the borrower
wherever maintained.
- Pledge of all the shares (equity and preference) held by the sponsors representing 51% of the paid up
share capital
The facilities carry an interest rate ranging from 11.50% to 12.85% per annum (31 March 2014: 10.95% to
12.80% per annum).
(vi) Unsecured term loans to the tune of X322,400,250 (31 March 2014: 322,400,250) borrowed by Gayatri JThansi
Roadways Limited and Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited from its shareholder's represents zero interest
subordinate loan repayable after the repayment of other secured loans from banks and financial institutions.
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8. Long-term borrowings (continued)
(vit) Secured term loans aggregating to 1,347,166,009 (31 March 2014: ¥1,502,926,961) obtained by Cyberabad
Expressways Limited is secured by way of first pari passu charge in favour of the lenders/security agent to the
project by way of hypothecation of:

2) All monies including annuity receivable from Hyderabad Growth Corridor Limited (HGCL) to the credit of
the escrow Account.

b) All rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands of the company under project agreements subject to
the provisions of the concession agreement.

c) Assignment of rights, title and interest to or in favor of the lenders pursuant to and in accordance with the
substitution agreement as per the provisions of the financing documents of the project.

The facilities carry an interest rate of 11.50% per annum (31 March 2014: 11.50% per annumy).

(viif) Secured term loans aggregating to 977,093,909 (31 March 2014: ¥1,104,362,660) obtained by Hyderabad
Expressways Limited is secured by way of first pari passu charge in favour of the lenders/security agent to the
project by way of hypothecation of: '

2) All monies including annuity receivable from HGCL to the credit of the escrow Account. ,

b) All rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands of the company under project agreements subject to
the provisions of the concession agreement.

c) Assignment of rights, title and interest to or in favor of the lenders pursuant to and in accordance with the
substitution agreement as per the provisions of the financing documents of the project.

The facilities carry an interest rate of 11.50% per annum (31 March 2014: 11.50% per annum).

(ix) Secured term loans aggregating to 31,948,819,303 (31 March 2014:%2,070,148,900) obtained by Western UP
Tollways Limited are secured by way of:

(8) first mortgage and charge in a form satisfactory to all company’s immovable properties, present and future
expect project assets.

(b) first charge by way of hypothecation of all the company’s movables, including movable plant and
machinery, present and future except the project assets, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture,
fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets.

(c) A first charge on operating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever
nature and wherever arising present or future.

(d) subject to provisions of provisions on concession agreement, first charge on the escrow account, debt
service reserve, MMR and other reserves.

{e) A first pledge of 100% of paid up capital till three years of commencement of commercial operations and
thereafter minimum 51% of total paidup capital of the company held by the promoters during the tenure of
the loan.

The facilities catry an interest rate ranging from 11.50% to 12.06% per annum (31 March 2014: 11.50% to
14.00% per annum).

(x) Unsecured term loans to the tune of 246,774,353 (31 March 2014: ¥246,774,353) is obtained by Western UP
Tollways Limited from related parties carrying interest at the rate of 12% per annum (31 March 2014: 12%
per annum).
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(b) Terms of repayment for secured loans from banks and others and the unsecured loans from others

As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Up to 1 year 2,201,229,216 2,071,377,209
2 to 5 years 4,320,151,140 3,556,813,920
Above 5 years 4,537,609,007 5,986,572,124
11,058,989,363 11,614,763,253

(c) Details of overdue installments of principal and interest on unsecured loans from banks and others

As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Principal
0-30 days 74,224,063 70,624,953
Interest
0-30 days 19,118,142 44,424,542
30-90 days 51,940,116 75,165,659
90-180 days 3,404,779 1,296,930
above 180 days 7,793,695 1,609,820
82,256,731 122,496,950
9. Other long-term liabilities
As at
31 March 2015 31 Masch 2014
Interest accured but not due* 57,278,066 26,549,030
57,278,066 26,549,030
¥ Represents interest on contractual dues payable to related parties.
10. Provisions
As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
a) Long-term
“ Provision for periodic maintenance
. As at beginning of the year 195,805,943 475,131,266
j‘ Add: Chatge for the year 95,651,641 191,726,198
Less: Transferred during the year (63,700,000) (471,051,520)
As at end of the year 227,757,584 195,805,943
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 253,820 95,060
228,011,404 195,901,003
b) Short-term
Provision for periodic maintenance 646,018,000 488,862,896

646,018,000 488,862,896
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11. Short-term borrowings

As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Unsecured
-from related parties 621,662,434 354,781,861
621,662,434 354,781,861

Represents unsecured loans from related parties repayable on demand along with interest at the rate of 16%
per annum (31 Maxch 2014: 16% per annum).

12. Trade payables

As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Sundry creditors 57,244,353 50,087,926
Other payables 6,289,850 5,574,558
63,534,203 55,662,484

Based on information available with the Group and its jointly controlled entities, as at 31 March 2015 (31
March 2014: Nil), there are no suppliers who are registered as micro and small enterprises under the
provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

13. Other current liabilities

As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 8) 2,201,229,216 2,071,377,209
Interest accrued and due on borrowings* 117,473,558 144,052,761
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 64,196,866 64,327,015
Statutory liabilities 48,353,157 59,122,644
Dues to related party ' 25,014,028 82,506,809
Provision for expenses 79,247,707 31,144,805
2,535,514,532 2,452,531,243

* Includes interest accrued and due on short-term borrowings from related parties to the tune of 35,216,827
(31 March 2014: ¥21,555,811)
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14. Tangible Assets

Plant and

Furniture

Office

. Vehicles . Computers Total
equipment  and fixtures equipments

Gross block

As at 1 April 2013 362,732 922,378 6,128,929 1,414,188 2,022,863 10,851,090
Additions during the year - - 1,127,086 - 14,000 1,141,086
Disposals - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2014 362,732 922,378 7,256,015 1414188 2036863 11,992,176
Additions during the year - 44,057 28,227 18,169 - 90,453
Disposals - - 880,909 - - 880,909
Adjustments - - 1,091,550 499,660 502,870 2,094,080
As at 31 March 2015 362,732 966,435 5,311,783 932,697 1,533,993 9,107,640
Depreciation

Up to 31 March 2013 246,530 459,763 3,133,712 693,965 1,089,486 5,623,456
Chatrge for the year 66,441 68,401 637,086 152,759 246,109 1,170,796
Deletions / adjustments - - - - - -
Up to 31 March 2014 312,971 528,164 3,770,798 846,724 1,335,595 6,794,252
Charge for the year 11,511 78,054 1,237,549 314,445 538,800 2,180,359
Deletions - - 755,709 - - 755,709
Adjustments - - 953,494 365,414 347,353 1,666,261
Up to 31 March 2015 324,482 606,218 3,299,144 795,755 1,527,042 6,552,641
Net block

As at 31 March 2015 38,250 360,217 2,012,639 136,942 6,951 2,554,999
As at 31 March 2014 49,761 394,214 3,485,217 567,464 701,268 5,197,924
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15. Intangible assets
Carriage way As at
31 Match 2015 31 March 2014
Gross block
At the beginning of the year 13,729,644,626 13,153,100,469
Additions during the year 125,344,298 852,806,157
Adjustments (refer note 7) - 276,262,000
At the end of the year ‘ 13,854,988,924 13,729,644,626
Accumulated amortisation
At the beginning of the year 2,536,920,601 1,727,036,155
Charge fot the year 912,917,074 809,884,446
At the end of the year 3,449,837,675 2,536,920,601
Net block 10,405,151,249 11,192,724,025
16. Investments
As at
31 Match 2015 31 Matrch 2014
a) Non-current
Unquoted trade investments of 10 each fully paid:
-fellow subsidiaries
16,680 equity shares (31 March 2014: 16,680), representing
33.36% (31 March 2014: 33.36%) in Indote Dewas Tollways 166,800 166,800
Limited
166,800 166,800
-others
510,647 equity shares (31 March 2014: 15,647), representing
11.00% (31 March 2014: 11.00%) in HKR Roadways Limited 5,106,470 156,470
5,106,470 156,470
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments, at cost 5,273,270 323,270
b) Current
Other than trade and unquoted - valued at lower cost or fair
value
Investment in mutual funds
HDFC liquid fund - Dividend - Daily Reinvest
[Nil (31 March 2014: 1,304,330.5) units of 10 each fully paid up]* - 13,301,813
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - 13,301,813

*Represents group's share of 50%, out of the total units of Nil (31 March 2014: 2,608,659 )
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17. Loans and advances

As at
- 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
(Unsecured, considered good)
a) Long-term
Advances to related parties
- fellow subsidiaries 363,000,000 363,000,000
- others 719,372,794 684,087,309
Security deposits 801,088 1,713,622
Advance tax (net of provision) 124,828,987 101,269,887
1,208,002,869 1,150,070,818
b) Short-term
Advances to related parties
- holding company 682,573,151 708,679,403
- fellow subsidiaries 369,165 6,256,850
- others - 38,888,110
682,942,316 753,824,363
18. Trade receivables
As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
(Unsecured, considered good)
Due for a period exceeding six months 34,841,035 43,577,608
Other receivables 540,001,421 554,875,480
574,842,456 598,453,088
19. Cash and cash equivalents
As at
31 Matrch 2015 31 March 2014
Cash on hand 950,358 1,259,405
Balances with banks
- in cuttent accounts 452,252,810 272,665,023
- in deposit accounts, with maturity less than three months 44,100,000 -
497,303,168 273,924,428
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20. Other current assets

As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
(unsecured, considered good)
Accrued annuity 228,793,487 209,444,879
Prepaid expenses 1,829,495 293,211
Others 20,389,353 12,036,487
251,012,335 221,774,577
21. Revenue from operations
For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Annuity income 1,777,900,000 1,777,893,707
Toll collections 466,461,625 430,177,247
Operations and maintenance support 62,132,000 62,132,000
Income from change of work scope - 1,104,824
2,306,493,625 2,271,307,778
22. Other income
For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Interest income 915,649 908,901
Income from mutual funds 27,996,712 26,207,320
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 42,301 -
Miscellaneous receipts 1,976,893 5,726,481
30,931,555 32,842,702
23. Employee benefits expense
For the year ended
31 Matrch 2015 31 March 2014
Salaries and wages 29,075,795 27,947,589
Staff welfare expenses 78,177 58,432
Contribution to provident and other fund 180,737 97,423
29,334,709 28,103,444
a) Significant assumptions for gratuity and compensated absences
For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Discount Rate 8% 8%
Expected rate of salary increases 5% 5%
22 Years 20 Years

Expected average future service of employees
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24. Finance costs

For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Interest on borrowings 1,391,678,794 1,446,570,048
Other borrowing costs 11,174,730 16,146,051
1,402,853,524 1,462,716,099
25. Other expenses
For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
‘Toll operating expenses 24,291,147 24.371,669
Repairs and maintenance - carriage way 356,304,175 317,157,171
Insurance expenses 2,994,593 2,826,455
Consultancy and professional charges 16,260,629 11,909,675
Rent 4,235,515 4,064,469
Payments to the auditors as
- audit fees 337,080 337,080
- other matters 955,060 955,060
Travelling and conveyance 2,952,852 3,029,278
Miscellaneous expenses 27,630,585 18,805,300
435,961,636 383,456,157
26. Commitments and contingent liabilities:
As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
a) Contingent liabilities
Disputed income tax dues 892,926 91,634,108
Transit fee on forest produce disputed by the subsidiaries 296,244,291 296,244,291
Cess under Building and Other Construction Workers” Welfare Cess Act ) 12,201,000
1956 and rules 1988 in a jointly controlled entity
b) Commitments
Contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts (net of advances) 101,963,688 192,544,796
Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Service fee payable to the Ultimate
Holding company as per the O&M agreement 2,669,062,270 2,743,941,615

Joint and several liability in respect of investment in associate and other
projects

Not ascertainable

Not ascertainable
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27. Additional information pursuant to Schedule lil to the Companies Act, 2013

28.

Net assets Shate in profit or loss
Name of the entity As a % of As a % of
_ consolidated consolidated
net assets Amount(X) profit or loss Amount(X)
Parent
Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited -144% (967,296,016) 55%  (245,978,876)
Subsidiaries
- Indian
Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited 55% 367,072,928 13% (57,846,827)
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited 41% 273,366,638 5% (22,650,580)
Joint Ventures
- Indian
Cyberabad Expressways Limited 43% 286,424,421 12% (51,595,358)
Hyderabad Expressways Limited 18% 125,824,744 2% (10,190,638)
Western UP tollway Limited 87% 585,563,068 13% (55,525,935)
Total 670,955,783 (443,788,214)
Minority Intetests in all subsidairies
Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited 13% 86,307,417 6% (28,344,945)
Gayatr Lalitpur Roadways Limited 10% 63,884,309 3% (11,098,784)

Related party transactions

Names of the related parties and desctiption of relationship

Name of the related party Nature of relationship
Gayatri Projects Limited Holding Company
Indore Dewas Tollways Limited Fellow Subsidiary

Deep Corporation Private Limited

HKR Roadways Limited

Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited

Axis Energy Ventures India Private Limited

Enterprises in which KMP and/oz their relatives
have significant influence

II. & FS Engineering & Construction Company Limited
(IL & FS)

Terra Projects Limited

India Infrastructure Fund

NCC Limited

NCC Infrastructure Holdings Limited

Shareholders' having significant influence in a jointly
controlled entity
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28.

Related party transactions (continued)

b) Transactions with related parties

For the year ended

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Transactions with Gayatri Projects Limited (GPL)
Payments made by GPL. on bebalf of the gronp towards
- Unsecured loans received 266,880,574 248,116,702
- Salaries - 2,167,100
- Loan management fees - 13,651,740
Ansounts paid to GPL towards
- Shared services availed 13,500,000 14,590,000
- Interest on borrowings 28,014,165 23,645,024
- Operations and maintenance 86,166,827 105,572,358
- Development expenditure of intangible assets 122,127,355 395,708,806
- Major maintenance 22,412,865 22,412,865
- Reimbursement of expenses - 248,000
Transactions with Deep Corporation Limited
Rent 1,620,409 1,549,699
Transactions with HKR Roadways Limited
Salaries paid on behalf of the Group 209,600 -
Income from vehicle hire charges - 3,072,300
Transactions with IL & FS
Interest on loans 15,440,000 16,984,000
Transactions with NCC Limited
Interest on unsecured term loan 15,348,806 13,852,713
Reimbursement of expenses 230,908 194,922
Transactions with NCC Infrastructure Holdings Limited
Management fees paid 2,642,707 2,642,707
Transactions with Axis Energy Ventures India Private Limited
Repairs & Maintenance 2,653,061 -
Balances receivable/ (payable)

As at

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Gayatri Projects Limited (296,640,525) (25,484,635)
Indore Dewas Tollways Limited 363,000,000 368,937,686
HKR Roadways Limited 678,927,709 687,471,873
Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited 369,164 319,164
IL & FS Engineering & Construction Company Limited (195,922,949) (182,026,949)
Terra Projects Limited (147,094,911) (147,094,911)
India Infrastructure Fund (322,400,000) (322,400,000)
NCC Limited (145,598,945) (130,472,309)
NCC Infrastructure Holdings Limited (194,132,902) (194,132,902)
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29. Deferred tax
In the absence of virtual certainty of future taxable profits supported by convincing evidence, the group has not created
deferred tax assets on unabsorbed business losses and other timing differences. The group would be able to use
unabsorbed tax depreciation and business losses to set off against future taxable income for a specified period.

30. Segment reporting
Based on the Group's business model and considering the internal financial reporting to the management, subsidiaries
and joint ventures which are engaged in the business of construction in the transport infrastructure has been considered
as the only reportable segment. Further all the services are rendered only in India. Hence there are no additional
disclosures required to be provided in accordance with Accounting Standard 17, "Segment Reporting".

31. Comparatives
The financial statements for the previous period have been regrouped / rearranged to conform to the current year
presentation wherever required.

This is the summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information referred to in our report of even date.
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To
The Membexrs,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 8% Annual Report of your Company and the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 315 March, 2016.

The following table depicts the financial results of your Company for the year ending 315 March 2016:

L FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

BOARDS REPORT

Rs.

S. No. Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2016 | For the year ended 31.03.2015
1 Income from Operatons - -

2 | Other Income 2,22.78,891 2,24, 40,274
Total Income 2,22,78,891 2,24, 40,274

3 Employee Benefits Expense 15,54,000 24,48,000
4 Finance Costs 25,22,23,937 23,57,39,096
5 Depreciation 42,238 2,24.408
6 Other Expenses 98,90,100 76,13,944

Total Expenditure 26,37,10,325 24,60,25,448

Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax

(24,14,31,434)

(22,35,85,174)

Less: Provision for Tax

Profit/ (Loss) After Tax

(24,14,31,434)

(22,35,85,174)

2. THE YEAR IN RETROSPECT

During this Financial Year, Your Company availed a Term Loan of Rs. 150 Crore from Bhandara Thermal Power

Corporation Limited (BTPCL) and the amount is used for repayment of Term Loan of Rs. 135 Crore taken from

IL&FS Financial Services Limited (IFIN) and interest thereon.

The Financial Year 2015-16 was a difficult year for your Company, owing to severe shortfall of funds throughout the

year. Hence, apart from the fact that the Company did not participate in bidding for any new projects, your Company

also did not honour Interest commitments on the Term Loan availed from Bhandara Thermal Power Corporation

Limited. on a timely basis. The loss for the current year is majorly due to the Interest cost being borne by your

Company on the Term Loan availed from IL&FS Financial Services Ltd. and Bhandara Thermal Power Corporation

Limited.
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The members are aware that your Company has advanced an amount of Rs.13.67 Crores to Cyberabad Expressways
Ltd. as per the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) dated 5% August 2011, which would bear an Interest rate of
16% p.a. Once the said amount is repaid by Cyberabad Expressways Ltd., your Company would be in a better position

with respect to cash flows. M/s Cyberabad Expressways Ltd. has to receive arrears of Annuity of Rs.140.89 Crores,

apart from a bonus annuity, alongwith Interest thereon for delayed payments, from which the dues payable to your
Company will be cleared.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

At the outset, your Directors foresee an urgent and immediate need of funds for the Company, so as to enable

servicing the Interest on Term Loan from Bhandara Thermal Power Corporation Limited (BTPCL) on quarterly basis.
At present, your Company does not have funds to meet the regular administrative expenses.

Your Directors are exploring various possible avenues in this regard.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Extracts of Annual Return is prepared in Form MGT-9 as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and the same is enclosed as Annexure-1.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 315t March, 2016, Six Board Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap between the
Meetings was within the pedod prescrbed uader the Companies Act, 2013,

The dates on which the Board meetings were held are 20.05.2015, 26.08.2015, 01.10.2015, 10.11.2015, 24.12.2015 and
22.03,2016.

Attendance of Directors at the meetings:

The details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings held during the year ended 315t March, 2016.

Name of the Director Number of Board Meetings
Held Attended

]. Brij Mohan Reddy 6 6

Sharat Govyal 6 2

Ch. Harivithal Rao 6 6

M.V. Narasimha Rao 6 5

T. Anirudh Reddy 4 4

T.V. Sandeep Kumar

Reddy




GIVL — ANNUAL REPORT 2015 - 16

Audit Committee Meetings

During the year ended 31% March, 2016, one Audit Committee Meeting was convened and held. The date on which the
Audit Committee meeting was held is 20.05.2015.

Artendance of Directors at the meetings:

The details of the attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended 31% March,
2016.

Name of the Director Number of Audit Committee
Meetings

Attended

Held

M. V. Narasimha Rao
Sharat Goyal 1 1
Ch. Harivithal Rao

6. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your

Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

that in the preparation of the annuval financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2016, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;
that such accounting policies and applied them consistently and judgement and estimates have been made that are
reasonzble and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,

2016 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;
¢. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accouating records in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safegnarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularites;

d. that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e. that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adeguate and were

operating effectively.

that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and

operating effectnvely.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mz. Ch. Harivithal Rao was appointed as Director of the Company in the category of Independent Director with effect
from 3+ March, 2015 to 2od March, 2019 in the AGM held on 26.08.2015.

Mr. M.V, Narasimha Rao was appointed as Director of the Company in the category of Independent Director with
effect from 3 March, 2015 to 20 March, 2016 in the AGM held on 26.08.2015.
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Mr. M.V. Narasimha Rao was re-appointed as Director of the Company in the category of Independent Director for
the second term with effect from 3+ March, 2016 up to 2+ March, 2021 in the Board Meeting held on 22.03.2016.

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. T.V. Sandeep Kumar Reddy has resigned as a Director of the Company with effect from 27t August, 2015.

Mr. T. Anirudh Reddy was appointed as an Additional Director of the Comnpany with effect from 27% August, 2015.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The independent directors have submitted the declaration of independence, 2s required pursuant to section 14%(7) of

the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section(6).

RE-APPOINTMENTS

Mr. J. Brij Mohan Reddy, Director of the Company is retiring by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment. '

. POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The Nomination and Remuneration (N&R) Committee has adopted a Charter which, inter alia, deals with the manner

of selection of Board of Directors and CEO & Managing Director and their remuneratios. A

11. AUDITORS REPORT

NOTES TO THE QUALIFICATIONS IN THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Company has entered into a definitive agreement with Cube Highways and Infrastructures PTE Limited for
divestment of its shareholding in Western UP Tollways Limited. However, the exact sale price is under final
negotiation and to be finalized on satisfaction of the Conditions Precedent. Hence, the company could not take any
decision regarding consequential effects on the matter on the carrying value of investments. The Statutory Auditor has

ignored the above facts and has chosen to qualify the andit report of the Company for F.Y. 2015-16, in error.

. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Aect,

2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.




GIVL - ANNUAL REPORT 2015 - 16

. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with the related parties referred to in Section 188 in the Form AQC ~2is

annexed herewith as Annexure-2.

. TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO RESERVES

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the general reserve for the Financial Year ended 315 March,
2016.

. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on the Equity Shares for the financial year ended 31=
March, 2016.

. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There has been no material change and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have

occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of
the report.

‘There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as

required under Section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is Nil.

. STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT POLICY

AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK

As already mentioned above, your Company has invested in various Build, Operate & Transfer (BOT) Road Assets,

from which there has been no retura till date. Your Company is regularly monitoring these investments, 5o as to obtain

returns, if any, in the future, so that the loan commitments are honoured.

Apart from the above, your Company has ensured that adequate operating procedures are developed and implemented

on a consistent basis, so as to ensure that the financial statements of the Company ate free from material

misstatements.
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19. POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES TAEEN DURING THE YEAR.

The policy developed and implemented by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives taken during the

year is Nil as the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in this regard are not applicable to the Company.

. BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of

its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nominaton &

Remuneration Committees.

. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the Financial Year ending on 31 March 2016, your Company had two subsidiaries, namely Gayatd Jhansi

Roadways Ltd. and Gayatd Lalitpur Roadways Ltd. and three Jointly Controlled Entities, namely, Hyderabad
Expressways Ltd., Cyberabad Expressways Ltd., Western UP Tollway Litd.

The names of companies which have become ot ceased to be Company’s Subsidiaries, joint ventures or

associate companies during the year

During the Financial Year, no company is ceased as Company’s subsidiary, joint venture or associate company.

Whereas the Company has sold its entire investment of being 49,36,850 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each zlong with
Shareholders Loan / Subordinated debt (ZISL) amounting to Rs. 37,87,90,004/- held by the Company in Western UP
Tollways Limited (WUPTL) to Cube Highways and Infrastructure Pte Ltd or its Nominees/ Associates/ Subsidiaries

. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with Accounting Standards AS — 21 and AS — 27 issued by the Insttute of Chartered Accountants of
India and specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014; your Directors have pleasure in attaching the Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31% March 2015, which forms part of the Annual Report and accounts.

. STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF
SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/ JOINT VENTURES

A Statement contzining salieat features of the financial statement of subsidiardes/ associate companies/ joint ventures

in the Form AOC — 1 is annexed herewith as Annexure-3.
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24. DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public in terms of Secton 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going concern
status of the Company and its future operations.

. STATUTORY AUDITORS

At the Annual General Meeting held on 26 August, 2015, M/s. Walker Cha.nﬂiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants,
New Delhi bearing ICAI Regn. No. 001076N/N500013, wete appointed as statutory auditors of the Company to hold

office tll the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the calendar year 2018. In terms of the first

proviso to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of the auditors shall be placed for ratification at
every Annual General Meetng,

Accordingly, the appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co 11P, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi bearing ICAI
Regd. No.001076N/N500013, as statutory auditors of the Company, is placed for ratification by the sharcholders. In

this regard, the Company has received a certificate from the auditors to the effect that if they are reappointed, it would

be in accordance with the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013.

. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There are no employees in the Company who are drawing prescribed salary pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule, 5

of The Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
. VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a vigil mechanism to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The details of the Vigil

Mechanism Policy are available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during
business hours on working days of the Company.

. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Company has ensured that appropriate policies and procedutes are adopted for ensuring orderly and efficient

conduct of the business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, prevention and

detection of fraud and error, the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information.
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30. HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Your Company lays emphasis on competence and commitment of its human capital recognizing its pivotal role for

organizational growth.

During the year, the Company maintained a record of peaceful employee relations. Your Directors wish to place on

record their appreciation for the commitment shown by the employees thronghout the year.

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors express their appreciation to the Company’s Bankers, Statutory Auditors, Customers, Consultants and

Members for their constant help, co-operation and support.

For and on behalf of th€ Board

Place: Hyderabad T. ANIRUDH REDDY J. BRI MOHAN REDDY

Date: 23 May, 2016 Director Director
o T ' ' ‘DIN: 06908378 ° B C 7 DIN:00012927
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ANNEXURE -1

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended 31.03.2016
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U45209TG2008PLC0O57269

Registration Date

22/01/2008

Nare of the Company

GAYATRI INFRA VENTURES LIMITED

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

| Government Company

Company Limited by Shares/ Indian Non

Address of the Registered Office and
contact details

1st Floor, 6-3-1090, TSR Towers, Rajbhavan Road,
Somajignda, Hyderabad - 500082, Telangana.

E Mail: rajlkumar(@givl.co.in,
Tel: 040-23310330

Whether listed company

Unlisted

Name, address and contact detzils of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

AARTHI CONSULTANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: 1-2-285, Domalguda,
Hyderabad - 500029 , Telangana.

E Mail: info{@aarthiconsultants.com ,

Tel: 040-27638111

II. Principal Business Activities of the Company

All the Business Activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be

stated:
SL Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of the
No. products / setvices service company

1 Holding Activides 64200 100%

HI. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

SL Name and address
No. | of the Company

CIN/GLN

% of shares
held

Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

Applicable
Section

1 Gayatrd Projects
Limited, 1=t Floox, 6-3-
1090, TSR Towers,
Rajbhavan Road,
Somajiguda,
Hyderabad - 500082,
Telangana.

L99999TG1989PLCO57289

Holding 70.59% 2(46)

2 Gayatr Jhansi
Roadways Limited, 1st
Floor, 6-3-1090, TSR
Towers, Rajbhavan
Road, Somajignda,

U50403TG2006PLC0O50569

Subsidiary | 51% 2(87)
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Hyderabad - 500082,

Telangana.

Gayatri Lalitpuor
Roadways Limited, 1#
Floor, 6-3-1090, TSR
Towers, Rajbhavan
Road, Somajiguda,
Hyderabad - 500082,

Telangana,

U45203TG2006PLCO50554

Subsidiary

51%

2(87)

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

1) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
yeat

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

%
Chan

ge
durin

the
year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
total
Shar
es

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
total
Shar
es

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual /
HUF

b) Central Govt.

c) State Govt.(s)

d) Bodies
Corporate

12,50,000

12,50,000

12,50,000

12,50,000

¢) Banks / FI

f) Any Other.....

Sub-Total (A)(1):

12,50,000

12,50,000

12,50,000

12,50,000

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs -
Individuals

b) Other -
Individuals

c) Bodies
Corporate

d) Banks / FI

¢) Any Other....

Sub-Total (A)(2):

Total
Shareholding of
Promoters (A) =

(AYD)+(A)(2)

12,50,000

12,50,000

70.59

12,50,000

12,50,000

76.59

B. Public
Shareholding

(1) Insdtutions




GIVL - ANNUAL REPORT 2015- 16

-2) Mutual Funds
/ UTI

b) Banks / FI

c) Ceniral Govt.

d) State Govt.(s)

¢) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

o) FlIls

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (speafy)

Sub-Total (B)(1):

(2) Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corporate

1) Indian

1) Overseas

5,20,833

5,320,833

2041

5,20,833

520,833

29.41

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding norminal
share capital upto
Rs. 11akh

if) Individual
shareholders
helding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

c) Others
(specify)

Sub-Total (B)(2):

5,20,833

5,20,833

29.41

5,20,333

5,20,833

29.41

Total Public
Shareholding

g3)=(B)(1)+(B)(

5,20,833

5,20,833

29.41

5,20,833

5,20,833

29.411

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

17,70,833

17,70,833

100

5,20,833

12,50,000

17,70,833

100
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S.No. | Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of the | Shareholding at the end of the year % change in
Name year shareholding
No. of % of %of Shares | No. of % of total | %of Shares during the
Shares total Pledged / Shares Shares of | Pledged / year
Shares of | encumbered the encumbered
the 1o total company | to total
company | shares shares
1 Gayatri Projects Ltd | 12.47,000 | 70.42 67.76 12,47,000 | 70.42 67.76 -
2 T. Indira Reddy - - -
(MNominee of M/s.
Gayatri Projects 1,000 0.06 1,000 0.06
Limited)
3 T.V. Sandeep - - -
Kumar Reddy
MNominee of M/s. 1,000 .06 1,000 0.06
Gayatri Projects
Limited)
4 T. Sarita Reddy - - -
@\Iomce qf M/s. 700 0.04 700 0.04
(Gayami Projects
Limited)
5 Dr. C. Satyanarayana - - -
(Nominee of M/s. 100 100
Gayatri Projects 0.01 0.01
Limited)
6 P. Maruthi Babu - - -
(Nom.u.me o_f M/s. 100 0.01 100 0.01
Gayatri Projects
Limited)
7 Ch. Harvithal Rao - - -
(Nominee of M/s. | 4 o 0.01 100 0.01
Gayatr1 Projects
Limited)
Total 12,50,000 | 70.59 12,50,000 | 70.59
iti) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change)
S. Sharecholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
No of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total No. of % of total
shares of the | shares shares of
company the
company
At the beginning of the year 1250000 70.59
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfet/bonus/sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year 1250000 70.59 -
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iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs)

SL For Each of the Top 10

Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding

No.

Shareholders

of the year

during the year

WNo. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

At the beginning of
the year

520,833

29.41

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding during the
year specifying the
teasons for increase /
decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity
etc):

At the End of the year
( ot on the date of
separation, if
separated during the
year)

5,20,833

29.41

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerjal Personnel:

SL For Each of the Top 10 | Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
No. Sharcholders of the year during the year
No. of shares 1 % of total No. of shares | % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of - - - -
the year

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding during the
vear specifying the
reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

At the End of the year
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Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at
the beginning of
the financial vear
1) Prncipal Amount 1,35,00,00,000 51,72,55,218 1,86,72,55,218
i) Interest due but
not paid 6,44,91,779 - 6,44,91,779
i) Interest accrued _ :
but not 4,93,11,602 - 4,93,11,602
Total (i+ii+iif) 1,46,38,03,381 51,72,55,218 1,98,10,58,599
Change in
Indebtedness
during the
financial year
Addition 15,53,19,937 3,57,14,522 19,10,34,459
Reduction
91,006,689 - 91,06,689
Net Change
14,62,13,248 (3,57,14,522) (18,19,27,770)
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial
yeat
1) Principal Amount 1,50,00,00,000 55,29,69,740 2,05,29,69,740
i) Interest due but
not paid 5,53,85,090 - 5,53,85,090
iif) Interest accrued _
but not due 5,46,31,539 - 5,46,31,539
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,61,00,16,629 55,29,69,740 2,16,29,86,369
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SL

no.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/
Manager

Total Amount

1

Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in Section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites under
Section 17(2) Income Tax Act,
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
Section 17(3) Income Tax Act,
1961

»

Stock Option

@

Sweat Equity

Commission

‘a5 % of profit

others, specify...

Others, please specify

Totzl (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors:
1. Independent Directors

SL

no.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of
Directors

Total Amount

Mz. MVV.N. Rao

Ch. Harivithal Rao

-Fee for attending
Board/Committee
Meetings

Rs.25,000/-

Rs.30,000/-

Rs.55,000/-

-Corpmission

- Others, please
specify

Total (B)(1)

Rs.25,000/-

Rs.30,000/-

Rs.55,000/-




2. Other Non Executive Directors
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SL

no.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of
Directors

Total Amount

-Fee for attending
Board/Committee
Meetings

~-Commission

- Others, please
specify

Total (B)(2)

Toral (B)= (B)(1)+ (B)(2)

Rs.25,000/-

Rs.30,000/-

Rs.55,000/-

C.

MD/MANAGER/WTD

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL

PERSONNEL OTHER THAN

SL

no.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

Company
Secretary

CFO Total

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(¢) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

as % of profit

others, specify...
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5. Others, please -
specify
Total -

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: -N.A.-

Type Section of Brief Details of | Authority Appeal
the Description Penalty / [RD / NCLT | made,
Companies Punishment/ | / COURT] if any
Act Compounding (give
fees imposed Details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty -
Punishment - ] -
Compounding - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - -
Punishment - -
Compounding - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty -
Punishment - -
Compounding - -

For and on behalf of the Board

T

Place: Hyderabad T. ANIRUDH REDDY J. BRI MOHAN REDDY

Date: 23+ May, 2016 ‘ Director Director

DIN: 06908378 DIN:00012927
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Form No. AOC-2
(Purswant to clause (b) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements enteted into by the Company with related parties

referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 inciunding certain arms length transactions

under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

{a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(¢) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or

transactons including the value, if any

() Justification for entering into such contracts ot

arrangernents or transactions

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in

general meeting as required under first proviso to section

188
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2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(2) Name(s) of the related party and narure of relationship During the year, no materdal coniracts or

arrangements have been entered into by the

Company.

(b) Nature of contracts/atrangements/transactions Not Applicable

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions | Not Applicable

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Not Applicable

transactions including the value, if any:

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: Not Applicable

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board

=Y

Place: Hyderabad T. ANIRUDH REDDY
Date: 23+ May, 2016 Director

DIN: 06908378
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ANNEXURE -3

(Pursuaat to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaties/ associate
companies/ joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs)

1. 81. No.

1 2

5. Name of the subsidiay Gayatd Jhansi Gayatri Lalitpur
Roadways Limited Roadways Limited

3. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding compjl:;z reporting period NA NA-
4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date
of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign Indian Rupees Indian Rupees
subsidiaries.
5. Share capital 42.40,00,000 31,79,80,060
6. Reserves & surplus (30,31,13,838) (19,96,62,126)
7. Total assets 352,18,93,338 264,19,36,808
8. Total Liabilities 352,18,93,338 264.19,36,808
9. Investments Nil Nil
10. Turnover 59,90,00,000 47,90,00,000
11. Profit / (Loss) before taxation (5,51,63,700) (1,20,78,961)
12. Provision for taxation 7 Nil Nil
13. Profit / (Loss) after taxation {5,51,63,700) (1,20,78,961)
i4. Proposed Dividend Nil Nil
15. % of shareholding 51% 51%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies

and Joint Ventures
Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Hyderabad Cyberabad Western UP
Expressways Limited Bxpressways Tollway Limited
Limited
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2016
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures 50% 50% 49%
held by the company on the year end
No. 9,90,000 9,90,000 49.36,850
Amount of Investment in Rs.99,00,000/- Rs.99,00,000/- Rs.46,06,09,996/-
Associates/Joint Venture
Extent of Holding % 50% 50% 49%
3. Description of how there is Voting Power above | Voting Power above Voting Power
significant influence 20% 20% above 20%
4. Reason why the associate/joint N.A N.A N.A
venture is not consolidated
6. Networth attributable to {Rs.31679520/-) (Rs.34,26,81,891/-) | Rs.30,36,49,318/-
Shareholding as per latest audited :
Balance Sheet
7. Profit / (Loss) for the year Rs.6,34,43,044/- {Rs.13,16,49,737/-) | (Rs.30,46,51,667/-)
1. Considered in Consolidation Rs.6,34,43,044 /- (Rs.13,16,49,737/-) | (Rs.30,46,51,667/-)

il. Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

For and on behalf of the Board

—y

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May, 2016

T. ANIRUDH REDDY J- OHAN DY

Ditector

DIN: 06908378

Director

DIN:00012927
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
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Kundan Bagh, Begumpst
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India

T +91 40 6630 8200
F +91 40 6630 8230

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Gayatri Infra Ventutes Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Gayatri Infra Ventures
Lirnited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, the Statement of

Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Staternent for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

2. 'The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements, that give a trme and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act; safeguarding the assets of
the Company; preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintensnce of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recotds, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and ate

f}‘\\free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

L=

Auditor’s Responsibility

=3, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our
andit.

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registerad with limited liability
Chartered Accountants with identification number AAC-2085 and its registered )
Offices in Bengaluny, Chandigarh, Chennai, Gurgaon, Hyderabad, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delf, Noida and Pune office at L-41 Connaught Circus, New Delhi, 110001, india
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10.

11,

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and

matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Those standards requite that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements are free from material misstatement. '

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the anditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the anditor considers
mternal financial controls relevant to the Commpany’s preparation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design zudit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our qualified audit opinion on the standalone financia] statements.

Basis for Qualificd Opinion

As detailed in note 23 to the accompanying financial statements, current igvestments as at
31 March 2016 includes amounts aggregating to 460,609,996 invested in 4,936,850 equity shares of a
jointly controlled entity for which the management has entered into a definitive agreement for
divestment of its entire stake. As represented to us, the management is in the process of Tenegotiating
the consideration for the sale of investments along with making amrangements for meeting the
conditions stipulated therein. Pending final outcome of the szid process, we are unable to comment

upon the consequential effects, if any, of the said matter on the carrying value of investments and the
accompanying financial statements.

. Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
patagraph, the afotesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required 2nd give 2 true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2016, and its loss
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure I a
statement on the matters specified in patagraphs 3 and 4 of the Ozder.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
" paragraph, we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report atre in agreement with the books of
account;

Chartered Accountants
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except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2016
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph;

we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Company as of 31 March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statemnents

of the Company for the year ended on that date snd our report dated 23 May 2016 as per
Annexure IT expressed an unmodified opinion thereon; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rude 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i the Company does not have any pending litigations which would irpact its standalone

financtal position;

f.  the Company did not have any long-term contracts including detivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses; and

11, there were no amounts which were required to be transferreéd to the Investor Education and

ot Walker Chandiok &)&o Lk pr L

Chartered Accountants

Firfs Repig n No,»001076N/N500013
per Jain

Partner

Protection Fund by the Company.

Membership No.: 207660 7::‘-:"77:":"

Place :

Hyderabad

Date : 23 May 2016

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Gayatti Infra
Ventures Limited, on the standalone financial statemeunts for the yvear ended 31 March 2016

Annexure 1

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the
books of account and other records examined by us in the notmal coutse of audit, we report that:

@® (@ The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of
the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

() The Company does not hold any immovable properties. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(D{c) of the Order are not applicable.

(i) The Company does not have any inventory. Accoxdingly, the provisions of clause 3(i} of the
Order are not applicable.
(ui) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Lirnited

Liability Partnerships (LLPs) ot other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189

of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(ii)(a), 3(ii}(b) and 3({1)(c) of the Order are not
applicable.

{iv) On the basis of information and explanations provided to us by the management, duly read with
note 24 to the accompanying financial statements, the Company has not entered into any

transaction falling within the ambit of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act and hence accordingly the
provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable.

) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(¥) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) To the best of out knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified maintenance
of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s services.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) (8} Undisputed statatory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
wax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, have not been regulatly deposited to the appropriate authorities and there have
been significant delays in a large number of cases. Undisputed amounts payable in respect
thereof, which were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable are as specified in table:

Name of the | Nature of the Amount Period to Due date Date of
statute dues which the payment
) atnount relates

Income Tax | Tax deducted at | 28,816,049 | Financial year | Varous dates | Not yet
Act, 1961 source 2014-15 paid
Income Tax | Tax deducted at | 12,378,072 | Financial year | Various dates | Not yet
Act, 1961 source 2015-16 paid
The Finance | Setvice tax 5,500,178 Financial year | 5 September | Not yet
Act, 1994 2012-13 2012 paid

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Gayatri Infra
Ventures Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the veat ended 31 March 2016

(b) The duves outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, ate as follows:

Name of Nature of | Amount | Amountpaid | Perod to Forum where dispute
statute dues under protest | which it is pending
) &) pertains
Income Tax | Incorme 892,926 455,023 Financial year | Commisstoner of
Act, 1961 Tax 2008-09 Income tax(appeals),
Hyderabad

(viif) There are no loans or borrowings payable to banks or government and no dues payable to
debenture-holders. The Company has defaulted in repayment of borrowings to the following
financial institution:

Name of the fmancial | Amount Delay in days | Paid before Over-due
Institution balance sheet | installment as on 31
date March 2016
) ®) &
IL & FS Financial 11,907,558 26-338 days 8,605,202 3,302,356
Services Limited
{ix) The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). In our opinion, the term loans wete applied for the purpose for which the loans
wete obtained.
x) No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officets or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.
(1) On the basis of information and explanation furnished to us by the management, no managerial
remuneration has been paid during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xi) of the
Order are not applicable.

(i) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order 1s
not applicable.

(i) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc., as requited by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the yeat, the Company has not made any preferential 2llotment or private placement of
shares or fully oz partly convertible debentures.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected

with them.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexute I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Gayatri Infra
Ventures Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the veat ended 31 March 2016

(zovi) The Company’s principal objectives are to provide infrastructural facilities either on its own or

through incorporating and investing in special purpose vehicles. Consequently, the Company has
significant investments in its subsidiaries, jointly controlled Companies and other entities, On the
basis of assessment of the nature of business of the Company, duly supported by an independent
opinion from an expert, the management is of the view that the provisions of Section 45-IA of the

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the Company has
not registered under the aforesaid provisions as zt 31 March 2016.

\!@FU@J@LQ/\% WP

or Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Membership No.: 207660

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 23 May 2016

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Gayatri Infra
Ventures Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2016

Annexure IT

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
(“the Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2016, we have audited the internal financial
controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the company of as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial teporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuting the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company’s business, including adherence to Cornpany’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our andit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAT and deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an andit of IFCoFR, and the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the ICAIL Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

4. Our audit involves petforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an understanding of
IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend

on the auditor’s judgement, incinding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
* our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.

Chartered Atcountants
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Annexure IT to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Gayatri Infra
Ventutes Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial staterents for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's IFCoFR includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions aze recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 2ccounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with anthorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have 2
material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IRCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk
that IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
fivancial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

/on o
< %@m,\ o
or Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firmis Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

per
Partner
Membership No.: 207660

ay K

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2016



Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

Notes 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 3 1,77,08,330 1,77,08,330
Reserves and surplus 4 1,09,30,71,478 1,33,45,02,912
1,11,07,79,808 1,35,22,11.242
Non current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 1,50,00,00,000 -
Current labilities
Short-term borrowings 6 55,29,69,740 51,72,55,218
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 7
enterprises - -
Total cutstanding dues of creditor other than micro 7
enterprises and small enterprises 16,35,364 16,607,084
Other current labilities 8 17,79,28,750 1,50,93,89,676
73,25,33,854 2,02,82,51,978
Total equity and liabilities 3,34,33,13,662 3,38,04,63,220
Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
- Tangible assets 9 . 4395 46,683
Non-current investments 10 48,30,13,210 86,40,63,206
Long-term loans and advances 11 1,66,44,70,500 2,30,48,28,441
2,14,74,88,105 3,16,89,38,330
Current assets
Current investments 10 59,47,99,996 -
Trade receivables 12 28,26,100 28,26,100
Cash and cash equivalents 13 28,89,247 76,75,408
Short-term loans and advances 11 59,53,10,214 20,10,23,382
1,19,58,25,557 21,15,24,890
Total assets 3,34,33,13,662 3,38,04,63,220

The accompanying notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in

our report.of even d\lat;:d, 0
5 Walker Chondiok & Co-TLP k_q)
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- Chartered Accopntants BOR

For and on behalf of the Board of
Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

per Sanjay Kanmad Jain - - : T. Anirudh Reddy J.Brij
Partner - Director Director

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2016

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2016




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2016
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
Notes 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
1. Otherincome 14 2,22.78.891 2,31,85,346
Total revenue 2,22,78,891 2,31,85,346
II. Expenses
- Employee benefits expense 15 15,54,000 19,29,000
- Finance costs 16 25,22,23.937 23,97,32,020
- Depreciation 9 42,288 596,444
- Other expenses 17 98,90,100 48,03,521
Total expenses 26,37,10,325 24,70,60,985
III. Loss befote tax (24,14,31,434) (22,38,75,639)
IV. Tax expense
- Current tax - -
V. Loss for the year (24,14,31,434) (22,38,75,639)
VI. Earnings / (loss) per equity share (EPES)
- Basic and diluted (136.34) (126.42)
Weighted average number of equity shares considered for
computation of EPES 17,70,833 17,710,833
Nominal value per equity share 10 10

The accompanying notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in
our report of even date.

pObe! Coudic 2o
or W%cer Chandiok & Cﬁﬁ:’[’ .
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For and on behalf of the Board of
Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2016

T. Anirndh Reddy
Ditector

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2016




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2016
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Cash flow fromn operating activities
Loss before tax (24,14,31,434) (22,38,75,639)
Adjustments for:
Depredation 42,288 5,96,444
Interest income (2,18,20,891) (2,20,84,300)
Provision for diminution in the value of investments - -
Interest expense 24,36,73,028 23,58,58,056
Operating loss before working capital changes (1,95,37,009) (95,05,439)
Changes in working capital:
Increase in trade payables 28,280 83,020
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 2,23,25,826 (1,23,23,926)
Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances 5,63,24,063 57,50,510
Cash generated in operating activities before income tax 7,86,78,169 (64,90,396)
Less: Income taxes paid (21,82,063) (21,87,852)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities A 5,69,59,097 (1,81,83,687)
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest income received - 21,87,852
Dividend incorne - 205,783
Net cash generated from investing activities B - 23,93,635
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest charges paid (24,74,59,780) (22,65,85,806)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings, net 3,57,14,522 24.05,95,583
Repayment of long-term borrowings (1,35,00,00,000) -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,50,00,00,000 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities C (6,17,45,258) 1,40,09,777
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C (47,86,161) 75,95,429
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 76,75,408 79,979
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 28,89.247 76,75,408
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:
Cash on hand 5,553 268
Balances with banks in current accounts 28.83,694 76,75,140

28.,89,247 76,75,408

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in
our report of even date.

’, . \
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Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Bogrd of Directors of

J.Brij Mohan Reddy

Director

T. Anirudh Reddy

Sl Director

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2016

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2016




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

1

Company overview

Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated during the year 2008 in accordance with
the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The Company, on its own and through its subsidiaties
and jointly controlled entities, is in the business of construction, opetations and maintenance of catriageways
on toll and annuity basis putsuant to the development agreements with the National and State Governments

and does investments in companies engaged in the construction, operations and maintenance of roads,
highways, vehicle bridges and tunnels and toll roads.

Summary of significant accounting policies

(@)

(b)

(é)

[CY

Basis of preparation of standalone financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
(“Indian GAAP”) and in compliance with the mandatory accounting standards (“AS™) as prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”™) read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts)

Rules, 2014 (as amended). Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies applied by the Company are
consistent with those used in the previous year.

All assets and labilities have been classified as cutrent or nom-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. Based on the nature of work and
the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash

equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose of
current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requites management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the standalone financial statements and

reported amounts of income and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include useful

lives of fixed assets, diminution other than tempotaty in the carrying value of long-term investments and
deferred taxes. Although these estitnates ate based on management’s best knowledge of current events
and actions, actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognised prospectively in the current and future periods.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comptise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Tnterest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and

the rate applicable.

-




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Taxes on income

B

Current tax

Cutrent tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax charges or credits reflect the tax effect of timing differences between accounting income and -
taxable income for the period. The deferred tax chatges or credits and the corresponding deferred tax
liabilities or assets are recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty
that the assets can be realized in the future petiods; howevet, where there is unabsotbed depreciation or
cartied forward loss under taxation laws, defetred tax assets are recognized only if there is a virtual
certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets ate reviewed at each balance sheet date and

written down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be)
to be realized.

Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as
current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Long-tetm
investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a

decline, other than tetnporary, in the value of the investments. Current investments are carried at lower of
cost and fair value detetmined on individual investment basis.

(g) Borrowing costs

(h) Segment reporting

(®

0

. "I"R’}‘Ol?ﬂbly will not, require an outflow of resources.

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are
capitalised as patt of cost of such assets till such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying
asset is one that requires substantial petiod of time to get ready for its intended use. All other botrowing
costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incutred.

Segments are identified in line with AS-17 “Segment Reporting”, taking into considerations the internal
organization and management structure as well as the different risk and returns of the segment.

Earnings / (loss) per equity share

Basic earnings per equity shate are calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duting the yeat.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eatnings per equity share, the net profit ot loss for the year

attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average numbet of shares outstanding during the year
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and when it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined
based on management’s best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. A
disclosure of a contingent liability is made when there is a possible or a present obligation that may, but




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

3. Share capital

As at
31 Match 2016 31 Match 2015
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorized
Equity shares of T10 each 20,00,000 2,00,00,000 20,00,000 2,00,00,000
- 20,00,000  2,00,00,000 20,00,000  2,00,00,000
Issued, subsctibed and paid-up
Equity shares of ¥10 each fully paid up 17,70,833  1,77,08,330 17,70,833  1,77,08,330
17,70.833  1,77,08,330 17,70,833  1,77,08,330
() Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year
As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Number Amount Number Amount
At the beginning and at the end of year 17,70,833 1,77,08,330 17,70,833 1,77,08,330

(b) Terms, rights and resttictions attached to equity shares
‘The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of T10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of eqnuity shates will be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distdbution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details of equity shares held by holding company

As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Number Amount Number Amount
Guayatd Projects Limited 12,47,000 1,24.70,000 12.47.000 1,24,70,000
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company :
As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Number Amount Number Amount
Gayatt Projects Limited 12,47,000 70.42% 12.47,000 70.42%
5,20,833 20.41% 5,20,833 29.41%

' \\_ S ( Thir space bas been intentionally left blank)




Gayatri Infra Ventutes Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

4. Reserve and surplus

As at

31 Mazch 2016 31 March 2015
Secutities ptemium account
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 2,19,96,19,577 2,19,96,19,577
Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (86,51,16,665) (64,10,91,113)
Add: Adjustments™ - (1,49,913)
Add: Loss for the year (24,14,31,434) (22,38,75,639)
Balance at the end of the year (1,10,65,48,099) (86,51,16,665)

1,09,30,71,478 1,33,45,02,912

* Represents adjustment on account of change in estimated useful life of tangible assets in accordance with the

provisions of Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013.
5. Long-term borrowings

As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Term loans
Unsecured
From others - 1,35,00,00,000
From related party 1,50,00,00,000 -
1,50,00,00,000 1,35,00,00,000
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings{refer note 8) - 1,35,00,00,000
1,50,00,00,000 -

a) Details of the borrowings

(@) Term loans from related party aggregating to ¥1,500,000,000 (31 March 2015: Nil) is secured by way of

(2) pledge of 1,200,000 Equity shares held by the holding company, M/s Gayatxd Projects Ltd,

(b) cotporate guarantee of Gayatri Projects Limited.
(i) Term loans from others aggregating to Nil (31 March 2015: ¥1,350,000,000) was secured by way of

a) pledge of 1,200,000 Equity shares held by the holding company, M/s Gayatri Projects Ltd,
pledg ty y g company. ¥y 1

(b) corporate guarantee of Gayatsi Projects Limited.

{ti) The above facilities carry an annual interest rate of 16% (31 March 2015: 16%).

b) Terms of tepayment

As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Up to 1 year - 1,35,00,00,000
2 to 5 years 1,50,00,00,000 -
Above 5 years - -
1,50,00,00,000 1,35,00,00,000

¢) Details of overdue amounts of interest

As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
0-30 days - 13,53,190
30-90 days 22,48,135 5,19.40,116
90-180 days. 4,99,73,567 34,04,779
above 180.days 31,63,388 77,93,695
\sL\ - 5,53,85,090 6,44,91,779

RN )
L




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

6. Short-term bortowings

As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
(Unsecured loans)
From related party * 55,29,69,740 51,72,55,218
55,29,69,740 51,72,55,218

* Represents unsecured, interest frec loans from the related party repayable on demand.

7. Trade payables

‘ As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Dues to others 1,11,300 83,020
Dues to related party* 15,24,064 15,24.064
16,35,364 16,07,084

* Represents intetest free retention money payable to related party.
Based on information available with the Company, as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: Nil), there are no

- suppliers who are registered as micro and small enterprises under the provisions of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

8. Other cutrent liabilities

As at

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Cutrent maturities of long-term botrowings (refer note 5) - 1,35,00,00,000
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 5,53,85,000 6,44.91,779
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 5,46,31,539 4,93,11,602
Statutory liabilities 6,63,26,332 4,06,12,181
Other liabilities 15,85,789 49,74,114
17,79,28,750 1,50,93,89,676

(This space bar been intentionally left blank)




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(Al amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

9. Tangible assets

Particulars Office equipment Computers Total

Gross block

As at 1 April 2014 1,61,999 12,86,659 14,48,658
Additions - - -
Adjustments - 3,45,120 3,45,120
As at 1 April 2015 1,61,999 9,41,539 11,03,538
Additions - - -
As at 31 March 2016 1,61,999 9,41,539 11,03,538

Accumulated depreciation

Up to 1 April 2014 54,504 6,001,114 6,55,618
Charge for the year 61,605 5,34,839 5,96,444
Adjustments - 1,95,207 1,95,207
Up to 31 March 2015 1,16,109 9,40,746 10,56,855
Charge for the year 41,495 793 42,288
Up to 31 March 2016 1,57,604 9,41,539 10,99,143
Net block

As at 31 March 2016 4,395 - 4,395

As at 31 March 2015 45,890 793 46,683

(This space has been intentionally kft blank)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

10, Investments

As at
% 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
holding Number Amount Number Amount
a) Non-corrent investments
Unquoted trade investments in equity
instroments of T 10 each fully paid:
- in subsidianes
Gayawd [hansi Roadways Limited* 51.00% ~  2,16,19,994 21,61,99,940 2,16,19,994 21,61,99,940
Gayat Lalitpur Roadways Limited* 51.00% 1,62,18,000 16,21,80,000 1,62,18,000 16,21,80,000
3,78,37,994 37,83,79,940 3,78,37,9%4 37,83,79,940
- in joint ventures
Hyderabad Expressways Limited 50.00% 9,90,000 99,00,000 9,90,000 99,00,000
Cyberabad Expressways Limited 50.00% 9,90,000 99,00,000 9,90,000 99,00,000
Western UP Tollway Limired* 49.00% 49,536,850 46,06,09,995 49,36,850 46,06,09,996
69,16,850 48,04,09,996 69,16,850 48,04,09,996
-others
Indore Dewas Follways Limited 33.36% 16,680 1,66,800 16,680 1,66,800
HKR Roadways Limited 11.00% 5,10,647 51,06,470 5,10,647 51,06,470
5,217,327 52,73,270 5,271,327 52,73,270
Jovestments in debentures of T 10 each fully paid:
- in joint ventures
Cyberabad Expressways Limited 50.00% 2,13,75,000 21,37,50,000 - -
. 2,13,75,000 21,37,50,000 - -
Aggregate amount of unguoted
investments, at cost 1,07,78,13,206 86,40,63,206
Less: Investments held for sale (refer note 23) 59,47,99.996 -
Net vale of investments 48,30,13,210 86,40,63,206

(This space bar been intentionally left blank)




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounss in T unless otherwisc stated)

10. Investinents (continued)

As at
o 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
holding Number Amount Number Amount
b) Current investments
Unquoted trade investments in cquity
instruments of ¥ 10 each fully paid:
- in joint ventures
Cyberabad Expressways Limited 30.00% 5,94,000 59,40,000 - -
Western U Tollway Limited* 49.00% 49.36,850 44,06,09,996 - -
55,30,850 46,65,49,996 - -
Investments in debentures of ¥ 10 each fully paid:
- in joint ventures
Cyberabad lixpressways Limited 30.00% 1,28,25,000 12,82,50,000 - -
1,28,25,000 12,82,50,000 - -
Net value of investments 59,47,99,996 -

*Equity shares to the tune of 16,267,900 (31 March 2015: 16,267,900) of Gayatti Jhansi Roadways Limited, cquity shates to the tune
of 12,199,900 {31 March 2015: 12,199,900) of Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited and equity shates to the tune of 4,936,850 (31
March 2015 4,936,850) of Western UI* Toltway Limited have been pledged in favour of Infrastructure Development Finance
Company Limited for the term loan availed by the respective companies, Further, cquity shares to the tune of 7,980 (31 March 2015:

Nil} of KR Roadways Limited have been pledged in favour of 11 & 178 Trust Company Limited for the term loan availed by the
company.

() The legal ownership of following shares vests with the holding company, M/s Gayatrd Projects Limited, in accordance with the
contractual provisions of the agreement. Necessary regulatory filings have however been made to refiect the Company as the

beneficiare.
Number of equity shares
Name of the Company 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

sayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited 100 100
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited 100 100
IHyderabad Iixpressways Limited 2,62,548 2,62,548
Cyberabad Expressways Limited 2,62,548 2,62,548
R 5,25,296 5,25,296

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

1L

b)

14.

Loans and advances

As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
{Unsecured, considered good)
Long-term
Advances to related parties
- to subsidiaries 28,56,20,060 33,56,20,060
- to joint ventures 33,11,00,000 92,36,40,004
- to fellow subsidiaries 36,30,00,000 36,30,00,000
- to others 67,91,37,309 67,91,37,309
Advance tax 56,13,131 34,31,068
1,66,44,70,500 2,30,48,28,441
Short-term
Loans to related parties
- to joint ventures 59,47,41,050 20,06,54,218
- to fellow subsidiaries 5,69,164 3,69,164
' 59,53,10,214 20,10,23,382
Trade receivables
As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
(Unsecured, considered good)
Due for a period exceeding six months
- Recetvable from holding company 28,26,100 28,26,100
28,26,100 28,26,100
Cash and cash equivalents
As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Balances with banks in current accounts 28.83,694 76,75,140
Cash on hand 5,553 268
28,89,247 76,75,408
Other income
For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Interest income from jointly controlled entities 2,18,20,891 2,18,78,517
Interest on Income tax refund - 6,51,606
- Other income 458,000 6,55,223
T 2,22,78,891 2,31,85,346

(Lhis space bas been intentionally left blank)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

15. Employee benefits expense

.

. .f"\\-., .

For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Salartes and wages 15,54,000 19,29,000
15,54,000 19,29,000
16. Finance costs
For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Interest expense 24.36,73,028 23,58,58,056
Other borrowing costs 85,50,909 38,73,964
25,22,23,937 23,97,32,020
17. Other expenses
For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Rates and taxes 73,15,273 33,97,266
Repairs and maintenance - others 25,044 16,696
Legat and professional charges 10,86,860 23,500
Payments to the auditor
- audit fees 13,16,750 12,92,140
Travelling and conveyance 44,580 9,960
Director’s sitting fees 55,000 15,000
Miscellaneous expenses 46,593 48,959
98,90,100 48,03,521
18. Contingent liabijlities and commitments:
As at
31 March 2016 31 Maxch 2015
Contingent liability
Disputed income tax dues 8,92,926 8,92,926
Corporate guarantee given to Indore Dewas Tollway Limited 6,26,13,00,000 -
Commitments
Investing commitment towards projects developed by other entities (zefer
note 24) i Not ascertainable  Not ascertainable
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
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19.

Related party transactions

a) Names of the related parties and description of relationship

b)

Name of the telated party

Nature of relationship

Gayatr Projects Limited

Holding Company

Gayatd Jhansi Roadways Limited
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

Subsidiary Companies

Bhandara Thermal Power Cotporation Limited
Indore Dewas Tollways Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

Hyderabad Expressways Limited
Cyberabad Expressways Limited
Western UP Tollway Limited

Jointly Controlled Entities

Deep Corporation Private Limited

HKR Roadways Limited

Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited

Enterprises in which KMP and/or their relatives have
significant influence

Transactions with related parties

For the year ended

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

Transactions with Gayatri Projects Limited

Payments made on behalf of the company

Amounts received by the company

Transactions with Gayatti Jhansi Roadways Limited
Payments made

Transactions with Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Payments made

Transactions with Hyderabad Expressways Limited
Reimbursement of expenses

Payments made

Transactions with Cyberabad Expressways Limited
Interest on advances

Reimbursement of expenses

Payments made

Transactions with HKR Roadways Limited

Salaries paid on behalf of the company

Allotment of shares against advances made

Payments made

Transactions with Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited
Payments made

Transactions with Bhandata Thermal Power Corporation
Loans taken

Interest on loans taken

Transactions with Indote Dewas Tollways Limited
Corporate gurantee given to the lenders

5,58,14,522

2,00,000

2,00,000

3,00,000
2,18,20,628

3,00,000

2,00,000
2,00,000

1,50,00,00,000
17,62,00,349

6,26,13,00,000

20,30,00,000
3,75,95,583

2,24.720

2,18,78,517
2,24.720

2,09,600
49,50,000

50,000
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<)

20.

2L

22,

Balances receivable / (payable)
As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Gayatr Projects Limited {55,16,67,704) (51,59,53,182)
Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited 19,18,00,060 19,18,00,060
Gayatd Lalitpur Roadways Limited 9,38,20,000 14,38,20,000
Indore Dewas Tollways Limited 36,30,00,000 36,30,00,000
Hyderabad Expressways Limited 33,15,49.440 33,15,49.440
Cyberabad Expressways Limited 42,87,93,343 413954778
Western UP Tollway Limited 37,87,90,004 37,87,90,004
HEKR Roadways Limited 67,89,27,709 67,89,27,709
Bhandara Thermal Corporation Limited (1,60,67,14,271) -
Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited 5,69,164 3,69,164

Deferred tax :
In the absence of virtual certainty of future taxable profits supported by convincing evidence, the Company has
not created deferred tax assets on unabsorbed business losses and other timing differences. The Company would

be able to use unabsorbed tax depreciation and business losses to set off against future taxable income for a
specified period.

Segment reporting

Based on the Company's business model and considering the internal financial reporting to the management, the
investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures which are engaged in the business of construction in the transport
infrastructure and hence has been considered as the only reportable segment. Purther all the services are rendered

only in India. Hence there are no additional disclosures required to be provided in terms of Accounting Standard
17 on "Segment Reporting".

Investinents in joint ventures

The Company's interest, as a ventuses, in jointly controlled eatities (incorporated Joint Ventures) is:

Percentage of ownership interests

Name of joint venture Fountry Oi: as et
incorporation
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Hyderabad Expressways Limited India 50% 50%
Cyberabad Expressways Limited India 50% 50%
India 49% 49%

Western UP Tollway Limited

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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22, Investments in joint ventutes(continued)

The Company's interest in these Joint Ventures is reported as Non-current investments (note 10) and stated at
cost. However, the Company's share of each of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses, etc. (each without
elimination of the effect of transactions between the Company and the Joint Venture) related to its interests in

these Joint Ventures are give below:

. In Cyberabad Expressways Limited

Asat

31 Mazch 2016 31 March 2015
Assets
Non-current assets 1,49,98,70,537 1,68,99,49,168
Current assets 34,23,92.846 18,80,96,126

1,84,22,63,383 1,87,80,45,294
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities 1,18,77,84,772 1,36,04,03,813
Current liabilities 99,71,60,472 6,05,52,867

2,18,49,45,244 1,42,09,56,680

For the year ended

31 Maxch 2016 31 March 2015
Income 39,82,67,143 39,66,37,900
Expenses 46,40,92,012 48.67,46,639
Loss for the year (6,57,10,36%) (9,01,08,738)

. In Hyderabad Expressways Limited
As at

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Assets
Non-current assets 90,30,03,787 1,03,79,68,497
Current assets 51,74,36,624 36,24,16,846

1,42,04,40,411 1,40,03,85,343
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities 1,14,72,17,149 1,17,00,16,660
Current liabilities 30,49,02,782 10,37,13,230
1,45,21,19,931 1,27,37,29,890
For the year ended

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Income 132,88,70,774 32,29,65,573
Expenses 29.71,52,087 31,87,79,977
Tax expense 65,97,166 -
Loss-for the year 2,51,21,522 41,85,596

o
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22, Investments in joint ventures(continued)
c. In Western UP Tollway Limited

Asat
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Assets

Non-current assets 2,86,67,02,180 1,03,79,68,497
Current assets 10,08,36,041 36,24,16,846
2,96,75,38,221 1,40,03,85,343

Liabilities _
Non-current liabilities 2,29,28,74,845 1,17,00,16,660
Current liabilities 37,10,14,059 10,37,13,230
2,66,38,88,903 1,27,37,29,890

For the year ended

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
~ Income 51,42.32.160 32,29,65,573
Expenses 66,35,11,477 31,87,79,977
Loss for the year (14,92,79,317) 41,85,596

(This space has been tntentionally left blank)
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23. Investments held-for-sale

a. The management has entered into a definitive sale agreement dated 19 January 2016 with Cube Highways
and Infrastructure PTE Limited for divestment of its entire shareholding in Western UP Tollway Limited.
The conclusion of the sale is subject to compliances with certain mandatory conditions stipulated in the
agreement and finalisation of the sale consideration with the buyer, Pending completion of the said
activities as at 31 March 2016, the accompanying financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
March 2016 has not beea adjusted for effects of the same.

b. Pursuant to an agreement between Gayatr Projects Limited, Gayatr Infra Ventures Limited and AMP
Capital Mauritivs Limited, the Company has agreed to sell 594,000 equity shares and 12,825,000
debentures held in Cyberabad Expressways Limited to AMP Capital Mauritius Limited at an agreed

consideration of ¥134,190,000. Accordingly, the aforesaid investments have been presented as current
investments as at 31 March 2016.

24. During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company has extended certain corporate guarantees to the
lenders of the group entities in accordance with the contractual terms entered into with them. The
management, on the basis of assessment of the nature of business activities carried on, is of the view that
the provisions of Section 186 of the Act is not applicable to the Company as it does get classified as a
Company carrying on “Infrastructural Projects” as defined in Schedule VI to the Act.

25. Comparatives

The standalone financial statements for the previous period have been regrouped / rearranged to
conform to the current year presentation wherever required.

This is the summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information referred to in our
report of even date.

or Walker Chandiok & Co I For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants ST Gayatri Infra Ventures

o :\_\
per Sanjay Kumar Jain ! WJ T. Anirudh Reddy J-Brij Mohan Reddy
Partner o Director Director
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: 23 May 2016 Date: 23 May 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Gayatri Infra
Ventures Limited, (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), and its jointly controlled entities, which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 {
“the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group and its jointly controlled
entities, in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standatds specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). The Holding Company’s Board of Directors,
and the respective Board of Directors of the subsidiaries included in the Group, and of its jointly
controlled entities are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
.. true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
“Furthet, in terms with the provisions of the Act, the respective Board of Ditectors of the
" Holding Company and its sub51d1ary and jointly controlled compantes, are responsible for
_ ‘maintenance of adequate accounting records; safeguarding the assets; preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
> malﬂng ]udgrncnts and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
Chartered Accountants
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and presentation of the financial statements, which have been used for the purpose of

preparation of the consolidated financial staternents by the directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit.

4. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the
auditor’s report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those standatds requite that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the consoclidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Holding
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of

Directors, as well 2s evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

8. As stated in note 31, to the accompanying financial statements, Investments as at 31 March
2016 includes amounts aggregating to 460,609,996 invested in 4,936,850 equity shares of a
jointly controlled entity for which the management has entered into a definitive agreement for
divestment of its entire equity shates. As represented to us, the management is in the process of
renegotiating the consideration for the sale of investments along with making arrangements for
meeting the conditions stipulated. Pending final outcome of the said process, we are unable to

comment upon the consequential effects, if any, of the said matter on the the accompanying
financial Statements.

Qualified Opinion

9. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on the financial
statements of the subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities as noted below, except for the
-* - effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the
"\ aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
i manner so requited and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
-principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and
..-jointly controlled entities as at 31 March 2016, and their consolidated loss and their consolidated
~ cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Chartared Accountants
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Other Matters

10. We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries and three jointly controlled entities,
included in the consolidated financial statements, whose financial statements reflect total assets
(after eliminating intra-group transactions) of X11,770,307,305 as at 31 March 2016, total
revenues (after eliminating intra-group transactions) of %1,777,900,000 and net cash flows
amounting to 3491,229,959 for the year ended on that date. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosutes included in respect of these subsidiaties and jointly controlled entities, and our repott
in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it telates to the aforesad
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our teport on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to

our reliance on the work done by and the reports of the other auditors and the financial
statements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, and based on the auditot’s reports of the subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
patagraph, we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

- b) except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other anditors;

¢) the consolidated financial statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the

televant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
‘financial statements;

d) except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
patagraph, in out opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014(as amended);

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31st March 2016, duly taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the other statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies
and jointly controlled companies, none of the directors of the Group companies and jointly
controlled companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2016 from being
appointed as a ditector in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph; and

Chartered Accountants
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F;

we have also zudited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Company, its subsidiary companies and jointly controlled companies as of 31 March 2016, in
conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the group, and its
jointly controlled entities for the year ended on that date and our report dated 23 May 2016
as per Annexure I expressed unmodified opinion thereon;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

() As detailed in note 26, the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of

pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group and jointly
controlled entities;

(i) except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the Group and jointly controlled entities did not have any long-term

contracts including detivative contracts for which there wete any matetial foreseeable
losses; and

(i) there were no amounts which wete required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and joint
controlled companies incorporated in India.

S

Membership No.: 207660

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2016

Chartered Accotintants
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the membets of Gavatti Infra
Ventures Limited, on the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2016

Annexure I

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (¥the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial staternents of the Gayatri Infra Ventures
Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaties, (the Holding Company and its subsidiades
together referred to as “the Group”), and jointly controlled entities as of and for the year ended 31
March 2016, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and jointly controlled companies as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and jointly
controlled companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the intetnal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of intetnal conttol stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the company’s
policies, the safeguarding of the Company’s assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the IFCoFR of the Holding Company, its subsidiary
companies and jointly controlled companies as aforeszid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR and the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”), issued by the
ICAI Those standards and the Guidance Note requite that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate JFCoFR were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Onr audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFRCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an understanding of
IFCoFR, assessing the rsk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend

on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessmeat of the risks of matetial misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the andit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
approprizte to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the IFCoFR of the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies and jointly controlled companies as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extetnal putposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures
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Amnexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Gavatri Infra
Ventures Limited, on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authotisations of tanagement and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention ot timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's 2ssets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inhetent Liritations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to ertor or fraud may occur and not be -
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk
that the IFCoFR may become imadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiaty companies and jointly controlled companies,
which are companies incorporated in Todia, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company consideting the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

Other Matters

We did not audit the IFCoFR insofar as it relates to two subsidiary companies and three jointly
controlled entities which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial staternents reflect total
assets (after eliminating intra-group transactions) of ¥11,770,307,305 as at 31 March 2016, total
revenues (after eliminating intra-group transactions) of X1,777,900,000 2nd net cash flows amounting
to 491,229,959 for the year ended on that date. Qur report on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the IFCoFR for the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and jointly controlled
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act insofar as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and jointly controlled companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, is solely based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work
done by and the reports of the other auditors.

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Membership No.: 207660

Place: Hydetabad
Date: 23 May 2016



Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016
{All amount in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

As at
Notes 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 6 1,77,08,330 1,77,08,330
Reserves and surplus 3,68,78,030 50,30,55,727
5,45,86,360 52,07,64,057
Minority interest 11,77,12,400 15,01,91,726
Non-current liabilties
Long-term borrowings 8 7,62,77,47,040 8,85,77,60,147
Other long-term hiabilities 9 - 5,72,78,066
Long-term provisions 10 77,98,24.863 73,53,03,746
8,40,75,71,903 9,65,03,41,959
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 11 67,79,06,830 62,16,62,434
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 12 - -
Total outstanding dues of creditor other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 12 8,12,79,185 6,35,34,203
Other current liabilities 13 3,51,28,96,586 2,53,55,14,532
Short-term provisions 10 12,98,45,444 13,87.25,658
4,40,19,28,045 3,35,94,36,827
12,98,17,98,708 13,68,07,34,569
Assets
Non-cutrent assets
Fixed assets
- Tangible assets 14 8,91,461 25,54,999
- Intangible assets 15 7,40,72,08,585 10,40,51,51,249
- Intangible assets under development 19,11,305 5,36,51,907 -
Non-current investments 16 52,73,270 52,73,270
Long-term loans and advances 17 1,15,01,42,151 1,20,80,02,369
' 8,56,54,26,772 11,67,46,34,294
Current assets
Trade receivables 18 39,94,65,928 57,48,42 456
Cash and cash equivalents 19 08,37,46,966 49,73,03,168
Short-term loans and advances 17 11,05,78,045 68,29,42,316
Other current assets 20 2.92,25,80,997 25,10,12,335
4,41,63,71,936 2,00,61,00,275
12,98,17,98,708 13,68,07,34,569

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in
our repott of even date.

%@t Chandi.ok% %%0 \L{)

ered Accountants

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2016

For and on hehalf of the Board of
Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

T. Anirudh Reddy
Director

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2016
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2016
(All amount in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
Notes 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
I. Revenue from operations 21 2,28,95,22,503 2,30,64,93,625
II. Otherincome 22 4.21,37.150 3,09,31,555
II1. Total tevenue 2,33,16,59,653 2,33,74,25,180
IV. Expenses
- Employee benefits expense 23 3,27,63,620 2,93,34,709
- Finance costs 24 1,31,73,86,207 1,40,28,53 524
- Depreciation and amortisation expense 14 and 15 1,03,41,66,446 91,50,97,433
- Other expenses 25 43,94,03,238 43,59,61,636
- Prior pedod items, net - {25,41,326)
Total expenses 2,82,37,19,511 2,78,07,05,976
V. Loss before tax (49,20,59,858) (44,32,80,796)
Loss from continuing operations before tax {34,27,80,541) (38,77,54,862)
Tax expense of contnuing operations 65,97,165 5,07,417
Loss from continuing operations after tax (34,93,77,706) (38,82,62,279)
Loss from discontinuing operations before tax (14,92,79,317) (5,55,25,934)
Tax expense of discontinuing operations - -
Loss from discontinuing operations after tax (14,92,79,317) (5,55,25,934)
VI. Loss for the year {49,86,57,023) (44,37,88,213)
Share of loss to attributable to minority interest (3,24,79,326) (3,94,43,728)
Share of loss attributable to ownets of the parent (46,61,77,697) (40,43,44,485)
VII. Earnings/(loss) per equity share (EPES)
-Basic and diluted {263.25) (228.34)
Weighted average number of equity shares
considered in computation of basic and diluted 17,70,833 17,70,833
EPES
Nominal value per equity share 10 10

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
This 1s the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in
our report of even date,
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- For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 7o

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Di
Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

" T. Anirudh Reddy
Director

Place: Hyderabad

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2016

Date: 23 May 2016




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2016

{All amount in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 Mazrch 2015
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (49,20,59,858) (44,32,80,796)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Interest income

Income from mutual funds

Interest on borrowings

Profit on sale of fixed assets

Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in working capital;

Increase in trade payables

Increase/{decrease) in other liabilities

Increase in provisions

Decrease in trade receivabes

Decrease in loans and advances

Increase in other current assets

Cash from operating activities before income tax
Income taxes refund received/(paid)

Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities

Interest received

Income from mutual funds

Purchase of fixed assets

Sale of fixed assets

Disposal of interest in jointly controlled entity
Expenditure on intangible assets

Investment in/proceeds from in mutual funds (nef)
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activides

Interest paid

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Proceeds from short-term borrowings, net

Net cash nsed in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comptises of:
Cash on hand
Balances with banks

A+B+C

1,03,41,66,446

91,50,97,433

(26,09,657) (9,15,649)
(3,12,27,809) (2,79,96,712)
1,31,73,86,207 1,39,16,78,794
. (42,301)
1,82,56,55,329 1,83,45,40,769
2,17,94,428 78,71,719
7,25,50,099 (2,01,59,366)
18,42,03,868 18,92,65,505
17,53,76,528 236,10,632
54,96,24,620 7,08,82,047
(5,55,87,850) (2,92,37,758)
2,77,36,17,021 2,07,67,73,548
7,04,06,024 (2,40,66,517)
2,84,40,23,045 2,05,27,07,031
26,09,657 9,15,649
3,12,27,809 2,79.96,712
(52,919) (90,453)
- 1,67,501
(1,34,13,017) §
(58,17,37,341) (19,50,67,086)
- 1,33,01,813
(56,13,65,810) (15,27,75,864)
(1,23,75,63.133) (1,38,76,59,110)
(61,48,94,700) (55,57,73,890)
5,62,44,396 26,68,80,573
(1,79,62,13,437) (1,67,65,52,427)
48,64,43,798 22,33,78,740
49,73,03,168 27,39,24,428
98,37,46,966 49,73,03,168
54,473 9,50,358
98,36,92,493 49,63 ,52,810
98,37,46,966 49,73,03,168

This is the Consolidated Cash flow Statement teferred to
in our report of even date.

Charttered Accouptants

per
Partner

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 23 May 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Dir
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Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

1. Group Overview

Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on 22 January 2008 under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company, on its own and through its subsidiaties (collectively referred to as
the ‘Group’) and its jointly controlled entitfes, is inn the business of construction, opetrations and maintenance
of catriageways on toll and annuity basis pursuant to the development agreements with the National and State
Governments and does investments in companies engaged in the construction, operations and maintenance
of roads, highways, vehicle bridges and tunnels and toll roads.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India (“Indian GAAP”) and in compliance with the mandatory accounting standards (*AS™)
as presctibed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies applied
by the Group and its jointly controlled entities are consistent with those used in the previous yeat.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the normal operating cycle
and other crteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. Based on the nature of work and the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the
group and its jointly controlled entities has ascertained its operating cycle as up to twelve months for the
purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

3. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to Gayatei Infra Ventures Limited (the Company) and its

subsidiary companies and jointly controlled entities. These Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared on the following basis:

i. The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaty companies have been combined on a line-
by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items like assets, liabilities, income and expenses,

after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealized profits and
losses as per Accounting Standard 21 — “Consolidated Financial Statements”.

l. Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaties is identified and presented in the
consolidated balance sheet separately from liabilities and the equity of the Company’s shateholders.
Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of:

* The amount of equity attributable to minorities at the date on which investment in a subsidiary is made
and

* ‘The minorities’ share of movements, if any, in equity since the date the parent-subsidiaty relationship
came into existefice.

ifi. Minority interest’s share of net profit/loss of consolidated subsidiaties for the year is identified and

adjusted against the income of the Group in order to atrive at the net income attrbutable to shareholdets
of the Company.

iv. The financial statements of jointly controlled entities have been consolidated using the “proportionate

consolidation method” as per Accounting Standard 27 on “Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint

Ventures” on line by line basis by adding together the book values of assets, liabilities, income and
_ expenses after eliminating unrealized profits/losses on intra group transactions.




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

3. Basis of consolidation (continued)

v. As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements ate prepared using uniform accounting policies
for like transactions and other events in similar citcumstances and are presented in the same tmanner as
the Company’s standalone financial statements.

4. List of subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities consolidated:

The following entities, incorporated in India, have been considered for the purpose of preparation of
consolidated financial statements.

Percentage of interest
31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Subsidiaries
Gayatti Jhansi Roadways Limited 50.99% 50.99%
Gayatti Lalitpur Roadways Limited 51.00% 51.00%
Jointly Controlled Entities

Cyberabad Expressways Limited 50.00% 50.00%
Hyderabad Expressways Limited 50.00% 50.00%
Western UP Tollway Limited 49.00% 49.00%

5. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the reporting date of the financial statements and
amounts of income and expenses. Examples of such estimates include the ptrovision for doubtful
receivables, determination of recoverable amounts of fixed assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefits,

total projected revenue from a catriageway refated to toll based road projects and useful lives of fixed
assets.

Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
actual results could materially differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.

(b) Revenue Recognition

Contrast revensue

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised using percentage of completion method as
presctibed under AS 7 “Construction Contracts” and with reference to stage of completion of the
conttact activity at the reporting date. Depending on the nature and terms of individual contract,

stage of completion is determined on the basis of the propottion of costs incutred for the work
performed tll date to the total estimated contract costs.

Price escalation and other claims and / or variation in the contract work are included in contract
revenue when:

* Negotiations have reached 2t an advanced stage such that it is probable that customer will accept
the claim; and
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5.

(<)

(d)

Summaty of significant accounting policies (continued)

- Revenue from services rendered on a time and matetial basis is recognised as per the terms of
contracts with customers and as and when the related services are petformed. Revenue from fixed
ptice atrangements is recognised using the completed contract method and accotdingly, work
completed and not billed, if any, is recognised as unbilled revenue as at the Balance Sheet date.

Developraent of highways

In annuity based projects, revenue recognition is based on annuity accrued on time basis in accordance
with the provisions of the concessionaire agreement enteted into with National Highways Authority of
India or with respective state governments. Claims taised on NHAI or with respective state governments
under concessionaire agreement are accounted for in the year of acceptance.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive is established.
Fixed Assets

Tangible assets

Tangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition, less accumulated depreciation thereon The cost of an
item of fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes
ot levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in artiving at the purchase price.

Intangible assets

Carriageways represents commercial rights to collect toll fee in relation to roads projects and to teceive
annuity in the case of annuity based projects which has been accounted at the cost incurred on the project
activity towards reconstruction, strengthening, widening, rehabilitation of the roads on build, operate and
transfer basis. It includes all direct matetial, labout and subcontracting costs, inward freight, duties, taxes,
obligation towards negative grant payable to concessionaires, if any, and any directly attributable

expenditure on making the commercial right ready for its intended use.
Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation

Depteciation of tangible assets is provided on the basis of straight line method in accordance with
Schedule IT to the Act.

Awmortisation

Cartiageways related to annuity based projects are amortised over the petiod of the respective Concession

. agreements on a straight line basis ovet the period of agreement
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5. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

CY)

(e)

®

(g)

i

Carriageways related to toll based road projects are amortised based on proportion of actual revenue
received during the accounting year to the total projected revenue tll the end of the concession petiod in

accordance with notification dated 17 April 2012 issued by the Ministty of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India.

The total projected revenue for the entite useful life is reviewed at the end of each financial year for

expected changes in traffic and adjusted to reflect any changes in the estimate which will lead to actual
collection at the end of useful life.

Intangible assets representing carriageways are amottised over the concession period, ranging from 10 to
20 years, which is beyond the maximum petiod of 10 years as specified in AS 26 on Intangible Assets, as
the economic benefits from the undetlying assets would be avalable to the Group and its jointly
controlled entities over such period as pet the respective concessionaire agreements.

Impairment

The catrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the catrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amouat is the greater of the asset’s

net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value at the weighted average cost of capital.

Grants

Grants or subsidies from the govetnment or any regulatory authority are recognised when there is

reasonable assurance that the grant/subsidy will be received and all conditions attached to the
grant/subsidy will be complied with.

When the grant or subsidy relates to tevenue, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis in the

Statetnent of Profit and Loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they
are intended to compensate.

Where the grant or subsidy relates to an asset, the grant or subsidy amount (net of direct amount incurred

to eatn aforesaid grant or subsidy) is deducted from the gross value of the asset concerned in arriving at
the carrying amount of the related asset.

Borrowing costs

Bortowing Costs that are attributable to the acquisiion and construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of cost of such assets tll such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying
assef is one that requires substantial petiod of time to get ready for its intended use. Any income on the
temporary investments of borrowings is deducted from the borrowing cost.

Investments

Investments are classified as current and non-current investments. Investments that are readily realizable
and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All other
investments are classified as long-term investments. Non-current investments are carried at cost less
provision for permanent diminuton, if any, in the value of such investments. Cutrent investments ate

- --catfied at lower of cost and fait value.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.

(h) Earnings/(loss) per equity share

()

@

Basic earnings per equity share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the petiod attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, if any.

A
Taxes on Income

Current Tax

Tax on income for the cutrent year is detetmined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits
computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income

for the year, and computed using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the
Balance Sheet date.

At each reporting date, the group and its jointly controlled entities re-assess unrecognised deferred tax
assets. Deferred tax assets ate recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets
can be realized in future periods. However, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or cartied forward

loss under taxation laws, defetred tax assets are recognized only if there is a vittual certainty of realization
of such assets.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The group and its joQintly
controlled entities writes-down the carrying amount of defetred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer
reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent

that it becomes reasonably certain or vittually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable
income will be available.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comptise of cash at bank and on hand and include
short term investments with an otiginal matutity of three months or less.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provision is recognized when the Group and its jointy controlled entities has a present obligation as a
result of a past event and when it is probable that an outflow of resoutces will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions ate not discounted to their
ptesent value and are determined based on management’s best estimate required to settle the obligation at
the balance sheet date. These ate reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current

- tnanagement estimates. A disclosure of a contingent liability is made when there is a possible o1 a present

-

“obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
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5. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Segment teporting
Segments are identified in line with Accounting Standard (AS) -17, “Segment Reporting”, taking into
considerations the internal organization and management structure as well as the different risk and
returns of the segment.

(n) Operating leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the

ownership are classified as operating leases.

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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6. Share capital

As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorized:
Equity shares of T10 each 20,00,000  2,00,00,000 20,00,000  2,00,00,000

20,00,000  2,00,00,000 20,00,000  2,00,00,000

Issued, subscribed and fully pald-up
Equity shares of ¥10 each 17,70,833  1,77,08,330 17,70,833  1,77,08,330
17,70,833  1,77,08,330 17,70,833  1,77,08,330

(2) Reconciliation of the number of equity shates outstanding at the beginning and end of the year

As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Number Amount Numbet Amount-
At the beginning and end of the year 17,70,833  1,77,08,330 17,70,833  1,77,08.330

(b) Terms, rights and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shates having 2 par value of T10 per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per shate. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing annual general meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Cormpany, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to teceive remaining

assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(¢) Details of equity shares held by holding Company

As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Number Amount Number Amount
Gayatri Projects Limited 12,47,000  1,24,70,000 12,47,000  1,24,70,000
(@) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company :
As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Number Amount Number Amount
Gayatri Projects Limited, the holidng Company 12,47,000 70.42% 12,47,000 70.42%
AIVIP Capltal Finanee Mauritius Limited 5,20,833 29.41% 5,20,833 29.41%

(This space has been intentionally keft blank)
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7. Reserves and surplus

As at

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Securities premium account
Balance at the beginning and end of the year ) 2,19,96,19.577 2,19,96,19,577
Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (1,69,65,63,850) (1,29,17,91,548)
Add: Loss for the year {46,61,77,697) (40,43,44,485)
Add: Adjustments* - (4,27,817)
Balance at the end of the year (2,16,27,41,547) (1,69,65,63,850)

3,68,78,030 50,30,55,727

the provisions of Schedule IT to the Act.

8. Long-term borrowings

Represents adjustment on account of change in estimated useful life of tangible assets in accordance with

As at
31 March 2016 31 Mazxch 2015
Secured
-from banks 4,25,58,89,303 5,53,07,96,403
-from others 2,39,39,32,747 3,60,90,18,357
6,64,98,22,050 9,13,98,14,760
Unsecured
-from others Co- 1,35,00,00,000
-from related parties 1,77,24,00,250 56,91,74,603
8,42,22,22 300 11,05,89,89,363
Less: Cutrent maturities of long term borrowings 79,44,75,260 2,20,12,29,216
7,62,77,47,040 8,85,77,60,147

(a) Details of loans

(D) Term loans from related party aggregating to ¥1,500,000,000 (31 March 2015: Nil) is secured by way of
a) pledge of 1,200,000 Equity shares held by the holding company, M/s Gayatr Projects Limited,
p quity Y § company. ¥ ] :

(b) corporate guarantee of Gayatri Projects Limited.

(i) Term loans from others aggregating to Nil (31 March 2015: ¥1,350,000,000) is secured by way of
(2) pledge of 1,200,000 Equity shares held by the holding company, M/s Gayatti Projects Limited,

(b) corporate guarantee of Gayatri Projects Limited.
(i) The above facilities carry an annual interest rate of 16% (31 March 2015: 16%).

(This space has been intentionaaly left blank)




Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

8. Long-tetm borrowings (continued)
(iv) Secured terms loans aggregating to ¥ 1,938,301,180(31 March 2015: ¥2,058,151,180) obtained by Gayatri
Jhansi Roadways Limted is secured by way of:
(a) First mortgage and charge of all the bortower’s immovable properties, present and future.
(b} First charge by way of hypothecation of:
- all the movables, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spates, tools and accessories,
furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future.

- operating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever nature and
wherever atising, present and future.

- all intangibles, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future.

- Assignment or creation of security interest in i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the
relevant counter-parties to such project documents. ii) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and
detnands whatsoever of the borrower in the clearances. iii) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and
demands whatsoever of the borrower in any letter of credit, guarantees, performance bond provided by
any party to the Project Documents and iv) all Insurance Contracts/Insurance proceeds.

- Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve, other reserves and any other bank accounts of the borrower
wherever maintained.

- Pledge of all the shares (equity and preference) held by the sponsors representing 51% of the paid up
share capital.

The facilities carry an annual interest rate of 11.20% (31 March 2015: 11.20%).
(v) Secured terms loans aggregating to T 692,264,800 (31 March 2015: ¥731,084,800 ) obtained by Gayatri

Jhansi Roadways Limted is secured by way of:

(a) Second mortgage and charge of all the borrower’s immovable properties, present and future.

(b) Second charge by way of hypothecation of:
- all the movables, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spates, tools and accessories,
furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future.
- Operating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever nature and
wherever arising, present and future.
- Allintangibles, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future.
- Assignment or creation of security interest in ) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the
televant counter-parties to such project documents. if) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and
demands whatsoever of the botrowet in the clearances. iii) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and
demands whatsoever of the botrrower in any letter of credit, guarantees, petformance bond provided by
any party to the Project Documents and iv) all Insurance Contracts/Insurance proceeds.

- Bscrow Account, Debt Service Reserve, other resetves and any other bank accounts of the botrowet
wherever maintained.

- Pledge of all the shares (equity and preference) held by the sponsors representing 51% of the paid up
share capital

The facilities carry annual interest rate ranging from 11.50% to 12.85%(31 March 2015: 11.50% to 12.85%
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8. Long-term borrowings (continued)

(v0) Secured terms loans aggregating to ¥ 1,154,063,752 (31 March 2015: ¥1,228,765,349) obtained by Gayatri
Lalitpur Roadways Limited is secured by way of:
(a) First mortgage and charge of all the borrowet’s immovable properties, present and future.
(b) First charge by way of hypothecation of:

- all the movables, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessoties,
furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future.
- operating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever nature and
wherever arising, present and future.
- all intangibles, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future.
- Assignment or creation of secutity interest in i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the
relevant counter-parties to such project documents. ii) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and
demands whatsoever of the borrower in the clearances. iii) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and
demands whatsoever of the bortower in any letter of credit, gnarantees, performance bond provided by
any party to the Project Documents and iv) all Insurance Contracts/Insurance proceeds.
- Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve, other reserves and any other bank accounts of the borrower
wherever maintained. '
- Pledge of all the shares (equity and preference) held by the sponsors tepresenting 51% of the paid up
share capital.

The facilities carry an annual interest rate of 11.25%(31 March 2015: 11.25%).

(vii) Secured terms loans aggregating to T798,642,330.5 (31 March 2015: ¥848,734,209) obtained by Gayatri

Lalitpur Roadways Limited, is secured by way of:

(a) Second mortgage and charge of all the borrower’s immovable properties, present and future.

(b) Second charge by way of hypothecation of:

- all the movables, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories,
furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future.

- Operating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever nature and
wherever arising, present and future.

- All intangibles, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future.

- Assignment or creation of security interest in i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the botrower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the
relevant counter-parties to such project documents. ii) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and
demands whatsoever of the borrower in the clearances. iii) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and
demands whatsoever of the borrower in any letter of credit, guarantees, performance bond provided by
any party to the Project Documents and iv) all Insurance Contracts/Insurance proceeds.

- Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve, other resetves and any other bank accounts of the borrower
wherever maintaitied.

- Pledge of all the shares (equity and preference) held by the sponsors representing 51% of the paid up
share capital

The facilities carry an annual interest rate ranging from 11.50% to 12.85% (31 March 2015: 11.50% to
12.85%).

(viiif) Unsecured term loans to the tune of 272,400,000 (31 March 2015: ¥322,400,250) borrowed by Gayatri
Jhansi Roadways Limited and Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited from its shareholder's represents zero

interest subordinate loan tepayable after the repayment of other secured loans from banks and financial
mstltuﬁons

LA
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8. Long-term borrowings (continued)

(%) Secured term loans agptepating to ¥1,166,687,071(31 March 2015: ¥1,347,166,009) obtained by Cyberabad
Expressways Limited is secured by way of first pari passu charge in favour of the lenders/security agent to
the project by way of hypothecation of:

a) All monies including annuity receivable from Hyderabad Growth Corridor Limited (HGCL) to the credit

of the escrow Account.

b) All rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands of the company under project agteements subject
to the provisions of the concession agreement.

¢) Assignment of rights, title and interest to ot in favor of the lenders pursuant to and in accordance with
the substitution agreement as per the provisions of the financing documents of the project.

The facilities carry an annual interest rate of 11.50%(31 March 2015: 11.50%).

(¥) Secured term loans aggregating to ¥899,863,149 (31 March 2015: ¥977,093,909) obtained by Hyderabad
Expressways Limited is secured by way of first pari passu charge in favour of the lenders/security agent to
the project by way of hypothecation of:

) All monies including annuity receivable from HGCL to the ctedit of the escrow Account.

b) All rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands of the company under project agreements subject
to the provisions of the concession agreement.

c) Assignment of rights, title and interest to ot in favor of the lenders pursuant to and in accordance with
the substitution agreement as per the provisions of the financing documents of the project.

The facilities catry an annual interest rate of 11.50% (31 March 2015: 11.50%).

(xi) Secured term loans aggregating to Nil (31 March 2015: ¥1,948,819,303) obtained by Western UP Tollways
Limited are secured by way of:

(2) first mortgage and charge in a form satisfactory to all company’s immovable properties, present and
future expect project assets.

(b) first charge by way of hypothecation of all the company’s movables, including movable plant and

machinery, present and future except the project assets, machinery spares, tools and accessodes, furniture,
fixtutes, vehicles and all other mowable assets.

{¢) A first charge on operating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever
nature and wherever arising present or future.

(d)} subject to provisions of provisions on concession agreement, first charge on the esctow account, debt
service reserve, MMR and other reserves.

(e) A first pledge of 100% of paid up capital till three years of commencement of commercial operations

and thereafter minimum 51% of total paidup capital of the company held by the promoters during the
tenure of the loan.

The facilities carry an annual interest rate of Nil (31 March 2015: 11.50% to 14.00%).

(xif) Unsecured term loans to the tune of Nil (31 March 2015: T246,774,604) is obtained by Western UP
Tollways Limited from related parties cartying interest at the annual rate of Nil(31 March 2015: 12%).

(b) Terms of repayment for secured loans from banks and others and the unsecured loans from others

As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Up to 1 year 79,44,75,260 2,20,12,29,216
2 to 5 years 5,07,94,20,450 4,32,01,51,140
Above 5 years 2,54,83,26,591 4.53,76,09,007

e

8,42,22,22,300 11,05,89,89,363
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8. Long-term borrowings (continued)
(c) Details of overdue installments of principal and interest on secured and unsecured loans from

9.

banks and others

As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Principal
0-30 days 8,05,86,125 7,42,24.063
30-90 days 11,20,87,500 -
19,26,73,625 7,42,24,063
Interest
0-30 days 4,82,59,483 1,91,18,142
30-90 days 3,34,34,076 5,19,40,116
90-180 days 6,05,02,270 34,04,779
above 180 days 31,63,388 77,93,695
14,53,59,217 8,22,56,731
Other long-term liabilities
Asg at
31 Mazch 2016 31 Mazch 2015
Interest accured but not due* - 5,72,78,066
- 5,72,78,066
* Represents interest on contractual dues payable to related parties.
10. Provisions
As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
a) Long-term
Provision for periodic maintenance .
As at beginning of the year 73,50,49,926 70,30,98,285
Add: Charge for the year 4,42,07,044 9,56,51,641
Less: Transferred during the year - (6,37,00,000)
As at end of the year 77,92,56,970 73,50,49,926
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 5,67,893 2,53,820
77,98,24,863 73,53,03,746
b) Short-term
Provision for pedodic maintenance 12,98,38,937 13,87,25,658
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 6,507 -
r T 12,98,45,444 13,87,25,658
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11. Short-term borrowings

As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Unsecured
-from related parties* 65,97,76,958 62,16,62,434
-from banks** 1,81,29,872 -

67,79,06,830 62,16,62,434
* Represents unsecured loans from related parties repayable on demand along with an annual interest rate of
16% (31 March 2015: 16%).

** Represents amounts borrowed for working capital purpose at an annual interest rate of 11.5% (31 March
2015: 11.5%).

12. Trade payables

As at

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises - -

Dues to related parties 2,46,93,543 2,44,09,172
Dues to others 5,65,85,642 3,91,25,031
8,12,79,185 6,35,34,203

Based on information available with the Group and its jointly controlled entities, as at 31 March 2016 (31
March 2015: Nil), there are no suppliers who are registered as micro and small enterprises under the
provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Entetptises Development Act, 2006.

13. Other current liahilities

As at
31 March 2016 31 Mazch 2015

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (tefer note 8) 79,44.,75,260 2,20,12.29 216
Interest accrued and due on borrowings* 19,72,96,632 11,74,73,558
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 6,04,47,259 6,41,96,866
Statutory liabilities 7,45,77,076 4,83,53,157
Dues to related party 1,04,63,553 2,50,14,028
Provision for expenses 9,05,36,059 79247707
Liabilities held for sale** 2,28,51,00,747 -

3,51,28,96,586 2,53,55,14,532

* Includes interest accrued and due on short-term borrowings from related parties to the tune of
351,790,904 (31 March 2015: 33,521,6827)

** Represents reclassification on account of disposal of interets in jointly controlled entity (refer note 31)

w ! (This space has been intentionally left blank)
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14. Tangible assets

Plant and Furniture . Office
. Vehicles . Computers Total

equipment and fixtutes equipments
Gross block .
Asat1 Aprl 2014 3,62,732 9,22,378  72,56,015 14,14,188 20,36,863  1,19,92,176
Additions during the year - 44,057 28,227 18,169 - 90,453
Disposals - - 8,80,909 - - 8,80,909
Adjustments - - 1091,550 499,660 5,02,870 20,94,080
As at 31 March 2015 3,62,732 9,66,435  53,11,783 9,32,697 15,33,993 91,07,640
Additions during the year - - - 4,419 48,500 52,919
Adjustments* 39,532 7,356,483  17,06,558 9,77,875 - 34,60,448
As at 31 March 2016 3,23,200 2,29,952  36,05,225 (40,759)  15,82,493 57,00,111
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2014 3,12971 5,28,164 37,70,798 8,46,724 13,35,595 67,94,252
Charge for the year 11,511 78,054 12,37,549 3,14,445 5,38,800 21,80,359
Deletions / adjustments ' - - 7,55,709 - - 7,55,709
Adjustments - - 9,53,494 3,65414 3,47,353 16,66,261
As at 31 March 2015 3,24,482 6,06,218  32,99,144 7,95,755 15,27,042 65,52,641
Charge for the year - 7,463 76,231 957,282 86,761 7593 11,35,330
Adjustments* 23,736 4,96,500 14,31,413 9,27,672 - 28,79,321
As at 31 March 2016 3,08,209 1,85,949  28,25,013 (45,156)  15,34,635 48,08,650
Net block
As at 31 Mazch 2016 14,991 44,003 7.80,212 4,397 47,858 8,91,461
As at 31 March 2015 38,250 3,60,217 20,12,639 1,36,942 6,951 25,54,999

* Represents reclassifications to assets held for sale on account of loss of control over jointly controlled entity (refer
note 31)

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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15,

16.

Intangible assets

. As at
Carriage way 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Gross block
At the beginning of the year 13,85,49,88.924 13,72,96,44,626
Additions during the year 63,34,77,942 12,53,44,298
Adjustments* 3,42,10,29,134 -
At the end of the year 11,06,74,37,732 13,85,49,88,924
Accumulated amortisation
At the beginning of the year 3,44,98,37,675 2,53,69,20,601
Charge for the year 1,03,30,31,116 91,29,17,074
Adjustments* 82,26,39,644
At the end of the year 3,66,02,29,147 3,44,98,37,675
Net block 7,40,72,08,585 10,40,51,51,249

* Represents reclassifications to assets held for sale on account of loss of control over jointly controlled entity

(refer note 31)

Non-current investments

Asat

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Unquoted trade investments 0f310 each fully paid:
-others
16,680 equity shares (31 March 2015: 16,680), representing

33.36% (31 March 2015: 33.36%) in Indore Dewas Tollways 1,66,800
Limited

510,647 equity shares (31 March 2015: 510,647), representing
11.00% (31 March 2015: 11.00%) in HKR Roadways Litmited 51,06,470

1,66,800

51,06,470

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments, at cost 52,73,270

52,73,270

(This space bas been intentionally lefi blank)
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17. Loans and advances

As at

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

(Unsecured, considered good)
a) Long-term

Advances to related parties 1,06,60,57,141 1,08,23,72,794
Security deposits 5,00,000 3,01,088
Advance tax (net of provision) 3,80,12,726 12,48,28,987
Others 4.55,72,284
1,15,01,42,151 1,20,80,02,869
b) Short-term
Advances to related parties
- holding company 10,80,85,268 68,25,73,151
- fellow subsidiaties 5,69,165 3,69,165
- others 19,23,612 -
11,05,78,045 68,29,42,316
18, Trade receivables
As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
(Unsecured, considered good)
Due for a petiod exceeding six months 3,85,16,510 3,4841,035
Other receivables 36,09,49.418 54,00,01,421
39,94,65,928 57,48,42.456
19. Cash and cash equivalents
As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 98,36,92,493 45,22.52.810
- in deposit accounts, with maturty of less than three months - 4.41,00,000
Cash on hand 54,473 9,50,358
P 98,37,46,966 49,73,03,168

el e ' (This space has been intentionally left blank)
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20. Other curtent assets

As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
(Unsecured, considered good)
Accrued annuity 19,77,27,486 22,87,93,487
Prepaid expenses 11,27,739 18,29,495.
Others 23,43,122 2,03,89,353
Receivable from disposal of interest in jointly controlled entity* 2,712,153 .82 650 -
2,92,25,80,997 25,10,12,335

* Represents reclassification on account of disposal of interest in jointly controlled entity (refer note 31)

21. Revenue from operations

For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 Match 2015
Annuity income 1,77,79,00,000 1,77,79,00,000
Toll collections 44.94.90,503 46,64,61,625
Operations and maintenance support $,21,32,000 6,21,32,000

2,28,95,22,503 2,30,64,93,625

22, Other income

For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Interest income 26,09,657 9,15,649
Income from mutual funds 3,12,27,809 2,79,96,712
Profit on sale of fixed assets - 42301
Miscellaneous receipts 82,99,684 19,76,893
' 4,21,37,150 3,09,31,555
23. Employee benefits expense
For the year ended
31 Mazrch 2016 31 March 2015
Salaries and wages 3,17,87,970 2,90,75,795
Contribution to provident and other fund 8,87,229 1,80,737
Staff welfare expenses 88,421 78,177
3,27,63,620 2,93,34,709
a) Significant assumptions for gratuity and compensated absences
For the year ended
31 Mazch 2016 31 March 2015
Discount rate 8% 8%
Expected rate of salary increases 5% 5%

Expected average future service of employees 20 Years 22 Years
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24, Finance costs

25.

26.

For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Interest expense 1,30,17,94,712 1,39,16,78,794
Other borrowing costs 1,55,91,495 1,11,74,730
1,31,73,86,207 1,40,28,53,524
Other expenses
For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Toll operating expenses 2,53,28,801 2,42.91,147
Repairs and maintenance - carriage way 34,99.74,926 35,63,04,175
Insurance expenses 32,05,651 29.94.593
Consultancy and professional charges 3,08,94,447 1,62,60,629
Rent 44,39,426 42,35 515
Payments to the auditors as
- audit fees 13,16,750 12,92,140
-~ other matters
Travelling and conveyance 34,90,985 29,52,852
Miscellaneous expenses 20752252 2,76,30,585
43,94,03,238 43,59,61,636
Commitments and contingent liabilities:
Asg at
31 March 2016 31 Match 2015
a) Contingent liabilities
Disputed income tax dues 8,92,926 8,92,926
Transit fee on forest produce disputed by the subsidiaries 29,62,44,291 29,62,44,291
Corporate guarantee given to Indore Dewas Tollway Limited 6,26,13,00,000 -
b) Commitments
Contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts (net of 6,59,63,688 10,19,63,688
Operation and maintenance (O&M) Service fee payable to the
ultimate holding Company as per the original agreement 2,59,81,97,770 2,66,90,62,270
Not ascertainable  Not ascertainable

Joint and several liability in respect of projects developed other entities
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27. Additional information putsuant to Schedule III to the Act

As at For the year ended
31 March 2016

Name of the entity Net assets Share in profit or loss

Asa%of Asa%of

consolidated consolidated

net assets Amount § ) profitorloss  Amount § )
Parent
Gayatri Infra Ventures Limited -681% (1,17,26,28,495) 53%  (26,36,67,997)
Subsidiaries
Gayatn Thansi Roadways Limited 185% 31,90,79,873 11% (5,61,40,017)
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited 119% 20,46,24,418 2%  (1,20,29,460)
Joint Ventures
Cyberabad Expressways Limited 176% 30,31,49,974 4%  (2,15,23,326)
Hyderabad Expressways Limited 47% 8,17,89,482 -1% 37,771,346
Western UP Tollway Limited 253% 43.62,81,658 30% _ (14,90,73,568)
Total 17,22,96,910 (49,86,57,023)
Minority Interests in all subsidaities
Gayatri JThansi Roadways Limited 35% 5,95,90,911 5%  (2,67,16,506)
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited 34% 5,81,21,489 1% (57,62,819)

As at For the year ended
31 March 2015

Name of the entity Net assets Share in profit or loss

Asa % of As a % of

consolidated consolidated

net assets Amount T ) profitorloss Amount € )
Parent
Gayatl Infra Ventures Limited -144%  (96,72,96,016) 35%  (24,59,78,876)
Subsidiaries

. Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited 55% 36,70,72,928 13%  (5,78,46,827)

Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited 41% 27,33,66,638 5%  (2,26,50,580)

e

(This space has been intentionally kit blank)
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27. Additional information pursuant to Schedule ITI to the Act (continued)

28,

As at For the yeat ended
31 Mazch 2015

Name of the eﬁtity Net assets Share in profit or loss

As a % of Asa%of

consolidated consolidated

net assets Amount® )  profitorloss Amount )
Joint Ventures
Cyberabad Expressways Limited 43% 28,64,24,421 12%  (5,15,95,358)
Hyderabad Expressways Limited 19% 12,58,24744 2% (1,01,90,638)
Western UP Tollway Limited 87% 58,55,63,068 13% __ (5,55,25,934)
Total 67,09,55,783 (44,37,88,213)
Minority Interests in subsidairies
Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited 13%  8,63,07417 6%  (2,83,44,945)
Garyatr Lalitpur Roadways Limited 10% 6,38,84,309 3%  (1,10,98,783)

Related Party transactions

Names of the related parties and description of relationship

Name of the related party

Nature of relationship

Gayatt Projects Limited

Holding Company

Indore Dewas Tollways Limited

Bhandara Thermal Power Corporation Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

Deep Corporation Private Limited

HKR Roadways Limited

Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited

Axis Energy Ventures India Private Limited

Enterprises in which Key Manageriai Personnel and/or
their relatives have significant influence

IL & FS Engineering & Constraction Company Limited
(IL & FS)

Terra Projects Litnited

India Infrastructure Fund

Shareholders' having significant influence in 4 jointly
controlled entity

NCC Limited

NCC Infrastructure Holdings Limited

(This space has been intentionally keft blank)
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28. Related party transactions (continued)
b) Transactions with related parties

For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Transactions with Gayatri Projects Limited (GPL)
Payments made by GPL. on bebalf of the group towards
- Unsecured loans received and interest to lenders 5,57,14,522 26,68,80,574

Amounts paid to GPL towards
- Shared services availed

1,35,00,000

- Interest on borrowings 3,14,98,763 2,80,14,165
- Operations and maintenance 8,39,33,853 8,61,66,827
- Development expenditure of intangible assets - 12,21,27,355
- Major maintenance 3,64,69,243 2,24.12,865
- Utility shifting 49,42 508 -
- Others 407,176 -
Transactions with Deep Corporation Limited

Rent 17,24,702 16,20,409
Transactions with HKR Roadways Limited

Salaries paid on behalf of the Group - 2,09,600
Transactions with IL & FS

Interest on loans 1,54.40,000
Transactions with NCC Limited

Interest expense 1,72,11,027 1,53,48,806
Reimbursement of expenses - 2,30,908
Bank guarantee given 2,50,389 ~
Transactions with Bhandara Thermal Power Corporation

Loans taken 1,50,00,00,000 -
Interest on loans taken 17,62,00,349 -
Transactions with Indore Dewas Tollways Limited

Corporate gurantee given to the lenders 6,26,13,00,000 -
Transactions with NCC Infrastructure Holdings Limited

Management fees paid 26,79,751 26,42,707
Transactions with Axis Energy Ventures India Private Limited

Repairs and maintenance - 26,53,061

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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28.
<)

29.

30.

31

Related party transactions {(continued)
Balances receivable/(payable)

As at

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Gayatri Projects Limited (74,42,84,196) (29,66,40,525)
Indore Dewas Tollways Limited 36,30,00,000 36,30,00,000
HKR Roadways Limited 67,89,27,709 67,89,27,709
Balaji Highways Holding Private Limited 5,69,164 3,69,164
IL & FS Engineering & Consttuction Company Limited (22,96,34,559) (19,59,22,949)
Terra Projects Limited (9,17,25,396) (14,70,94,911)
India Infrastructure Fund (27,24,00,000) (32,24,00,000)
NCC Limited (16,22,52,729) (14,55,98,945)
Bhandara Thermal Power Corporation Limited (1,60,67,14,271) -
NCC Infrastructure Holdings Limited (19,41,32,902) (19,41,32,902)

Deferred tax

In the absence of virtual certainty of future taxable profits supported by convincing evidence, the group has not
created deferred tax assets on unabsorbed business losses and other timing differences. The group would be able to
use unabsorbed tax depreciation and business losses to set off against future taxable income for a specified petiod.

Segment reporting

Based on the Group's business model and considering the internal financial reporting to the management,
subsidiaries and joint ventures which are engaged in the business of construction in the transport infrastructure has
been considered as the only reportable segment. Further all the services are rendered only in India. Hence there are
no additional disclosures required to be provided in accordance with Accounting Standard 17, "Segment Reporting".

The Company has entered into a definitive sale agreement dated 19 January 2016 with Cube Highways and
Infrastructure PTE Limited for divestment of its entire equity stake held in Western UP Tollway Limited, a jointly
controlled entity. On the basis of assessment of the status of compliances with certain mandatory conditions
stipulated in the agreement and pending finalisation of the sale consideration, the financial statements of the jointly
controlled entity have been accordingly consolidated in the financial statement of the group as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2016 and duly disclosed as a discontinuing operations in accordance with the provisions of Indian
GAAP. The details of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure pertaining to the aforesaid jointly controlled
entity, duly consolidated, considered for consolidation in the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
March 2016 and 31 March 2015 are as follows:

Group's share in liabilities as at 31 Match 2016

Particulars

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Non-current Habilities
Long-term borrowings 1,81,70,67,965 1,77,60,46,456
Other long-term liabilities 9,68,41,230 30,86,76,977
Long term provisions 1,77,493 2,53,820
Current liabilities
Trade payables 40,49,446 38,97,957
_ Other curtrent liabilities 21,85,79,142 19,26,08,260
Sho;tr:ci:ﬁijp‘r;mdsions 14,83,85,472 12,25,00,000
S 2,28,51,00,747 2,40,39,83,470
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b.

32.

Group's share in assets as at 31 March 2016

Particulars 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
-Tangible assets 5,81,127

7,82,456
-Intangible assets 2,59,83,89,488 2,87,58,48,809
Long term loans and advances 35,35,216 1,22,14,622
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,34,13,017 5,84,87,248
Shott term loans and advances 61,964 43,04,674
Other current assets 10,54,01,838 3,79,08,732
2,72,13,82,650 2,98,95,46,541
Group's share in income and expenditure and cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2016
Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Revenue
Revenue from operations 51,16,22,503 52,85,93,625
Qther income 26,09,657 9,15,649
51,42,32,160 52,95,09,274
Expenses
Toll operating expenses 2,53,28,801 2,42.91,147
Employee benefit expenses 60,19,480 56,36,614
Finance costs 26,05,75,251 28,26,17,888
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27,76,65,066 17,27,70,765
Other expenses 9,39,22,878 9,97,18,794
' 66,35,11,477 58,50,35,208
Loss for the year (14,92,79,317) (5,55,25,934)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,50,74,230) 5,39,84,702
Comparatives

‘The consolidated financdial statements for the previous period have been regrouped / rearranged to conform to the

cutrent year presentation wherever required.

This is the summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information referred to in our report of even date.
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